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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (&R EEBRAR]) (the “Company”), | present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group had a disappointing result for the 2014 financial year with
a loss of HK$1,058.0 million attributable to owners of the Company.
During the year, the Group recorded a reduction in sales from HK$7.2
billion in 2013 to HK$5.9 billion in 2014, representing a reduction of
18.1%. The Group recorded a gross loss of HK$17.4 million during the
year, which was due to the adverse impact of the prolonged volatility
and the overall downward movement of the global metal prices
throughout the year. The prolonged volatility and the overall downward
movement of commodity prices had a negative impact on the gross
margin of the Group in 2014. As for the net loss, the Group recorded a
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$1,058.0 million,
when compared to the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$382.9 million recorded in 2013. Loss on fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments of HK$773.8 million was recognised in
2014.

With the significant volatile world metal market and despite the
reduction in worldwide supply experienced throughout the year, the
Group continued to maintain and balance its procurement volume to
cater for its processing needs through its well established overseas
procurement network. During the year, the Group sold in aggregate
over 587,400 tonnes of its processed products within its three business
segments. This represented a decrease of 15.8% when compared to
697,800 tonnes in 2013.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$1.01 in 2014 (2013: Loss per share HK$0.37).

Following the establishment of our Hong Kong operations in 2012,
the Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company have established a strong presence in Hong Kong with
a rapid increase in local market share. The Group is now in a well-placed
position to establish a more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste
processing platform in Hong Kong. We continued to be confident that
the Hong Kong facility will eventually become an important contributor
to the overall performance of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B

With regard to the investment in establishing new processing facilities
in the Development Zone in Yantai City, the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"), we have completed the first stage of the development and
the new processing facilities are now progressively operational.

Further to our announcement dated 1 December 2014 in relation
to the proposed acquisition of 80% equity interest in Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Limited, we expect to
complete our due diligence review in the next few months. The
Company will keep its shareholders and the investors informed of the
status of the proposed acquisition as and when appropriate.

Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo and Hong Kong. We will continue to
be on the lookout for any potential opportunity, especially the activities
within the scrap metal resources supply chain in the PRC and other
countries.

With the continued emphasis of support from the PRC Government to
develop the recycling industry, we are confident that the metal recycling
industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an important
source and an integral part of the metal resources supply chain of the
PRC in the future.

Given that the metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to cater
for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC.

Fang Ankong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

With the significant volatility in the global metal market and the
reduction in worldwide supply seen in 2014, the management
continued to face exceptional challenges resulting in a net loss for the
whole year in 2014. Despite current weakness and volatility in primary
metals prices, which has a knock-on effect on the global metals recycling
industry, the Directors believe that the longer prospect of the metals
recycling industry in the PRC remains very robust.

The PRC is the world’s leading consumer of many basic metals including
copper and aluminium. The demand for these basic metals is not likely to
reduce drastically in the short term. Given the PRC's increasing concern
with environmental pollution, the Directors believe that demand for
recycled metals will continue to rise and it is only a matter of whether
or not Chinese recyclers can produce recycled metals at economically
viable costs. Thus, the management continues to be cautiously optimistic
about the Group’s performance in the coming year.

In 2014, the Group continued to face difficult business environment
including the highly volatile global metal market and the expected
slowing economic growth in the PRC. During the year, the Group's
revenue decreased from HK$7.2 billion in 2013 to HK$5.9 billion,
representing a decrease of 18.1%. The gross loss of HK$17.4 million
recorded during the year was due to the adverse impact of the
prolonged volatility and the overall downward movement of the global
metal prices throughout the year. The prolonged volatility and the
overall downward movement of commodity prices had a negative
impact on gross margin of the Group in 2014. As for the net loss, the
Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$1,058.0 million while comparing to the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$382.9 million recorded in 2013. Loss
on fair value changes of derivative financial instruments of HK$773.8
million was recognised in 2014.

With a number of unforeseeable circumstances impacting the global
supply of scrap materials, the Group experienced a reduction of scrap
materials purchased. During the year, the reduction in mixed metal scrap
supply was in the region of 20 — 25% when compared with last year.
During the year, the Group sold in aggregate over 587,400 tonnes of
processed products within its three business segments. This represented
a decrease of 15.8% when compared to 697,800 tonnes in 2013.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

With regard to the legal proceedings in the PRC involving Shanghai
Chiho-Tiande Resource Recycling Co., Limited (the “Shanghai JV"”), the
Baoshan People’s Court has delivered the judgment (the “Judgment”) in
relation to the claim brought by Shanghai Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd. (the “lessor”) against the Shanghai JV and the counterclaim by the
Shanghai JV against the lessor on 12 January 2015. The Shanghai JV has
applied to the Second Intermediate People’s Court of Shanghai for an
appeal against the Judgment on 27 January 2015.

The Board takes the view that the legal proceedings will not have any
material adverse effect on the business, operations or financial results
of the Group. The Company will keep its shareholders and the investors
informed of the development of the legal proceedings as and when
appropriate.

Loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$1.01 in 2014 (2013: Loss per share HK$0.37).

Our Procurement Network

The Group is the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for
recycling, reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC. The
Group imports nearly all of our mixed metal scrap and has, over the
years, developed a strong international procurement network which
covers Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of
suppliers was mostly established and developed by the Group leveraging
on its experience in the industry. With our good business practices, we
have enjoyed good business relationship with the suppliers over the
years.

Corporate and Business Development

Following the establishment of our Hong Kong operations in 2012,
the Group’s Hong Kong operations together with the Hong Kong joint
venture company continued to gain strong presence in Hong Kong. The
Group is now in a well-placed position to establish a more diversified
scrap metal and electronic waste processing platform in Hong Kong. We
continued to be confident that the Hong Kong facility will eventually
become an important contributor to the overall performance of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)

With regard to the investment in establishing new processing facilities
in the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC, we have completed the
first stage of the development and the new processing facilities are now
progressively operational.

Further to our announcement dated 1 December 2014 in relation
to the proposed acquisition of 80% equity interest in Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Limited, we expect to
complete our due diligence review in the next few months. The
Company will keep its shareholders and the investors informed of the
status of the proposed acquisition as and when appropriate.

As part of the Group'’s future developments, on 21 and 27 March 2015,
the Company entered into the following agreements in relation to the
placing of new shares:

(@) a subscription agreement (the “First Subscription Agreement”)
with USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 203.9 million new shares at the
subscription price of HK$9.01 per share. The net proceeds of
such subscription are estimated to be approximately HK$1,835.64
million. The new shares will be issued and allotted under the
general mandate granted to the directors of the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2014.

(b) a subscription agreement (as amended and restated by a
supplemental agreement dated 27 March 2015, the “Second
Subscription Agreement”) with the Subscriber, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for additional 253
million shares in the aggregate amount of HK$2,279.53 million
at the initial subscription price of HK$9.01 per share (subject to
adjustments). The net proceeds of such subscription are estimated
to be approximately HK$2,278.03 million. The new shares will be
issued and allotted under a specific mandate to be sought from
the independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting
to be convened by the Company.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 March 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)
Going forward, we remain committed to further expanding our
processing capability, and at the same time improving our profitability
and return on equity. Our focus will continue to cover our existing
facilities including Taizhou, Ningbo and Hong Kong. We will continue to
be on the lookout for any potential opportunity, especially the activities
within the scrap metal resources supply chain in the PRC and other
countries.

Social Responsibilities

On the environmental protection front, we continued to place great
emphasis on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line with
local and national environmental protection standards.

With the changes in the evaluation process by the Environmental
Protection Department of ZhejiangProvince (#7/T & IR 5= (R #EE) in 2013,
our Taizhou facilities have once again passed the evaluation process
as designated processing units for imported metal scraps recycling
and utilization in Zhejiang Province. Our production processes do not
consume large volumes of electricity and water and therefore produce
very small volumes of waste materials. We consider that we have
adopted sufficient environmental protection measures and controls
against air, water, solids and noise pollutions produced during the
course of our production process.

Prospects

With the continued strong support from the PRC Government to
develop the recycling industry, we remain confident that the metal
recycling industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become an
important source and an integral part of the metal resource supply chain
of the PRC in the future.

On the basis that metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to
cater for our expansion strategy for scrap materials in the PRC. With
this in mind and in accordance with our expansion strategy, the Group
is aiming to procure 40,000 to 60,000 tonnes of mixed metal scrap
materials per month to cater for its processing needs. This purchase
volume is expected to increase as the Group continues to expand. The
management will continue making efforts to capitalise on such direction
in achieving satisfactory returns to the Shareholders.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$1.3 billion, or 18.1%, from
HK$7.2 billion in 2013 to HK$5.9 billion in the year. The decrease was
mainly contributed by a decrease in sales volume as well as average
selling prices for our recycled metal products and foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$1.3 billion, or 18.1%, from
HK$7.2 billion in 2013 to HK$5.9 billion in the year. The decrease is in
line with the decrease in revenue and primarily due to a decrease in sales
volume and reduction in the average purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross loss and gross loss margin

Gross loss of approximately HK$17.4 million was recorded when
compared to gross loss of HK$23.8 million in 2013. The decrease
in gross loss is mainly due to slight improvement on gross margin
contributed by some of our products, including copper scrap, steel scrap,
aluminium alloy ingots and other metal scrap without processing.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately HK$11.8
million, or 33.2%, from HK$35.5 million in 2013 to HK$23.7 million in
the year. This was mainly due to decrease in selling activities in Hong
Kong during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$2.8 million, or
2.1%, from HK$133.3 million in 2013 to HK$130.5 million in the year.
This was mainly due to the decrease in share-option expenses during the
year.

Other income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$15.7 million, or 35.9%,
from HK$43.7 million in 2013 to HK$28.0 million in the year. This was
mainly due to the decrease in government grants received during the
year.
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Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other gains and losses

Other losses increased by approximately HK$710.3 million from
HK$60.6 million in 2013 to HK$770.9 million in the year. This was
mainly due to loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments of approximately HK$773.8 million during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$19.0 million, or 11.0%,
from HK$172.3 million in 2013 to HK$153.3 million in the year. This was
mainly due to decrease in bank borrowings during the year.

Loss for the year

As a result of the factors mentioned above, the Company incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year of approximately
HK$1,058.0 million, when compared to a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of HK$382.9 million in 2013. The losses increase was
mainly due to an adverse impact of the prolonged volatility and the
overall downward movement of the global metal prices throughout
the year and the loss on fair value changes of derivatives financial
instruments when the Group is required to make under the “mark-to-
market” accounting principle.

Key Financial Ratios
The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the date
for the periods indicated:
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At 31 At 31
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2014 2013
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Liquidity Ratios REBESH =R +T=BA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
Current ratio mENtE & 0.90 1.69
Quick ratio REPLL R 0.52 0.62
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBLE (%) 58.8 55.3
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key Financial Ratios (continued)

f1 %5 18 ()
B B 25 b R (4)

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+—HLEFE

2014 2013

—Z—HmE —E=%F

Inventory turnover days FERBEH 114 140
Debtor’s turnover days JRE Wi R B B 2 13 12
Creditor’s turnover days FERTEREEE B & 12 9

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totaling HK$707.4 million (2013: HK$588.3 million). Total borrowings
were HK$1.3 billion (2013: HK$2.0 billion), and these were mainly
used to finance the purchases of mixed metal scrap from overseas.
Such borrowings are mainly denominated in United States dollars and
Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was 58.8%
(2013: 55.3%).

Debtor’s turnover days increased from 12 days for the year ended 31
December 2013 to 13 days for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the creditor’s turnover days increased from 9 days for the year ended 31
December 2013 to 12 days for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Inventory turnover days decreased from 140 days for the year ended 31
December 2013 to 114 days for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, we had pledged certain property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, investment properties and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$577.9
million (2013: approximately HK$447.6 million) to secure bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2014, we had capital commitments in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease
payments contracted but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to HK$257.2 million (2013: HK$82.2 million) and
capital commitments in respect of acquisition of a subsidiary authorised
but not contracted for amounted to HK$81.1 million (2013: Nil).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risk
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk management strategy aims to
minimize the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

The Company has established a Pricing Committee and adopted a
hedging policy (the “Hedging Policy”) which aimed to enhance the
Group's risk management of commodity price fluctuations. The Hedging
Policy sets out, among other things, the target inventory turnover days
that the Group aims to achieve under normal circumstances and market
conditions, and provides that the Board must approve any change to
the inventory turnover day criteria. The Hedging Policy also requires the
Board to obtain professional advice on the current and future market
outlook of the commodities market if the target inventory turnover days
could not be met.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Following the review of the historical inventory turnover days of the
Group in 2013, the Board noted that the historical inventory turnover
days were, in practice, longer than the then target inventory turnover
days of 90 days because of various practical reasons, including seasonal
factors and prevailing market conditions. The Board considered it is
unrealistic to maintain the target inventory turnover days of 90 days,
and that the Board should be given discretion to determine whether
it is necessary for the Board to engage and seek relevant professional
advice. The Board has therefore resolved to amend the Hedging Policy in
January 2014 such that:

(@)  the target inventory turnover days is now changed from 90 days
to 160 days;

(b) any change to the inventory turnover day criteria (i.e. if the
inventory turnover days are more than 160 days) will require
approval by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Hedging Policy, save that no such approval is required if the target
inventory turnover days are not achieved in January and February
owing to the intervening Chinese New Year holiday; and

(¢)  in the event that the commodity market experiences a sustained
and sharp decline in prices that are likely to cause a lengthening
in the inventory turnover days, the Board may consider engaging
and seeking relevant professional firms to advise it on the current
and future market outlook of the commodities market.

With regard to foreign currency risk management, we continued
borrowing in United States dollars by securing Renminbi deposits in
order to manage the foreign currency risk exposure. We will continue
using this hedging strategy so long as the exchange rate justifies it.

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, we have
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other interest
rate related derivative financial instrument. However, we continue
to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need arises.

As for credit risk, we continue to follow the trade practices of cash on
collection from sales of all of its metal recycling products in order to
minimize the carrying amounts of the financial assets in our Group's
financial statements. In addition, we will continue to monitor closely the
trade debtors for the Foundry business to minimize potential impairment
losses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

With the liquidity risk, we will continue maintaining a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, we had a workforce of 521 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 2,486 separation and selection
workers through local recognized contractors. We have not experienced
any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor disputes which have
affected its operations in the past. We have not experienced any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We
continue to maintain good relationships with our employees.

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

We remunerate employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent employees. In
addition to benefits normally provided in line with industry practices,
the Company also has a share option scheme in place for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons including employees
of Group companies for their contributions to the long term success of
our Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEANEBEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Ankong (75 & Z8), aged 49, is an Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). Mr. Fang Ankong was appointed as an
Executive Director on 15 May 2008. Mr. Fang serves as a Chairman
of the Executive Committee, Nomination Committee and Pricing
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Fang Ankong is also one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Fang
Ankong founded the Group in 1999 and has over 20 years of experience
in the business of metallurgy and metal scrap recycling. Mr. Fang
Ankong is primarily responsible for setting corporate strategy and
planning, and overall management of the Group. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Fang Ankong has been engaged in the import and trading
of metals scrap. From 1995, Mr. Fang Ankong was a shareholder of
Tianan Resources, a company engaged in the importing of metal scrap
into China and recycling of metal scrap, and also participated in the
operation and management of Tianan Resources. Tianan Resources was
deregistered in 2002.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the younger brother of Ms. Fang Aiping and elder
brother of Mr. Fang Anlin, who are both Vice President of the Group.
Mr. Fang Ankong is also the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei, the
Senior Vice President of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also the younger
brother of the father-in-law of Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, the manager of the
sales and marketing department of the Group.

Mr. Gu Liyong (B8Z &), aged 52, is an Executive Director and Vice
President of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 28
August 2008. Mr. Gu serves as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for operational and financial activities
and has over 29 years of experience in the industry. Mr. Gu graduated
from Shanghai University of Technology (/8 TZKX2) in 1984 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and majoring in steel making from the
Department of Metallurgy. He worked at China Resources Reclamation
Corp., East China Co. (FEIYEBLEF AL ATZERAT), a company
for recycling and trading ferrous metal (such as steel and iron) and non-
ferrous metal (such as copper, aluminium, lead and tin) and plastic scrap
in the East China region, for at least 10 years and started his career in
the management and operation of domestic and international recycling
business. He was a manager for the import and export department and
an assistant to general manager in China Resources Reclamation Corp.,
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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East China Co., and was responsible for managing the procurement of
metal scrap from overseas and reselling to their customers. Mr. Gu has
extensive experience in the recycling of different resources, including
metals and other scrap materials. Since he joined the Group in 1999,
Mr. Gu has been responsible for the import and export businesses of the
Group by utilising his professional knowledge in the recycling resources
business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (BE3§#£), aged 65, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over
39 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves
as an independent non-executive director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited
(formerly known as VODone Limited), Matrix Holdings Limited, Sino
Distillery Group Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited,
Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Zhong
An Real Estate Limited, Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, China
Household Holdings Limited, Wing Tai Investment Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Wing Lee Holdings Limited) and Tianhe Chemicals
Group Limited.
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Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#X), aged 69, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. She joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Ms. Zhang is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. She was the vice-secretary-
general of Financial Trust Association of Zhejiang Province (4714 < &k
ZHEEWE) before joining our Group and she served as chief, general
manager and independent director and held various positions in various
Chinese banking and corporate finance sectors including the People’s
Bank of China Heilongjiang Branch (RFBIARIRTTEEETIE H17), the
People’s Bank of China Zhejiang Branch (FEARBITINITEDTT),
Financial Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (#/1& & & @B+
1), and office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of People’s Bank of
China Shanghai Branch (FBIARIRIT LD TN S REERAE).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (4875 % 12)
from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (2&T& &k

27).

Mr. Zhu Dajian (5§ K#), aged 60, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He joined the Group on 17 December 2014. Mr. Zhu serves
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
a distinguished professor of the School of Economics & Management,
a director of the Institute of Governance for Sustainable Development
(AIHHEE REEIEBMICAT), the head of the Department of Public
Management and Policy (AHEEK), and the vice chairman of the
Tongji University Academic Committee (RIEAZEMEEE), at
Tongji University in Shanghai (_E/&REARE), the People’s Republic
of China. He was awarded the special allowance by the China’s State
Council in 2000. He was also a senior research scholar at Harvard
University in 2005 and a senior visiting fellow at Melbourne University
in Australia from 1994 to 1995. Moreover, he is appointed as a member
of The State Foundation for Social Sciences, a member of the Social
Science Commission under the Chinese Education Ministry, a member
of the Experts Commission on Sustainable Development & Resource
and Environment (AIFFEERERERIRIBHE CEXZEZE®) under the
Chinese Construction Ministry, and a special policy advisor (R 54 &4
F2EZR) for the Shanghai Municipal Government. He is also a member
of the International Expert Committee of Enel Foundation in Italy, the
Ellen MacArthur Foundation in the United Kingdom and Firmenich in
Switzerland, respectively. Mr. Zhu was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited on 21 August 2014, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 966).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul (AZ8), aged 59, is the Qualified
Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the
Group in June 2009 as chief financial officer with responsibility for
overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance. He is an associate of both the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Associated
International Hotels Limited (Stock code: 0105) and Tian Teck Land
Limited (Stock code: 0266), companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ding Guopei (T Bl#%), aged 52, is the Senior Vice President of the
Group, the General Manager, Director and Vice-Chairman of Taizhou
Chiho-Tiande Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Foundry Company Limited. Mr. Ding has over 16 years of experience in
the industry and joined the Group in December 1999. Prior to joining
the Group, he was a trader principally engaged in the metal recycling
industry. Mr. Ding obtained a diploma majoring in International
Economics and Trade from the Faculty of Business from Ningbo
University in 2002.

Mr. Ding successively worked as Vice-Chairman of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Association Recycling Metal Branch in November 2004,
Chairman of Association of Resources Comprehensive Utilization of
Taizhou City in June 2005, and executive director of China Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association in April 2006. He has
been chosen as a member of the third session Standing Committee
of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress in December 2006, the second
session outstanding builders of Taizhou City of the socialism with
Chinese characteristic in February 2007, and was awarded the Top 10
Contribution to the China Metal Recycling Industry Award in October
2007. He was also been the Vice-Chairman of the Zhejiang Association
of Solid Waste Recycle and Disposal in May 2008. He has been chosen
as NPC deputies of Taizhou in January 2011. Mr. Ding held the post
of Vice-Chairman of Zhejiang Provincial Environment Monitoring
Association in August 2011, he has been chosen as the representative
of Fourth People’s Congress of Lu Qiao District and a member of the
fourth session Standing Committee of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress
in March 2012 and held the post of Vice-Chairman of Taizhou City
Federation of Industry and Commerce in November 2012. Mr. Ding is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin, and the
husband of Ms. Fang Aiping.
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Ms. Fang Aiping (75 E3%), aged 51, is the Vice President of the Group,
and the Financial Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande
Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company
Limited. She is primarily responsible for the subsidiaries’ overall financial
planning, financial reporting and budgeting as well as implementing
our Group's business strategies. Ms. Fang Aiping joined our Group since
December 1999. Ms. Fang Aiping has more than 15 years of experience
in financial management. Ms. Fang Aiping is the elder sister of Mr. Fang
Ankong and Mr. Fang Anlin. She is the wife of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Fang Anlin (J3 Z#K), aged 46, is the Vice President of the Group,
and the Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company Limited.
He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the production of the subsidiaries. Mr. Fang Anlin joined
the Group in December 1999 and has over 20 years of experience in the
business of mixed metal scrap. Since Mr. Fang Anlin joined the Group,
Mr. Fang Anlin has been responsible for overseeing the production of
recycled metal products. Mr. Fang Anlin is the younger brother of Mr.
Fang Ankong and Ms. Fang Aiping. Mr. Fang Anlin is also the brother in-
law of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Cai Haifeng (¥81£), aged 43, is the Vice President of the Group
and the General Manager of Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals Recycling
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Cai graduated from
Zhejiang Polytechnic University (4L L% X&) with a Bachelor’s degree
in Fine Chemical Engineering in 1993. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cai worked for Zhejiang Dong Da Ji Tuan Company (T8 A%
B2 7]), a company whose business involves the import and export
agency business, as an assistant manager in the business development
department responsible for metal scrap import business. He joined the
Group in May 2000.

Mr. Gan Jun (HE), aged 45, is the assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Manager of the Group. Mr. Gan joined our Group in
September 2007 and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He holds a diploma of Accountancy in Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FaR 8148 K 22). Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Gan worked as the financial manager and the assistant to the general
manager in Guangdong Gentle Technology Company Limited (& IEi&
B AR QE]), an information technology application provider ({2 8%
fiiT & FA AR 7% 78), for more than a year. Mr. Gan has extensive experience
in the accounting and finance field, and he is also a certified public
accountant and registered tax adviser in China.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EERSREEAEBER (&)

Mr. Xu Jialiang (10 R), aged 51, is the manager of the procurement
department of the Group and is primarily responsible for procuring raw
material supply of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the procurement of mixed metal
scrap. Mr. Xu has over 14 years of experience in mixed metal scrap
procurement.

Mr. Zhu Zhonghui (5 28), aged 36, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of the Group and is primarily responsible for the
sales management of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in December
1999 and was responsible for the selling of recycled metal products. Mr.
Zhu is the son-in-law of the elder brother of Mr. Fang Ankong.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group on page 91.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholder.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,229,433,000.

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$100,000 (2013: HK$392,003).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2014, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 11.82% (2013:
12.6%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
33.36% (2013: 32.9%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 30% of total revenue in 2014 and 2013.

Apart from Sims Metal Management Asia Limited which indirectly
held approximately 15.88% of the Company’s share capital and is the
Group's largest supplier, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their respective associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's other four
largest suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company and
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions are connected transactions
between the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company, of which some are ongoing. The Company has complied with
all the applicable requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the following transactions:

1. Continuing connected transactions in relation to

the master supply agreement for the purchase of
scrap metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V.
On 21 March 2012, the Company entered into the master supply
agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) with De Leeuw
Metalen B.V. (the “Supplier”), pursuant to which the relevant
member(s) of the Group may purchase from the Supplier certain
products including scrap metals at prevailing market prices during
the term between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2014. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and
the Supplier under the Master Supply Agreement in the relevant
financial years of the Company during the term are capped at the
following annual caps:

Relevant financial years of
the Company during the term
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the master supply agreement for the purchase
of scrap metals from De Leeuw Metalen B.V.
(continued)

As the Supplier is majority-owned by one of the sons of Mr.
Herman Maurits de Leeuw, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, the Supplier is an associate of a substantial shareholder
of the Company under Rule 14A.12(2)(b) of the Listing Rules and
hence a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Master Supply Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps were more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the Master Supply Agreement was subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but was exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transaction was carried out between the parties under the
Master Supply Agreement during the year (2013: HK$9.0 million).
The Master Supply Agreement expired on 31 December 2014 and
no new agreement was entered into by the two parties.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”)

In order to renew the existing arrangements under the old
master purchase agreement dated 16 February 2012 between
the Company and Sims Asia, on 28 March 2012, the Company
entered into the new master purchase agreement (the “New
Master Purchase Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to which
the relevant member(s) of Sims Asia, its subsidiaries and associates
(the “Sims Asia Group”) may purchase from the relevant
member(s) of the Group certain products including copper scrap
at prevailing market prices for the term of three years from 1 June
2012 to 31 May 2015. The aggregate values of the transactions
between the Group and the Sims Asia Group under the New
Master Purchase Agreement in the relevant periods during the
term are capped at the following annual caps:
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING BEEXRGRIFEBRERS (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”)
(continued)

Relevant periods during the term

RER K EB I

2. HEREHESims Metal Management
Asia Limited ([ Sims Asia]) BT £
BBz HERERS (F)

Annual caps

FEER

1 June 2012 — 31 December 2012

T A-HBE_ZT-——F+-A=+—H
1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013

2 =F—-R—HEZE—=F+=ZRA=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NFE—-A—HBE-_ZT—NF+-A=+—H
1 January 2015 - 31 May 2015
—E-hF—-A—HBE-T-AFAA=1+—H

Sims Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims Metal
Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) which held
approximately 15.88% of the issued share capital of the Company
when the New Master Purchase Agreement was entered
into. Therefore, Sims Asia was a substantial shareholder and
hence a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the New Master Purchase Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps are
more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the New
Master Purchase Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of
the Listing Rules and the New Master Purchase Agreement was
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transaction was carried out between the parties under the New
Master Purchase Agreement during the year (2013: nil).

On 26 January 2015, Sims entered into two conditional sale and
purchase agreements to dispose of its entire shareholding in the
Company to unrelated third parties, therefore, Sims Asia is no
longer a connected person to the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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US$81 million (approximately HK$628.1 million)
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US$45 million (approximately HK$349 million)
45,000,000 7T (% 349,000,000 /87T )
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase
of scrap metals from Sims Asia

In order to renew the then existing arrangements under the old
master supply agreement dated 16 January 2012 entered into
between the Company and Sims Asia, on 15 November 2012,
the Company entered into the new master supply agreement (the
“New Master Supply Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to
which the relevant member(s) of the Group may purchase from
the relevant member(s) of the Sims Asia Group certain products
including scrap metals at prevailing market prices for the term
of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and the
Sims Asia Group under the New Master Supply Agreement in
the relevant periods during the term are capped at the following
annual caps:

Relevant periods during the term
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EEEHE (H)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase

of scrap metals from Sims Asia (continued)

For the reasons set out in paragraph (2) above, Sims Asia was
a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the New Master Supply Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps were more than
5%, the transactions contemplated under the New Master
Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing
Rules. The New Master Supply Agreement was therefore
subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
scrap metals amounted to HK$524.7 million (2013: HK$853.1
million) was purchased from Sims Asia by the Group under the
New Master Supply Agreement during the year.

For the reasons set out in paragraph (2) above, Sims Asia is no
longer a connected person to the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Review by Independent Non-Executive Directors and
the auditor of the Company

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above not being
exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules have been reviewed
by the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In addition, the consultancy agreement dated 29 August 2008 entered
into between the Company and H.P.L. Metals B.V. expired on 28 August
2013 and no new agreement was entered into by the two parties.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of the
Report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
(Vice President) (resigned on 12 March 2015)
Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (resigned on 16 February 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Li Xikui (resigned on 17 December 2014)

Mr. Zhu Dajian (appointed on 17 December 2014)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Loke
Yu and Mr. Zhu Dajian shall retire from office, and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with Mr. Fang Ankong,
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (resigned on 12 March 2015), Mr. Gu
Liyong, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui (resigned on
17 December 2014) on 24 June 2013 for a period of three years. On 27
March 2012, the Company entered into another appointment letter with
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (resigned on 16 February 2015) for a term of 3
years commencing from 24 May 2012 to 23 May 2015. On 17 December
2014, the Company entered into an appointment letter with Mr. Zhu
Dajian for a term of 3 years commencing from 17 December 2014 to 16
December 2017. None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has any service
contract with the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the financial year ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors
has interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme which were
adopted on 23 June 2010.

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under
which the Company has conditionally granted options to certain
Directors, executives and employees of the Group to purchase
shares of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer
price as defined in the Prospectus.

The total number of shares in respect of which share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2014 was 12,140,000 shares which represented
approximately 1.16% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2014.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2014, details of the share option granted

BREsTE (&)

BRDRABEMNBRESTS (8)
E’:‘:f mE+—A=1—8 " RE&

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: RNFBER IR 2R H A ER
%%FWT:
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
Exercisable tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise period  options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per (dd/mm/yyyy) 1January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  H=F-ME  Approximate
(Note?)  share Note2) M=Z-mE during during duing T=ZA=1+-H  percentage
RHAH (HKS) %8 -B-AHA the year the year theyear  H&{THZ shareholdings
Grantees (B/R/%) BRIRE (B/B/%) GEzBRES ERREL ERTR FR%R BRESRZ R
ERA (MzE1) (&) (f2)  ReRHEE BREHE BREHE BREHE RHEE BREMH
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Fang Ankong 23/06/2010 243 1300772013 - 12/07/2014 1,400,000 0 1,400,000 0 0 -
FEERE “3-%% ZR-CErATEAE
PR = “E-RELATZA
Mr. Stephanus 23/06/2010 243 1300772013 - 12/07/2014 400,000 0 400,000 0 0 -
Mariavan Qollen ~ —Z-%% ZF-EtAt=RE
(resigned on ~AZTZR ZE-RECATIA
12 March 2015)
Stephanus Maria van
Qoijen %4
(R=%F-1F
=At-EER)
Mr. Gu Liyong 230062010 243 1300712013 - 120712014 170,000 0 170,000 0 0 -
FEX P o3-%E CR-CECATEAE
PR = “E-RELATZA
1,970,000 0 1,970,000 0 0 -
(i) Employees and 23/06/2010 243 1300772013 - 12/07/2014 2,608,000 0 2,008,000 600,000 0 -
otherparticipants ~ ~3—%F “F--FtAt-AZ
EEREMZEE  RAZT=R ZZ-RELATIA
Total &% 4,578,000 0 3,978,000 600,000 0 -

SATHARARED —% mreH



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date of the
first anniversary of the date when the shares of the Company
were first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) to
the date of the second anniversary of the Listing Date (both
days inclusive);

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the date of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date to the date of the third anniversary of the
Listing Date (both days inclusive); and

(iii) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the date of the third anniversary of
the Listing Date to the date of the fourth anniversary of the
Listing Date (both days inclusive).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010, which was
approved by the shareholders’ written resolutions, is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years. It is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
its discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee,
advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer,
agent, business partner, joint venture business partner, promoter,
service provider of any member of the Group.

Pursuant to the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23 May
2013 and the approval granted by the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange, the scheme mandate limit in respect of which
share options may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is refreshed and not permitted to exceed 104,449,920
shares, representing 9.95% of the total number of shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2014.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a
general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value
of a Share.

BREsTE (&)

(b)

BRAHBRERBRETE
ARRRZZE—TF XA+ =HEHR
BRAREERERERTE([ERXAH
BERBRERE])  ZArEIKRERE
FRBZRIE - BRI A 10F - ZBR
EETEIR —TERGOREFE - BEET
MRAIEER2E AT QLA REH R
SEEHNER - REE XA AREER
BRRET S EEgRERASET
AR EABINEIMES - ES - BH -
ERER - HLEE - AW - fHEy -
PR EBRY - AEREAE
B ARA REBEEERRHER
TE o

BEARA-_ZT-—=FAA_1+=08
REBHASREIMETZE8GRY
it - EREE R AFHRERERE
BT IR RN SR EREEE
TS5 104,449,920 % HHE R
ARARIRZZE—NMF+—_A=+—HH
A& 15 48 8059 9.95% ©

HEBL AP+ -BEARNETEER
BEBS2BATREERAAFAEERE
PR T 1 Py 7 15 P AR e T B3 1T R P BT
IR B ECTSAR L A BB BT
MHI1% ° BEIMNZHABIBZ 1% ERAE
B E NN N

RIBERARBERBIRESSMED
#0115l BB B i M0 AR R AR D R (B
TRINTI=FZ&=E  ()VERH
B () R X P8 B RER TR
B (i RNEZERRE M AERS
AR P B RERREHERNF
BE (i) REE °

SRS



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2014, details of the share option granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

BREsTE (&)

BRDRABRERBRESTS ()
RZZE—NE+ZA=+—8  #REH
RARBEERBIMET S AL MER

ST
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) ~price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-ME  Approximate
(Note )~ share period  H-E-DF during during during +ZA=+-H  percentage
RHEAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy)  —A-RHK the year the year theyear  H&{TEZ shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) BRARE ks fkzBRES FREL ERfTE FR&R BRESRZ b
BEA (0 (8n) (B/B/%) RzeBRB®E  BREHE  BRENE  BREEA Rt#E  BNESH
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Fang Ankong 03/05/2011 6.388 04052013 -03/052014 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
FREEE 3 “Z--¥nAmAZ
1A=H ZF-P5RA=A
(Note 5) 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 6,600,000 0 0 0 6,600,000 0.62891%
(FtsEs) ZZ-MELANAE
“2-1%RAZA
(Note 2)
iE)
11,550,000 0 0 4,950,000 6,600,000 0.62891%
221032013 375 22032014 -21/03/2017 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
5 “E-MEZfoRE
“A=t-A eSS ) =
(Note 6) 22/03/2015 - 2110312017 4,950,000 0 0 4,950,000 0 -
(Mize) S =
I Yy
22103/2016 - 21/03/2017 6,600,000 0 0 6,600,000 0 -
ZR-REZAZTZHEE
eSS ) =
(Note 4)
(HzE4)
16,500,000 0 0 16,500,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Hizte)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETEE)
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-MF  Approximate
(Note )~ share period ~ W=E-IF during during during TZA=t+-H  percentage
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear  H&{TEZ shareholdings
Grantees (8/B/%) BRARE Rl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY BREYRZ ki
ERA (Rt 1) (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BREHE BREHE RH%E R
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Stephanus 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2013 - 03/052014 300,000 0 0 300,000 0 -
Mariavan Qollen ~ —F——F% “E-=FnAmAZ
(resigned on 12 RAZA Z5-MERA=A
March 2015) (Note 5) 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 0.03812%
Stephanus Mariavan ~ (ffE£5) “5-MERANAZ
Qoijen £ “E-nERAZA
(R=%-1F (Note 2)
ZRTZHEE) (f3k2)
700,000 0 0 300,000 400,000 0.03812%
2210312013 375 220032014 - 2110312017 600,000 0 0 600,000 0 -
. ZE-MEZAZTZAZ
ZAztzR I )
(Note 6) 2210312015 - 21/03/2017 600,000 0 0 600,000 0 -
(Htze) ZF-RFSACTCRE
“E-+F-fA-1-A
2210312016 - 21/03/2017 800,000 0 0 800,000 0 -
TE-REZACTIRZ
I )
(Note )
(Hista)
2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Mite)
BEaXitEEBERAR



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETEE)
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-MF  Approximate
(Note )~ share period ~ W=E-IF during during during TZA=t+-H  percentage
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear  H&{TEZ shareholdings
Grantees (8/B/%) BRARE Rl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY BREYRZ ki
ERA (Rt 1) (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BREHE BREHE RH%E R
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Gu Liyong 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2013 - 03/052014 262,500 0 0 262,500 0 -
E2ELE “E-E ZE-ZELANAZ
TA=A “T-RERAZA
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 350,000 0 0 0 350,000 0.03335%
“E-MERAMAZ
“E-nERAZA
(Note 2)
(Hst2)
612,500 0 0 262,500 350,000 0.03335%
2210312013 375 220032014 - 2110312017 195,000 0 0 195,000 0 -
. ZE-MEZAZTZAZ
ZAztzR I )
(Note 6) 2210312015 - 21/03/2017 195,000 0 0 195,000 0 -
(HtiEe) ZE-RECACTCRE
“E-+F-fA-1-A
2210312016 - 21/03/2017 260,000 0 0 260,000 0 -
TE-REZACTIRZ
I )
(Note )
(Hista)
650,000 0 0 650,000 0 -
(Note 6)
(Mite)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETEE)
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Exercise options as at options options options 2014
price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-MF  Approximate
share period ~ W=E-IF during during during t=A=t-H  percentage
(HKS) (dd/mmiyyy)  —B-BEx the year the year theyear  H&{TfEZ shareholdings
Grantees (8/B/%) BRARE Rl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY BREYRZ ki
ERA (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BREHE BREHE RH%E R
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Dr. Loke Yu 6.388  04/05/2013 - 03/052014 45,000 0 0 45,000 0 -
BT ZE-ZELANAZ
“T-RERAZA
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00572%
“E-MERAMAZ
“E-nERAZA
(Note 2)
(Hst2)
105,000 0 0 45,000 60,000 0.00572%
4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00214%
ZF-CEZACTN\RE
ZR-REZACTHA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00214%
ZR-REZAZT)\BE
ZR-REZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00286%
ZE-REZACTN\RE
ZR-REZACTHA
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
75,000 0 0 0 75,000 0.00714%

SRS



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

BREETE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETS(E)
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Exercise options as at options options options 2014
price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-MF  Approximate
share period ~ W=E-IF during during during t=A=t-H  percentage
(HKS) (dd/mmiyyy)  —B-BEx the year the year theyear  H&{TfEZ shareholdings
Grantees (8/B/%) BRARE Rl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY BREYRZ ki
ERA (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BREHE BREHE RH%E R
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong 6.388  04/05/2013 - 03/052014 45,000 0 0 45,000 0 -
EHRRL ZE-ZELANAZ
“T-RERAZA
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 0.00572%
“E-MERAMAZ
“E-nERAZA
(Note 2)
(Hst2)
105,000 0 0 45,000 60,000 0.00572%
4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00214%
ZF-CEZACTN\RE
ZR-REZACTHA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 22,500 0.00214%
ZR-REZAZT)\BE
ZR-REZACTHA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0.00286%
ZE-REZACTN\RE
ZR-REZACTHA
(Note 3)
(M3E3)
75,000 0 0 0 75,000 0.00714%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

B RrEsTEl ()
(b) ERABIRERMBRETE (M)

Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-MF  Approximate
(Note )~ share period ~ W=E-IF during during during TZA=t+-H  percentage
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear  H&{TEZ shareholdings
Grantees (8/B/%) BRARE 8 TRZEREYS EREY ERTRE FRER BREVRZ RE
ERA (Rt 1) (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BREHA BREHA BREHE RH%E R
(i) Directors (continued)
22(8)
Mr. Li Xikui 03/05/2011 6388 04/05/2013 - 03/05/2014 45,000 0 0 0 0 -
(resigned on 17 —F-F “E-ERAMAZE (Note 7)
December 2014) 1A=H “T-REFRAZA (M&E7)
hERE 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 0 0 -
(A=Z-mE “E-NERAMAZE (Note 7)
TZATLRER) “2-14RA=A (RsE7)
(Note 2)
(Psk2)
105,000 0 0 0 0 -
(Note 7) (Note 7)
(M&7) (R3E7)
2810312012 418 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 0 -
It 3 TE-ZEZACT/\RE (Note 7)
ZAZ1/\H ZE-REZACTHA (R3E7)
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 0 0 0 -
ZE-MEZAZT\RE (Note 7)
ZE-REZACTHA iG]
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 0 0 0 -
ZE-REZACT/\RE (Note 7)
ZE-REZACTHA (RsE7)
(Note 3)
(PsE3)
75,000 0 0 0 0 -
(Note 7)
(Hizt7)
32,552,500 0 0 24,752,500 7,620,000 0.72610%
(Note 7) (Note 7)

(P3E7) GEN)

ST



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BXRAMBRERBRETEE)
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding
shares subject options as at
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2014
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-ME  Approximate
(Note 1)~ share period ~ W=E-IF during during during TZA=t+-H percentage
RiAH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy) —A-AEE the year the year theyear  H&{TEZ shareholdings
Grantees (B/B/%) BRARE Rkl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY  BREYRZ ki
ERA (Rt 1) (#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BHREHE BREHE RH#E R
(i) Employees and 221092010 338 23/092013 - 22/092014 1,428,000 0 852,000 576,000 0 -
other participants ~ ~E-%& ZE-ZENAZTZRR
EERAMZEE  NAZTZR “E-MERAZTCA
(Note 2)
(BzE2)
03/05/2011 6388 04/05/2013 - 03/0522014 3,381,000 0 0 3,426,000 0 -
—5—-F “E--ERAMRZE (Note 7)
RA=R “E-MERAZA (Bit7)
04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 4,508,000 0 0 388,000 4,180,000 0.39831%
“Z-MELAMAZ (Note 7)
“Z-n§nA=A (P3E7)
(Note 2)
(Mit2)
7,889,000 0 0 3,814,000 4,180,000 0.39831%
(Note 7) (Note 7)
i) (Hst7)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREsTE (&)

(b) BEXRDMABRERBRESTS (H)

Number of

shares subject

Number of to outstanding

shares subject options as at

tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December

Exercise options as at options options options 2014
price per Exercisable 1January 2014 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-ME  Approximate
share period ~ W=E-IF during during during t=A=t-B  percentage
(HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy)  —B-BEx the year the year theyear  H&{TfE2 shareholdings
(B/B/%) BRARE Rkl fRzBRES EREH ERfTE ERiY  BREYRZ ki
(#7m) (B/R/%) RzKRHEA BHREHE BHREHE BREHE RH#E R
4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 3,163,500 0 0 381,000 2,805,000 0.26728%

“E-CESACT\RE (Note 7)

“F-EZACTHA (Hf&E7)
EERAMBRE(B) 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 3,163,500 0 0 381,000 2,805,000 0.26728%

ZE-REZAZ/\RE (Note 7)

ZT-REZAZTHA (HzE7)
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 4,218,000 0 0 508,000 3,740,000 0.35639%

ZE-REZACT/\RE (Note 7)

“F-EZACTHA (Hf&E7)

(Note 3)
(HzE3)

10,545,000 0 0 1,270,000 9,350,000 0.89095%

(Note 7)

(R3E7)
19,862,000 0 852,000 5,660,000 13,530,000 1.28926%

(Note 7) (Note 7)

(M&E7) (H3E7)
52,414,500 0 852,000 30412500 21,150,000 2.01536%

SRS



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Date of
Grant”).

(2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the first
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date of the second
anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days inclusive);

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the second anniversary of the Date
of Grant to the date of the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive); and

(iii) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
immediately following the third anniversary of the Date of
Grant to the date of the fourth anniversary of the Date of
Grant (both days inclusive).

(3) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2013, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the date of the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2014, to the date immediately
before the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27
March 2016 (both dates inclusive); and

(iii)  as to 40%, from the date of the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2015, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March
2016 (both dates inclusive).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to

exercise:

(i) as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2014, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21 March

2017 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the date of the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2015, to the date immediately
before the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21

March 2017 (both dates inclusive); and

(i) as to 40%, from the date of the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 22 March 2016, to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 21 March

2017 (both dates inclusive).

(5) The 16,500,000 share options and 1,000,000 share options
were granted to each of Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) and Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Ooijen”) on 3 May 2011
subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group
for the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2011
is equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition
has not been met and therefore the share options granted to Mr.
Fang and Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011 have not been duly vested
and are not exercisable. Notwithstanding this, these share options
should be taken into account for the purpose of determining
whether the limits under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules are

exceeded.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(6) The 16,500,000 share options, 2,000,000 share options and
650,000 share options were granted to each of Mr. Fang, Mr. van
Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong (“Mr. Gu") on 22 March 2013 subject
to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group for the
financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2013 is equal to
or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been
met and therefore the share options granted to Mr. Fang, Mr. van
Ooijen and Mr. Gu on 22 March 2013 were automatically lapsed on
the publication date of the final results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

(7) Mr. Li Xikui resigned as Director on 17 December 2014 and was
retained as consultant of the Group. His interest in share options to
subscribe for 135,000 shares of the Company was reclassified under
the category of “Employees and other participants”.

Save as disclosed above, no options were granted, cancelled or
lapsed as at 31 December 2014. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i)  Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

EmiiE
EERIBTRABREAAAREABE
B - RO RESHESRKA

RIB-NFE+-_A=+—H ARREFK
TRITRABRARBSEEEBER (E
EA(EHF LB ERID(EFRAEGD]) S
XV &) ity ~ B R EFTHE A RE
ARERES L REERIFEI2ZIFAETEENE
O R PR SRSk AR I L T AR AUM 8%+ Pt T
BITAERETERRZHRESTRI([1R2ET
AN BARMEARBREEBHEIHMERAT]
(TBEZZ AT ) BB SOA B AN T -

() BRORIEEREHFE

Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
interested interested interested in the Company
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest HEERN FEEEN BEEEN  ERDERE
EZEB 5/ BEME ROBE  HEROHE RABH  HELEI
Mr. Fang Ankong Beneficial owner 7,014,000 6,600,000 13,614,000
HRZERE BREAA (Note 1)
(FsE1)
Interest in controlled corporations 318,905,265 31,266,667 350,171,932
REEHIAE 2 #R (Note 2) (Note 2)
(P3E2) (MizE2)
Interest of the other parties to 282,594,745 138,575,536 421,170,281
an agreement under section (Note 3) (Note 3)
317 of the SFO GEE) (BE3)
BHRBEHRIENTIET B
HeT A PsE s
Total: 83t : 784,956,213 74.80%

SRS



EEEHE (H)

Directors’ Report (continued)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

(i)

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued)

EERE ()

EERTIETBRABREQATREEEE
EmMyRe HERORESHESRKXR

(&)

() BRORIEBRIFE - (F)

Number of Total  Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares  shareholding
interested interested interested in the Company
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest HEERN FEEEN HEERN  ERRERE
EZEB 5/ BEME ROBE  HERHHE ROLE  HHREIL
Mr. Stephanus Beneficial owner 700,000 400,000 1,100,000
Maria van Ooijen ELBEBA (Note 4)
(resigned on (FizE4)
12 March 2015)
Stephanus Maria van Interest in controlled corporations 115,197,991 52,100,000 167,297,991
Ooijen 4 S e (Note 5) (Note 5)
(AZT—hfF (F#3E5) (BEs5)
ZAT-HEE)
Interest of the other parties to 492,616,019 123,942,203 616,558,222
an agreement under section (Note 6) (Note 6)
317 of the SFO (F3zt6) (PiE6)
EFRAEEOIEITET RS
HRTRR s 2 B
Total: 4t 784,956,213 74.80%
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner 425,000 350,000 775,000 0.07%
BEERE EHBEAA (Note 7)
(Ftzx7)
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner - 135,000 135,000 0.01%
Lty ERBAA (Note 8)
(Fizx8)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong Beneficial owner - 135,000 135,000 0.01%
BHRIL ERBAA (Note 9)
(BzE9)
Mr. Li Xikui Beneficial owner - 135,000 135,000 0.01%
(resigned on 17 ELBEEA (Note 10)
December 2014) (KizE10)
FHERE
(RZZ—mF

TZATEBERE)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation

(continued)
(i) Short positions in Shares:

emiE ()
EERIBTRABREAAAREABE
EHRG  ERERORESNERRKA

(&)

(i)

BREVKE -

Approximate

Number of percentage
Shares shareholding
interested in the Company
Name of Director Capacity/Natureof Interest HEERMN IEARRD R RAE
Ex£H 5/ il RDEE HERE DL
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
ARERE agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 11)
BHREEERMNE N7 ET RS (BF5E11)
HAETH T PIFs A 2 e
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
(resigned on 12 March 2015) REEGEE 2 (Note 11)
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %t 4 (B¥3E11)
(RZZE—RF=ATZHEHE)
Long positions in debentures of the Company: (i) K EJEFHIIFE -

(i)

Principal amount of
the debentures held

FREES2EeH

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest (HK$)
EEEB B REtE (BT)
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporations 187,600,000
FRESRE PR HEE 2 (Note 12)
(MIEE12)

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Interest in controlled corporations 312,600,000
(resigned on 12 March 2015) RZAEHDNER 2w (Note 13)
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %t 4 (PFFEE13)

(RZZE—RF=ATHEHE)

SRS



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes:

(1

Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) was granted Share Options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for 3,500,000 Shares and 49,500,000 Shares, respectively. Mr.
Fang exercised Share Options to subscribe for 1,050,000 Shares on 18
May 2012. 1,050,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang on 23 June 2010
have not been exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 13
July 2013. Two batches of 4,950,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang
on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in the exercisable periods and
were lapsed on 4 May 2013 and 4 May 2014, respectively. 16,500,000
Share Options were granted to Mr. Fang on each of 28 March 2012 and
22 March 2013 subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the
Group for the financial years of the Company ended 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2013, respectively, is equal to or exceeds 130% of the
net profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2010. As
the aforesaid condition has not been met and therefore the two batches
of 16,500,000 Share Options granted to Mr. Fang on 28 March 2012
and 22 March 2013 were automatically lapsed on 21 March 2013 and 20
March 2014, respectively. Mr. Fang exercised Share Options to subscribe
for 1,400,000 Shares on 18 June 2014.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2) 318,905,265 Shares are held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH")
as beneficial owner and HWH is wholly-owned by Mr. Fang. On 1
March 2012, the Company issued a three-year 4% coupon convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$815,800,000 entitling the holders thereof to convert into Shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$6.00 per Share, subject to adjustments,
and HWH subscribed for the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$187,600,000. Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 16
January 2013 entered into between, among others, HWH and Greenwoods
China Alpha Master Fund (“Greenwoods”), an independent third party,
HWH has, on 16 January 2013, transferred part of its Convertible
Bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (“Option Bonds”) to
Greenwoods and Greenwoods has granted a call option (“Call Option”)
in favour of HWH to purchase all or part of the Option Bonds on the
same day. The 31,266,667 underlying Shares comprise (i) 11,266,667
underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner which fall to be
issued to HWH upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (ii)
20,000,000 underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner which
Greenwoods is obliged to deliver to HWH upon exercise of the Call Option
by HWH. Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 350,171,932 Shares held by his controlled corporations.
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() HAFEEEEHESBZHWH Holdings Limited
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Alpha Master Fund ([ Greenwoods|) R =%
—=F—A+BFTUNEEHZE  HWH
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

©)

Mr. Fang, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Ooijen”), Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw"”), HWH, Delco Participation B.V.
(“Delco”), Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims"”) and
Sims Metal Management Asia Limited (“Sims Asia”) are considered having
entered into an agreement under section 317 of the SFO. The 282,594,745
Shares comprise (i) 700,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial
owner; (i) 115,197,991 Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner; and (iii)
166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 138,575,536
underlying Shares comprise (i) 400,000 underlying Shares held by Mr. van
Qoijen as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 4 below; (i) 52,100,000
underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; (iii) 20,837,095
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged
to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Sims upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441
underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued
to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. Fang is
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 421,170,281 Shares held by
the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) Mr. van Ooijen was granted Share Options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 1,000,000
Shares and 5,000,000 Shares, respectively. Mr. van Ooijen exercised
Share Options to subscribe for 300,000 Shares on 18 May 2012. 300,000
Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen on 23 June 2010 have not been
exercised in the exercisable period and were lapsed on 13 July 2013. Two
batches of 300,000 Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May
2011 have not been exercised in the exercisable periods and were lapsed
on 4 May 2013 and 4 May 2014, respectively. 2,000,000 Share Options
were granted to Mr. van Ooijen on each of 28 March 2012 and 22 March
2013 subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the Group
for the financial years of the Company ended 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2013, respectively, is equal to or exceeds 130% of the net
profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2010. As
the aforesaid condition has not been met and therefore the two batches
of 2,000,000 Share Options granted to Mr. van Ooijen on 28 March 2012
and 22 March 2013 were automatically lapsed on 21 March 2013 and
20 March 2014, respectively. Mr. van Ooijen exercised Share Options to
subscribe for 400,000 Shares on 11 July 2014.

(5) 115,197,991 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner and Delco is
indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. The 52,100,000 underlying
Shares represent such number of underlying Shares which fall to be issued
to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Therefore, Mr. van
Qoijen is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 167,297,991 Shares
held by his controlled corporations.
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HWHS50% ZDelcotE BEZHBARFE °
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B o Bt ' van Ooijen e EWR AR B EZE
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(6) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 492,616,019 Shares comprise (i) 7,014,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as
beneficial owner; and (i) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial
owner. The 123,942,203 underlying Shares comprise (i) 6,600,000
underlying Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner as referred to in
Note 1 above; (ii) 31,266,667 underlying Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner as referred to in Note 2 above; (i) 20,837,095 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims
upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (iv) 52,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (v) 12,638,441 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full
conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 616,558,222 Shares held by the other parties

to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.
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(V)ESIimstEREREE ARG BN RIRERE
TER B A B M ASEE 1T T Sims Y 12,638,441
RARRARE D © FLE - van Ooijen 5t £ 48 A
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

(8

(10)

Mr. Gu Liyong (“Mr. Gu"”) was granted Share Options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for 425,000 Shares and 2,175,000 Shares, respectively. Mr. Gu exercised
Share Options to subscribe for 127,500 Shares and 127,500 Shares on 18
May 2012 and 14 May 2013, respectively. Two batches of 262,500 Share
Options granted to Mr. Gu on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in
the exercisable periods and were lapsed on 4 May 2013 and 4 May 2014,
respectively. 650,000 Share Options were granted to Mr. Gu on each
of 28 March 2012 and 22 March 2013 subject to the vesting condition
that the net profit of the Group for the financial years of the Company
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, respectively, is equal
to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition has not been met
and therefore the two batches of 650,000 Share Options granted to Mr.
Gu on 28 March 2012 and 22 March 2013 were automatically lapsed on
21 March 2013 and 20 March 2014, respectively. Mr. Gu exercised Share
Options to subscribe for 170,000 Shares on 18 June 2014.

Dr. Loke Yu (“Dr. Loke") was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. Two batches of
45,000 Share Options granted to Dr. Loke on 3 May 2011 have not been
exercised in the exercisable periods and were lapsed on 4 May 2013 and 4
May 2014 respectively.

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (“Ms. Zhang”) was granted Share Options under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. Two
batches of 45,000 Share Options granted to Ms. Zhang on 3 May 2011
have not been exercised in the exercisable periods and were lapsed on 4
May 2013 and 4 May 2014 respectively.

Mr. Li Xikui (“Mr. Li") was granted Share Options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for 225,000 Shares. Two batches of 45,000
Share Options granted to Mr. Li on 3 May 2011 have not been exercised in
the exercisable periods and were lapsed on 4 May 2013 and 4 May 2014
respectively.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporation
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(11)  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 17 January 2012 entered
into between, among others, Delco and Sims, Delco has granted a call
option (the “Option”) in favour of Sims in respect of 20,837,095 Shares,
subject to adjustments (the “Option Shares”). The short position in respect
of 20,837,095 Shares represent the number of the Option Shares which
Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims. Mr.
van Ooijen is deemed to have the same short position as Delco since Delco
is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. Mr. Fang is also deemed to
have the same short position as Delco since Mr. Fang and Delco are parties
to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO referred to in Notes 3 and
6 above.

(12)  This represents the aggregate of (i) the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds of HK$67,600,000 held by HWH as at 31 December 2014; and (ii)
the principal amount of the Option Bonds of HK$120,000,000 held by
Greenwoods (in which HWH is deemed to be interested by virtue of the Call
Option as referred to in Note 2 above), by virtue of which HWH is deemed
to be interested in 31,266,667 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes
2 and 6 above. Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in the same principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds as HWH since HWH is wholly-owned by
Mr. Fang.

(13)  This represents the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds subscribed
by Delco, by virtue of which Delco is deemed to be interested in
52,100,000 underlying Shares as referred to in Notes 3 and 5 above. Mr.
van Ooijen is deemed to be interested in the same principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds as Delco since Delco is indirectly 50%-owned by Mr. van
Ooijen.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEZgWmE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) R E (E)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRRA R ARG RAEBERGHE
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company BRRE

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the RZ-Z—NF+_-_A=+—H BAQAI=SE
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, RFZITHABSN - LT ATRAR TR K&
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in  #HEARR ) A EREE S NS KM 336
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as &8 7178 2 & 50 FTER 8RO 25 A A 10

follows: T
(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: () R RIBER (D EILEE -
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
interested interested interested  in the Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BRERN HFRERN BEEEN AN RE
BREH aip/EHiE Re#E RERGHE BeaH =R
HWH Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 318,905,265 31,266,667 350,171,932
EREEA (Note 1) (Note 1)
(1) (Fst1)
Interest of the other parties to 289,608,745 145,175,536 434,784,281
an agreement under section (Note 2) (Note 2)
317 of the SFO (Fizz2) (Mt2)
BRRAEHIE TR T
BTN FHA RS
Total: &3t : 784,956,213 74.80%
Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 115,197,991 52,100,000 167,297,991
ERBEA (Note 3) (Note 3)
(Mx3) (M3E3)
Interest of the other parties to 493,316,019 124,342,203 617,658,222
an agreement under section (Note 4) (Note 4)
317 of the SFO (FzE4) (Ftita)
BERBERAIZT KT HE
BT OS2
Total: 45t : 784,956,213 74.80%

SRS



EEEHE (H)

Directors’ Report (continued)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares. (continued)

rEHRE ()

FTERRRADBHRAD R EER G #

BmRKRE (E)

() BROOREEREAHE - (&)

Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
interested interested interested  in the Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREN BERERN BEREN AR FRE
BRREH 5/ REKE RHB8AE HERHHE RAEE N
Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 115,197,991 52,100,000 167,297,991
Herman Maurits de Leeuw %4 REEHEE 2 R (Notes 3&5) (Notes 3&5)
(M3 R5) (MzE3R5)
Interest of the other parties to 493,316,019 124,342,203 617,658,222
an agreement under section (Notes 4 & 5) (Notes 4 & 5)
317 of the SFO (M4 RS5) (M3EaRs)
BERHEENENTET HiE
EMETA AR A 2R
Total: 425t : 784,956,213 74.80%
SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
PRSI 2 R (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(W3- 4ks)  (W3E3-4R5)
H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
REEHEE s (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes 3,4 &5)
(M3 4R5) (W3- 4R5)
Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
H.P.L. Metals REEHEE B (Notes3,4&5)  (Notes3,4&5)
(M3 4R5) (W3 -4R5)
Sims Metal Management Beneficial owner 166,696,754 86,075,536 252,772,290
Dragon Holdings Limited EXBAA (Note 6) (Note 6)
(Mze) (MizEe)
Interest of the other parties to 441,817,256 90,366,667 532,183,923
an agreement under section (Note 7) (Note 7)
317 of the SFO (HHE7) (H37)
EARBERNENTET B
BTN RIRE R
Total: 425t : 784,956,213 74.80%
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EEEHE (H)

Directors’ Report (continued)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

emiE ()
TERFRRAD TR RARBR G K&
HRKA ()

(continued)
() Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: (continued) () RO RIEERGFE (&)
Number of Total Approximate
Number of underlying number of percentage
Shares Shares Shares shareholding
interested interested interested  in the Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREN BERERN BEREN AR FRE
BREH g/ ERHE i HERAEE RiEH Y
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
China Holdings Limited REEHZE 2 Ex (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes6, 7 &8)
(Frite-7R8)  (Mik6 7R8)
Sims Metal Management Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
Asia Limited WEEHEE 2 R (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes 6, 7 &8)
(6 7R8) (M6 7X8)
Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 608,514,010 176,442,203 784,956,213 74.80%
R EHEE 2 (Notes6,7&8)  (Notes 6, 7 &8)
(W6 7k8)  (Wst6 7%8)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 175,197,990 - 175,197,990 16.69%
E=mEEA (Note 9)
(Miz9)
Mr. Cai Huabo Interest in controlled corporations 175,197,990 - 175,197,990 16.69%
Cai Huabo 2 REEEE 2 B (Note 9)
Gipd))

ST



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

emiE ()
TERFRAD TR RARBR G K&
HRKA ()

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

m Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

HAMETATIFris A 2 sk

Annual Report 2014

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (i) 1EER G EAE -

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage

Shares shareholding in

interested the Company

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEERN EARATRAE

BRREHB g,/ EEtE HEROHE HEANES L

Delco Participation B.V. Beneficial owner 20,837,095 1.99%
EnEEA (Note 10)
(FrzE 10)

HWH Holdings Limited Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 10)
EHEREBERMNE N7 ET RS (BF3E10)

HAETHH PRFs A 2 am

Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Herman Maurits de Leeuw 4t 4 NG EE s (Notes 5 & 10)
(HizE5 % 10)

SVO Company B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REIEH AR 2 s (Notes 5 & 10)
(Fft55 % 10)

H.P.L. Metals B.V. Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEHNEE 2 #Em (Notes 5 & 10)
(i35 & 10)

Stichting Beheer Aandelen Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
H.P.L. Metals RRZHER 2 s (Notes 5 & 10)
(MizE5 K 10)

Sims Metal Management Dragon Interest of the other parties to an 20,837,095 1.99%
Holdings Limited agreement under section 317 of the SFO (Note 10)
EHFREERIENTE T = (fiFEE10)



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

emiE ()
TERFRAD TR RARBR G K&
HRKA ()

(i) Short positions in underlying Shares: (continued) (i) HEERGEAE - (&)
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
Shares shareholding in
interested the Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEERN EARATRAE
BRREHB g,/ EEtE HEROHE HEANES L
Sims Metal Management China Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
Holdings Limited RRAEHAE 2 s (Notes 8 & 10)
(HizE8 & 10)
Sims Metal Management Asia Limited Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEFER 2 #w (Notes 8 & 10)
(Fi7E8 % 10)
Sims Metal Management Limited Interest in controlled corporations 20,837,095 1.99%
REEHNEE 2 (Notes 8 & 10)
(Pt 8 % 10)
Notes: P E -

Q)] 318,905,265 Shares are held by HWH as beneficial owner. The 31,266,667
underlying Shares comprise (i) 11,266,667 underlying Shares held by HWH
as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to HWH upon full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds; and (ii) 20,000,000 underlying Shares held by
HWH as beneficial owner which Greenwoods is obliged to deliver to HWH
upon exercise of the Call Option by HWH as referred to in Note 2 under
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and
Its Associated Corporation” above.

HWHE&E &= # B A35H 318,905,265 R AR
1 ° 31,266,667 R ABRAAR (D £ 1 () BB HWH /B
AERBAAFEEERABRRESFERHA
HEMBEITTHWHAEY 11,266,667 IAERIAX
% R EX[EEREZTHRABRAEAQR
REAEBSEABA R, « BEERGN RESAE
MR B | —ERBEE 2 B a7 HWH 17 {3 32 % 27
##1% - Greenwoods A& IR FHWH B
HWH{ERE @B AFFAR) 20,000,000 A4
BARR(D -

SRS



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 289,608,745 Shares comprise (i) 7,014,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 700,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 115,197,991 Shares held by Delco as beneficial
owner; and (iv) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner. The
145,175,536 underlying Shares comprise (i) 6,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (i) 400,000 underlying Shares held
by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 52,100,000 underlying Shares
held by Delco as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Delco upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; (iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims
upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (v) 52,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (vi) 12,638,441 underlying
Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims
upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, HWH is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 434,784,281 Shares held by the other parties

to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

(3) 115,197,991 Shares are held by Delco as beneficial owner. The 52,100,000
underlying Shares represent such number of underlying Shares which fall
to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 493,316,019 Shares comprise (i) 7,014,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 700,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner; and (iv) 166,696,754 Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner.
The 124,342,203 underlying Shares comprise (i) 6,600,000 underlying
Shares held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 400,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667 underlying
Shares held by HWH as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 1 above;
(iv) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which
Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise of the Option by Sims; (v)
52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall
to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds; and (vi)
12,638,441 underlying Shares held by Sims as beneficial owner which fall
to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the Warrants. Therefore, Delco
is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 617,658,222 Shares held by
the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the SFO.

(5) Delco is 50%-owned by each of SVO Company B.V. (“SVO") and H.P.L.
Metals B.V. (“HPL"). SVO is wholly-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. HPL is
wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals (“Stichting
HPL"), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. de Leeuw. Therefore, each
of SVO, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HPL and Stichting HPL is deemed to
be interested in the long positions and short positions held by and through
Delco.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

6)

166,696,754 Shares are held by Sims as beneficial owner. The 86,075,536
underlying Shares comprise (i) 20,837,095 underlying Shares held by Sims
as beneficial owner which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise
of the Option by Sims; (i) 52,600,000 underlying Shares held by Sims as
beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds; and (iii) 12,638,441 underlying Shares held by Sims as
beneficial owner which fall to be issued to Sims upon full conversion of the
Warrants.

Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. de Leeuw, HWH, Delco, Sims and Sims Asia
are considered having entered into an agreement under section 317 of
the SFO. The 441,817,256 Shares comprise (i) 7,014,000 Shares held by
Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (ii) 700,000 Shares held by Mr. van Ooijen
as beneficial owner; (iii) 318,905,265 Shares held by HWH as beneficial
owner; and (iv) 115,197,991 Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner. The
90,366,667 underlying Shares comprise (i) 6,600,000 underlying Shares
held by Mr. Fang as beneficial owner; (i) 400,000 underlying Shares held
by Mr. van Ooijen as beneficial owner; (iii) 31,266,667 underlying Shares
held by HWH as beneficial owner as referred to in Note 1 above; and (iv)
52,100,000 underlying Shares held by Delco as beneficial owner which
fall to be issued to Delco upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
Therefore, Sims is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 532,183,923
Shares held by the other parties to an agreement under section 317 of the
SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(8)  Sims is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sims Metal Management China
Holdings Limited (“SMM China”), which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sims Asia. Sims Asia is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sims
Metal Management Limited (“SMM"). Therefore, each of SMM, SMM
China and Sims Asia is deemed to be interested in the long positions and
short positions held by and through Sims.

9) 175,197,990 Shares are held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai
Security”) as beneficial owner and Tai Security is wholly-owned by Mr. Cai
Huabo (“Mr. Cai”). Therefore, Mr. Cai is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Tai Security.

(10)  The short position in respect of 20,837,095 Shares represent the number of
the Option Shares which Delco is obliged to deliver to Sims upon exercise
of the Option by Sims.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or the controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
with the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2014.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s
auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
Fang Ankong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report
N ,MsAﬁd:

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results
and improve our image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company identified
certain practices which were not in full compliance with the Hedging
Policy of the Group. In view of this, the Board has taken remedial actions
and commissioned an independent professional to review the internal
control system and corporate governance of the Group and a report with
recommendations was submitted to the Board in March 2014.

The Group has reinforced its internal control mechanism based on
the recommendations provided by the independent professional,
such reinforcements included enhancing the monitoring mechanism
and conducting more detailed analysis in order to improve the risk
management system of the Group.

Most of the recommended reinforcements were implemented during
the first half of 2014, and for the remaining recommendations, which
mainly cover the Hedging Limits stated in the Hedging Policy, the Group
managed to decrease, in the second half of 2014, its exposure in the
futures market with the view of complying with the policy. By March
2015, the Group had decreased its positions in all future contracts to
comply with the Hedging Limits stated in the Hedging Policy.

On 26 March 2015, taking into account the movement in the world
commodity market, the Group adopted a new set of policy regarding
dealings in metal futures contracts that better reflects the current
requirements of our business.

Throughout the Year, the Company has adopted, applied and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except on the deviations set out
below.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

INTRODUCTION (continued)

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been segregated as required by the provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. With extensive experience in the mixed metal scrap recycling
business, Mr. Fang is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic
planning and the management of our business. The Board considers
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person is beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises
two Executive Directors (including Mr. Fang) and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, therefore it has a fairly strong independence
element in its composition.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year in relation to
their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management
and relevant employees who likely possesses the inside information of
the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group'’s business, strategic decisions and
performances and comprises five Directors, including two Executive
Directors namely Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Gu Liyong and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors namely Ms. Zhang Jingdong,
Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Zhu Dajian (appointed on 17 December 2014
in replacement of Mr. Li Xikui who resigned on 17 December 2014).
Mr. Li Xikui has resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 17 December 2014. Mr.
Michael Charles Lion has resigned as a Non-Executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 16 February 2015.
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen has resigned as an Executive Director,
a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Executive Committee on 12 March 2015. The management
is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day operation and management of the Group under the
Board'’s instruction. In addition, the Board has also established various
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Executive Committee (the “Executive
Committee”), the Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
Pricing Committee (the “Pricing Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and further details
of these committees are set out hereunder. The Directors' and senior
management’s remuneration and the Group’s annual results for the
Year were approved in the board meetings of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

THE BOARD (continued)

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the Year. The
attendance of all Directors at the Board Meetings and Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") of the Company held during the Year are as follows:

EEE (&)
EFGTIRN LS - ABRAR - BIRE
FEABBAARRAEBIBOTEMH B

B BRmEkZTl -

RAFEE  EZGHARORENEE - AF
ERETHEARRAMNEEESERERR
BERE ((RRABFAEDWT :

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meeting held

HESRYAE BTERHA
Regular
Name of Directors Board Meetings AGM
EEMR EEETHER BREFAKE
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) FeE(XR) 4/4 1/1
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 4/4 11
(resigned on 12 March 2015) (R=ZB—AF=A+=-HET)
Gu Liyong BEE 4/4 1/1
Non-Executive Director FETES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 4/4 11
(resigned on 16 February 2015) (R—Z—RFE_-_A+HEMT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors B IFHITESE
Loke Yu R g HR 4/4 11
Li Xikui Fih= 4/4 0/1
(resigned on 17 December 2014) (R=ZB—WF+=-A+tHED)
Zhang Jingdong BEHR 4/4 0/1
Zhu Dajian FPAN S 0/0 0/0

(appointed on 17 December 2014) (R=—Z—mMFE+=—F+-RERT)

The Company adopted a procedure to enable the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’'s expense. Subject to the prior approval by the Chairman
of the Board and notification to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the Directors may seek independent legal, financial or other
professional advice from advisors independent of those advising the
Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances to
enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively, either on the
Company'’s affairs or in respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the
Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

THE BOARD (continued)

The Chairman of the Company held two meetings with the Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors)
without the Executive Directors present in 2014.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Executive Committee with written
terms of reference, which is responsible for the management and
administration of the business of the Company and any matters which
are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under the
control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the Terms of Reference of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
for ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The Executive Committee currently consists of Mr. Fang Ankong and
Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Directors of the Company, and is chaired
by Mr. Fang Ankong. Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen has resigned as
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company on 12 March
2015. The Board delegated the corporate governance function to the
Executive Committee to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendation to
the Board, review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, review and monitor the code of
conduct and Model Code applicable to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director of the Company receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to
make sure that he has proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities in the
Company.

During the Year, all Directors received regular updates and presentation
on changes and developments to the Group’s business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

(continued)

The Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars for
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development programmes by attending
seminars, in-house briefing and reading materials. The Company
organized a training section conducted by a professional firm in
December 2014 on the amendments to the Listing Rules.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process, all Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses and they are
requested to provide their respective training records to the Company
Secretary for record as follows:

HiTEREE (&)
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Attending seminars/In-house briefing/

Name of Directors

Reading materials

EEHE SMEE IR B EA R

Executive Directors BITES

Fang Ankong (Chairman) FRZE(ER) v

Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen v
(resigned on 12 March 2015) (R—TB—RFE=A+-HFF)

Gu Liyong = v

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion v
(resigned on 16 February 2015) (R=ZZ—RF=A+AHT)

Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu B/ A v

Li Xikui N S v
(resigned on 17 December 2014) (R=ZE—UF+=—A++tHET)

Zhang Jingdong EHR v

Zhu Dajian AR v

(appointed on 17 December 2014)

(RZZ—MFE+_A++HEZE)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has established a
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting
matters of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Group and nominating and monitoring external
auditors. The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Zhu
Dajian (appointed on 17 December 2014 in replacement of Mr. Li Xikui
who resigned on 17 December 2014) and is chaired by Dr. Loke Yu. Mr.
Michael Charles Lion has resigned as a member of the Audit Committee
on 16 February 2015. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee has convened three meetings during the financial

year ended 31 December 2014 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

Name of Committee members

BREEE
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No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEENENE HESEYE SBTEEHA
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu (Chairman) BEEM(EE) 3/3
Li Xikui BN RS 3/3
(resigned on 17 December 2014) (R=ZE—UF+=A+tHET)
Zhang Jingdong BARER 3/3
Zhu Dajian E RN 0/0
(appointed on 17 December 2014) (R=ZF—UF+=-A+tHEZT)
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 3/3

(resigned on 16 February 2015)

(R=ZZ—AF-A+AET)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed in the Committee
meetings the audited financial results for the year ended 31 December
2013, the unaudited interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2014, the connected transactions report for the year
ended 31 December 2013, the whistleblowing policy reports for the
period from 1 July 2013 to 31 December 2013 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2014, the internal control reports for the year ended
31 December 2013 and for the six months ended 30 June 2014, the
engagement terms and remuneration of auditors and the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control systems.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages and
conditions of employment for the Directors and senior management
and evaluating and making recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of Mr.
Fang Ankong, Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong
and Mr. Zhu Dajian (appointed on 17 December 2014 in replacement
of Mr. Li Xikui who resigned on 17 December 2014), Independent Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Zhu Dajian. Mr. Stephanus
Maria van Ooijen has resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 12 March 2015. Mr. Fang Ankong has ceased to be the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhu Dajian has been
appointed as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, with effect
from 26 March 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
The Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings during the
Year with the attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

BHEET

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHE LEEEYE BTEEHA
Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Zhu Dajian (Chairman) AR (ER) 0/0
(appointed on 17 December 2014) (R=—Z—MFE+-_A++-HEEZE)
Loke Yu iy 2/2
Li Xikui ZihE 2/2
(resigned on 17 December 2014) (R=ZF—WF+=-A+tHET)
Zhang Jingdong EHR 2/2
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong FRE 2/2
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 172

(resigned on 12 March 2015)

(RZZE-—RF=A+-RHEE)

Throughout the Year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the Directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration of the Group for the years of 2014 and
2015, the service contract and remuneration for the appointment of Mr.
Zhu Dajian as the Independent Non-Executive Director and the renewal
of service contracts of senior management of the Company in 2014.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 15 August
2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EREE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The duties of the Committee include:

1.

to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Fang Ankong,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Zhu

Dajian (appointed on 17 December 2014 in replacement of Mr. Li Xikui
who resigned on 17 December 2014), Independent Non-Executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong. Mr. Stephanus Maria van
Ooijen has resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee on 12
March 2015.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
The Nomination Committee has convened two meetings during the Year
with the attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

REEZEE (&)
RAZBENAEEHABHRMAGHE - 55K
HEWT -

1o

\

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHE HESBEE ETEEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong (Chairman) HrzE(ER) 2/2
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 1/2
(resigned on 12 March 2015) (R=—Z—RF=ZA+-A&T)
Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu R G R 2/2
Li Xikui FiH= 2/2
(resigned on 17 December 2014) (R=ZF—WF+=-A+tHET)
Zhang Jingdong BEHR 272
Zhu Dajian E RN 0/0

(appointed on 17 December 2014)

(R-ZE—MF+-ATLHEZRET)

Throughout the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
and discussed the composition, size and structure of the Board, the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, re-election
of Directors and appointment of Mr. Zhu Dajian as Independent Non-
Executive Director.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee and the
Committee will review and make recommendation to the Board on the
expertise, skills and experience of the candidates appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has the significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010 to review
and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group's physical
stock, the Group’s inventory level and hedging positions requirements
on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management of commodity price
fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk monitoring system. The
Pricing Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Xu Jialiang, Mr. Zhu
Zhonghui, Mr. Gan Jun, Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi
Paul and is chaired by Mr. Fang Ankong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)
The Pricing Committee has convened eleven regular meetings during the
Year with the attendance of each member as follows:

TEBZEE (&)
RAFE TBZESHXEM+—AEH
2 OSKEHRENT

S

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

HESBEE ETEEEE
Name of Committee Members Regular Meetings
ZEERERE TEHEE
Chairman of Pricing Committee EEZEEXRE
Fang Ankong L% 11/11
Committee Members ZE8HE
Chow Wan Hoi Paul AES 11/11
Xu Jialiang FFINR 11/11
Zhu Zhonghui RIBIE 11/11
Gan Jun HE 11/11
Chan Tung Tung BRAZ Y 11/11
Throughout the Year, the Pricing Committee has reviewed the Group’s REEFE  TEZE2RBHAEET AR
monthly physical stocks price and commodities transactions. The Pricing ~ &BBEE@mR S - RZZT—MF - EEBEE

Committee had held 4 quarterly review meetings with the Board of
Directors in 2014 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee Report.
In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board of
Directors had reviewed and discussed the Group’s commodity future
contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory
management strategy of each quarter in 2014, and reviewed the
Group’s Hedging Policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policies and procedures are followed. The draft Minutes of all Board
Meetings and Committee Meetings were circulated to the Board and
Board Committees within a reasonable time. All signed Minutes and
Resolutions of all Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were
circulated to all the Directors and Committee Members for record.

The Company Secretary is not an employee of the Company. The
Company appointed Mr. Gu Liyong, the Executive Director, as primary
contact person with the Company Secretary of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (continued)

The Company Secretary has attended relevant professional seminars to
update her skills and knowledge. She has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules and has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
During the Year, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are as follows:

NRIME (E)

DEED AR S R & AR S
RS - B EET EHRAIE3.200 - AR
REFELET SR TE/ N RS

Al e

B AT =
RAFRE - RERRY RIEERRBO N K
T2 o BEBES EEHATOHSIT ;

HK$
B
Type of services REER
Audit fee for the Group rEEEZER 2,430,000
Review of the Group's Interim Result EHREE TS 620,000
Review of the Group's indebtedness EHAREEES 100,000
Review of the Continuing Connected EHRHEFAERS 50,000
Transaction
Total st 3,200,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the Year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. The Directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and
requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates
and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the
management. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed "Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 89 of this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKRE (H)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating
an effective system of internal controls. The Company leverages
on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals to
develop its internal control system which includes a well-established
corporate structure and an organization with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. The Internal Control Department is to
provide independent assurance to the Board and executive management
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group.
The internal control system is reviewed and assessed on on-going basis
by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Internal Control Department adopts a risk-and-control based audit
approach. The annual work plan of Internal Control Department covers
major activities and processes of the Group’s business units. The audit
plan is reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
agreed schedule of work, Internal Control Department conducts other
review and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically.

As disclosed in the Annual Report 2013, the Board identified certain
practices which were not in full compliance with the Hedging Policy and
has taken the following remedial actions during 2014:

(@) the Board considered it is unrealistic to maintain the then target
inventory turnover days of 90 days, and that the Board should
be given a discretion to determine whether it is necessary for
the Board to engage and seek relevant professional advice.
Accordingly, the Board has resolved to amend the Hedging Policy
such that (i) the target inventory turnover days is now changed
from 90 days to 160 days,; (i) any change to the inventory turnover
day criteria (i.e. if the inventory turnover days are more than
160 days) will require approval by the Board in accordance with
the terms of the Hedging Policy, save that no such approval is
required if the target inventory turnover days are not achieved
in January and February owing to the intervening Chinese New
Year holiday; and (iii) in the event that the commodity market
experiences a sustained and sharp decline in prices that are likely
to cause a lengthening in the inventory turnover days, the Board
may consider engaging and seeking relevant professional firms
to advise it on the current and future market outlook of the
commodities market.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

(b)  the Board has appointed an independent professional to perform
an internal control and corporate governance assessment (the
“Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment”) and
make recommendations to the Board in 2013, the Internal Audit
Manager of the Company was assigned to participate and assist
in the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment.
The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment
was completed in February 2014 and a report (the “List of
Findings and Recommendations Report”) was submitted to the
Company in March 2014. The Board has resolved to adopt the
List of Findings and Recommendations Report and implement the
recommendations in the List of Findings and Recommendations
Report.

Following the submission of report by the independent professional for
the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Assessment in March
2014, a series of reinforcement work was implemented in accordance
with the recommendations provided, the reinforcement work mainly
involved enhancing the monitoring mechanism and conducting more
detailed analysis in order to improve the risk management system of the
Group.

Also, the Group managed to decrease, in the second half of 2014,
its exposure in the futures market with the view of complying with
the policy. By March 2015, the Group had decreased its positions in
all future contracts to comply with the Hedging Limits stated in the
Hedging Policy.

On 26 March 2015, taking into account the movement in the world
commodity market, the Group adopted a new set of policy regarding
dealings in metal futures contracts that better reflects to current
requirements of our business.

The major changes in the new set of policy regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts is summarised as below:

(@)  the Board considered it is important to lock in our profits and
mitigate any potential for loss or diminution of our profit margin,
so it has increased the limit on the total quantity of futures
contracts that the Group may sell for hedging purposes to 100%
of the then latest available quantity of physical inventories.

(b)  the Board has introduced a maximum amount of metal futures that
the Group may enter daily for each type of metal (the “Daily Limits”)
for the purposes of cash flow and inventory management, in order to
avoid any sudden movement in open positions held by the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy enables the shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company to obtain comprehensive and plain information of
the Company, to exercise their powers on an informed basis and to
strengthen their communication with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. Contact of the Company Secretary is as follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: cosec@chiho-tiande.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings
Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company

(“Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the
“"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists.

Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the Requisition.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General

Meetings (continued)

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i)  notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice is
served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the EGM
is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time to
time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@) a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM,;

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless:

(i)  a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director (continued)

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven (7)
days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified in
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as interview,
presentation, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, we have during the Year organized numerous site visits
to our facilities with several fund managers and equity market
analysts. Through the site visits, the visitors managed to have a better
understanding of the Group’s operations and the opportunity to know
more about the Group’s development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy in
December 2012. The policy aims at encouraging and enabling
employees of the Group at all levels and others to report violations
or suspected violations and to raise serious concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters of the
Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHAMRE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 231, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

By RBEHE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERERAEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE T —WF+ - A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FHET
Revenue W 7 5,877,970 7,222,003
Cost of sales SHEKA 8 (5,895,336) (7,245,813)
Gross loss eS| (17,366) (23,810)
Other income Hiplg A 9 27,977 43,665
Other gains and losses Hipdls R EE 10 (770,923) (60,558)
Distribution and selling expenses DHRIHERS (23,722) (35,481)
Administrative expenses THRAX (130,534) (133,250)
Finance costs BTSN 11 (153,327) (172,342
Share of profit of an associate i NI | 24 284 -
Loss before tax BrEiATE B (1,067,611) (381,776)
Income tax expense FTiEfiAX 14 (3,629) (25,742)
Loss for the year FAEE 12 (1,071,240) (407,518)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hi2H (B%) Rz
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently — HEE BT S@EHHEE
to profit or loss: EEMIER
Exchange difference arising on translation BEREREBEEN
to presentation currency N (9,623) 51,050
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HpnsmnisEa
to profit or loss: gIEE :
Reclassification to profit or loss on disposal P EAHHERE
of available-for-sale investment BN AR 499 -
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale AEHEREQAFE
investment Wzs (E518) 918 (1,417)
1,417 (1,417)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMEZE(RX) K
income for the year (8,206) 49,633
Total comprehensive expense FALAEMZEE
for the year (1,079,446) (357,885)
Loss for the year attributable to: VAT A G FNEE -
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIET ZEUN (1,057,980) (382,920)
Non-controlling interests R (13,260) (24,598)
(1,071,240) (407,518)
Total comprehensive expense UTEFEIEEAZE
for the year attributable to: FS 4%
Owners of the Company RRAEEA (1,066,423) (331,677)
Non-controlling interests R (13,023) (26,208)
(1,079,446) (357,885)
Loss per share BhkEE
- basic —EXK 16 (1.01) (0.37)
— diluted — % 16 (1.01) (0.37)

SOST—



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EEBBRRER

At 31 December 2014 "= —M&E+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-lF —T—=%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 17 508,265 331,530
Prepaid lease payments BRHEE 18 421,461 433,069
Investment properties HEYHE 19 22,351 28,942
Interest in an associate NN X 24 2,609 -
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 20 - 14,053
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEMZE - RS K%t
plant and equipment Fifitiese 41 19,033 40,332
Deferred tax assets R THE & 33 8,189 5,997
981,908 853,923
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 21 1,107,789 2,570,273
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH A EUGRIA 22 431,316 744,477
Bills receivables KRR 23 127 6,614
Prepaid lease payments ERHEE 18 10,620 10,642
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMT A 25 391,476 132,688
Tax recoverable AR B FIE 10,382 10,334
Pledged bank deposits EEARITFR 26 182,559 141,841
Margin deposits REZ 26 253,292 175,405
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRE 26 271,556 271,095
2,659,117 4,063,369
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENKIE 27 412,209 407,005
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 25 402,932 33,303
Tax payable FER A IE 3,771 2,268
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITIEEREX 28 1,324,831 1,958,680
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 816,421 =
2,960,164 2,401,256
Net current (liabilities) assets #E (BB BERE (301,047) 1,662,113
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREBEE 680,861 2,516,036
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

At 31 December 2014 R=—ZE—MWME+_A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-lF —T—=%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET T
Capital and reserves B2 R @
Share capital 1IN 29 10,494 10,446
Share premium and reserves A1) (B R i 713,556 1,763,914
Equity attributable to owners RNRARER ANE(EERS
of the Company 724,050 1,774,360
Non-controlling interests FEFERR 30 (80,694) (67,671)
Total equity s 643,356 1,706,689
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 - 759,406
Embedded derivative components ARRESFTRARITE
of convertible bonds THES 31 - 13,353
Warrants RARMERE 32 - 1,331
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & 33 37,505 35,257
37,505 809,347
680,861 2,516,036

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 231 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March

2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fang Ankong
DIRECTOR

Mr. Gu Liyong

DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEx

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE T —WF+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BEATATEEA
Foreign Attributable
Capial Share Statutory  Enterprise  Investment  currency Accumulated tonon-
Share Share redemption ot Capital  general  expansion revaluation  translation  (losses) controlling

apital  premum reseve  reseve  reserve Teserve fund — resee  resene  profs  Sub-fotel  interests Total
AnEE  BhE HE-R 0RER  RAER  MER Zit R
ke BhiE i e A1GH B 5] i B (BB)EH it EEEL 5
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000
Tén Thr Thr  Thr  TAn  TEr T TEr  TEr  Thr TR fEn TEn
(notel) — (noteil)  (noteil)
(k) (W) (W)

At 1 January 2013 RE-=£-A-8 10435 888986 00 2997 22760 102,167 102,16 - 118%1 639333 2115005 (41463 2073542

Loss for the year EmER S = = = = = = = - (3829200 (3829200 (24598) (407,518)
Bchangediference  £ERER
ansng on trenslationfo~ EEEER

presentation cureny  EXEE - - - - - - - - 5660 - 52860 (1610) 5105
Fair value loss on avallable- TEHEREATE

for-sale investment BB - - - - - - - (141) - - (141 - (14
Total omprehiensie. ~ ER2TRFLE

xpense for the year - - - - - - - (1417 52660  (382.920) (331,677) (26,208 (357,:885)
Cash dividend paid EiReRa (Hik15)

(Note 15) - - - - - - - - - ) @28 -8
Share options evercied {7 ERE

(Note 29 (note ) (9 () 15 487 - (1,109) - - - - - -3 -3
Lapse of share options ~ E&TRIER - - - (180) - - - - - 780 - - -

Recognition of equity- ~ FERNRIELER
settled share-based WhhAEERE,

payments (Note 37— AE(EE37) - - - 10782 - - - - - - 10762 - 10782
Shares repurchased RiBER:EH

and cancelled (k29 (W)

(Note 29 (note i) @ (130 4 - - - - - - W 03 - (1,34)
Transfer of reserves fifkER - - - - - 09 20 - - (449 - - -
M31December 2013 H=E-=F

tZA=1-H 10446 892,493 04 N8 12760 104376 104376 (1417 AT611 23765 1774360 (67.671) 1,706,689
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

REER2ER (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERALTREA
Foreign Attributable
Capital ~ Share Statutory  Enterprise Investment  currency Accumulated to non-
Share  Share redemption  option  Capital  general expansion revaluation translation (losses) controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  reseve  reserve  profits  Sub-total interests Total
EARE  ERE HE-R LERE  REER  AREY gt FER
Be BEEE  RE 0 RBE EARE  BE 0 B¢ BE  BE (BREM M BERE &R
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR T TR TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn TER  TEr  TEn  TEn TEm TER
(notei)  (noteii)  (noteii)
(Wi (W) (W)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - - - (1,057,980) (1,057,980  (13,260) (1,071,240)
Bchangediference  HERER
arsing on translationto~ E%EEH
presentation cureny  EXEE - - - - - - - - (9860) - (0860) B (96)
Fair value gain on avalable- TEHEREATE
for-sale investment Wi - - - - - - - 918 - - 918 - 918
Recassfied toprofitor ~ AHETEHERER
Joss on disposalof ESpEES
avallable-for-s2le
nvestment - - - - - - - 499 - - 499 - 499
Total comprehensiie ~ FR2E
eensefortheyear  Fxl@ - - - - - - - M7 (9860) (1,057,980) (1,066423)  (13,023) (1,079,446)
Share options exercised  EfEEETRE
(Note 29 (note i) (e 2o (Bisk) 4% 16568 - (4070 - - - - - - 12546 - 1254
Lapse of share options ERIER - - - (10949) - - - - - 109 - - -
Recognition of equity-  ELREEER
setfled share-based HRABERZNR
payments (Note 37) — (H37) - - - 35 - - - - - - 35 - 35
Transfer of reserves fifEd - - - - - 670 670 - - (13%) - - -
M30 Decomber 2014 R=5-0%
t2A=1+-A 10,494 909,061 2420383 222760 105046 105,046 - 161751 (810,715) 724050 (80,694) 643,356
notes: PFitEE -

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal value of the (i) BAGEE @) ARTR_ETNFEEEMEBARFTK
aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company BB RARRARE M EEEE 2 mEERNQFR
upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the Company’s shares R EFTEITRD CEENEZBNL () —E—TFE
issued in exchange and (b) a capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. NEIREE R ©

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the appropriation (ii) AAEIFBEHBARMAKERMARTE - AiRE

of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant accounting rules and
regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to
apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund has
reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory general reserve
and enterprise expansion fund can be used to make up prior year losses or to increase
share capital.

hEARLME (THE D AEEHRRREREE
HRERET 10% BANEE —RFFEREXERE
T o AE —RFEEREFERESHFED B
BRRIEMEARNS0% @ BIAT AR IR - REATR
EREEERRESTARBHEEFEEHEIIEM
s o

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
" miﬁﬁl)lbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE T —WF+ - A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—2-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss for the year ENEE (1,071,240) (407,518)
Adjustments for: YT &I 7 %
Income tax s 3,629 25,742
Finance costs BB 153,327 172,342
Interest income FIEHA (7,671) (6,207)
Dividend income from available- A HERERSMA
for-sale investment (301) (428)
Depreciation of investment properties REMFENE 1,631 1,866
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRENE 36,122 34,308
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments e 3 10,593 8,829
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE - BE kEER (ks ) BiE
plant and equipment (335) 90
Gain on disposal of an investment property HER B E RS (29,216) -
Recovery of doubtful debts REEUE - (12)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables B 5 RE MR RERE 1,807 2,911
Share-based payment expense ARG AR 2 A 3,567 10,762
Share of profit of an associate 3 =N (284) -
Reclassified to profit or loss on disposal Rt SR HERERERNHE
of available-for-sale investment By =En 499 -
Gain on fair value change of derivative ARREFTETANH 2
components of convertible bonds NHEEBNE (13,353) (71 937)
Gain on fair value change of warrants RRERELNTEZS N (1,331) (6,715)
Net foreign exchange losses (gains) EREE (ha) FE 34,005 (99,881)
Reversal of allowance for inventories BOFEEE (11,906) (6,243)
Operating cash flows before movements EERCFHA
in working capital HEERERE (890,457) (342,091)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,460,898 500,822
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 RE W IER > 312,334 75,075
Decrease in bills receivables EWREER D 6,465 654
Decrease in investments at fair value through BROTEF AER (RATEA
profit or loss (“FVTPL") Bl nRERS - 24,677
Decrease (increase) in derivative TSI AR (3Em)
financial instruments 110,841 (64,438)
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 R E AR FRIEEM 4,809 102,160
Cash from operations BEmBRS 1,004,890 296,859
Interest paid BRFE (95,468) (122,951)
Tax paid BNFE (2,198) (31,637)
Tax refunded ERERE 98 2,141
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMERLSTE 907,322 144,412
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RERERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

—E+—A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E-mE ¥ Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BEREE (175,108) (57,806)
Deposit for leasehold interests and property, HERSRNZE  BERk&kzEe

plant and equipment (17,736) (50,332)
Refund of deposit for leasehold interests HERZREZRK - 10,000
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BE kEEHEHE 1,281 1,008
Payment for prepaid lease payments SEEEEANEA - (89,537)
Investment in an associate ﬁiﬁﬁ"ﬁ%‘ﬁ%ﬁ—l (2,325) =
Placement of margin deposits BARES (2,147,974) (1,379,976)
Withdrawal of margin deposits RRRES 2,069,615 1,250,358
Placement of pledged bank deposits BABERRIER (276,812) (223,163)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIREERRTER 235,786 189,664
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property HEREMEMETE 34,176 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investment &R HEREHEHIE 14,971 -
Dividend received from available-for-sale investment  WERAIEHE R EHR S 301 428
Interest received BUH & 4,166 5,009
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBFARSTE (259,659) (344,347)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised MEBRITEE 4,533,757 7,304,449
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (5,193,076) (7,266,950)
Repurchases of shares EERA - (1,324)
Net proceeds from issue of shares through ERTRERERTROMETEFE

exercise of share options 12,546 3,737
Dividend paid BERRE - (22,143)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES R&EEE (FiF) IBR&FHE (646,773) 17,769
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBESEERFELMOAD)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 890 (182,166)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R-B-ARERESEEER 270,779 446,536
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ~ SHEEZZHH & (834) 6,409
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+t=A=1+-ABELKELEEER 270,835 270,779
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBLEEEE DN
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE 271,556 271,095
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) RITE % (M 28) (721) (316)

270,835 270,779

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMIEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE T —WF+ - A=+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its main place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone
of Metal Recycling Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred a
loss of HK$1,071,240,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$301,047,000 as at 31 December 2014. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration the
following factors: (i) the estimated net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,835,640,000 from share placing as set out in Note 29(iv); (ii)
the convertible bonds holders agreeing to extend the convertible
bonds as set out in Note 31(vii), together with the undertakings
from the Company, as set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 5 March 2015, 10 March 2015 and 18 March 2015; (iii) the
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately HK$975,158,000
as at 31 December 2014; (iv) the estimated future cash flows
of the Group; and (v) assets available to pledge for obtaining
further banking facilities. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to HKFRSs and a new Interpretation

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-Financial

Amendments to HKAS 36

Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Except as described below, the application of the new interpretation
and the other amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the
requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realisation and settlements.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The Group
has assessed whether certain of its financial assets and financial
liabilities qualify for offset based on the criteria set out in
the amendments and concluded that the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier

application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier

application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier

application permitted.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier

application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2014 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a 'fair value through other comprehensive income’ measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

3 The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have no material effect on the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities based on the analysis of the Group'’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i. e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective will not have material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXSTHE(E)
(continued)
Investment in an associate (continued) REERTRE (&

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwiill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) W rER (&)
Rental income HAEWA

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Leasing (continued) HE (&)
Leasehold land for own use (continued) fEEAZHE T i ()

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXSTHE(E)
(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) s (48)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 37.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits/losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAE:TEEK(E)
(continued)
Taxation BiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Taxation (continued) BiiE (&)
Current tax (continued) BRHALIE (4])

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAREFEX(E)

116

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such property, plant and equipment
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property,
plant and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of assets (other than construction in progress) less their residual
value over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined by the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

BEXRETHER (B)

BE

AL B EEEEMHFMARERBEE
IEEEME BAEBERAIEERET
REL - WREA SEM ARt PARAEZ
78 RIZRRERE -

ERRBEZ SR IENRERRET
RREEMBRERFL 2&EMRT - I
AAREREEZRARRTHEERE - &
BEZETREEIAAAREZIHAER
EBFfER  EREHEAGTHIRERE
REMWMEYEREEIFEEX) -

ERTH
EEEERKATAS MKW
o EREREERSRAE -

CREERSREBEN SRS PER
2 - AREXETeREERERAE
(BRATEFAEBZNEHREEN SR
BERIN MEZELENRIKEARE
RERFRZECHEES TR A EN
AFEPT AN (GER) - B
BRATEAFABENEREELSRA
EMEEELENRZZKAEINERIER
AR o

TREE

TREERTIEEERED  BRF
EFf ABSENESREE - B REEHK
BRAHEE((AIHEED EREE -
BRI BAGTEREENEE LA
B WRYEERREE - TREEMN
FBSREEREERR A HERRRZL
R - FREFRANADILTIHED
RS FIERARZNEEMETHE

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR

119




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Financial assets (continued) SHWEE (&)
Effective interest method BT R %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
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such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Financial assets (continued) SHWEE (&)
AFS financial assets AR ESHEE

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) financial assets at
FVTPL or (b) loans and receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the fair value of AFS equity investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the instrument is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

3 the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets such as trade receivables,
assets are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the respective
credit periods, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are derivative that are not
designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gain
or loss arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 6.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) SREERKREIA (F)
Other financial liabilities EmeaaE

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
bank borrowings and overdrafts) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
bonds) issued by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and derivative in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements on its initial recognition. Derivative
that will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative components
are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivatives together
with other embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Convertible bonds and warrants (continued) TR ES R ARER (F)
Convertible bonds (continued) A[ R 1B (4B

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative components are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the lives of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Warrants

Warrants that will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as derivatives
and are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments include commodity
futures, provisional pricing arrangements and foreign currency
forwards contracts.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item at a future date that
can be settled net in cash are accounted for as derivatives unless
they were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose
of the receipt of the non-finance item in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date when derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
thus they are deemed as financial assets held-for-trading or
financial liabilities held-for-trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Write down on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of the reporting period,
and assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable commodity
exchanges. If the market price of inventories are to decline,
additional write down may be required. The Group’s inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories is disclosed
in Note 21.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, and prepaid lease payments

When there is indication that an item of property, plant and
equipment, or prepaid lease payments has suffered an impairment
loss, management of the Group takes into consideration of the
estimation of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
calculation requires the Group to estimate the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use expected to arise from
the property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments are
disclosed in Notes 17 and 18 respectively.

The management conducts an impairment review of the property,
plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments and assesses
the recoverable amount for cash-generating units. As explained
in Note 7, the Group has three operating segments and each
segment represents the lowest level cash-generating unit with
the Group for internal management purpose. With the segment
loss is identified in the metal recycling business segment (the
“Recycling CGU"), for the purpose of the impairment testing,
the management reviews the impairment in property, plant and
equipment, and prepaid lease payments are allocated to the
Recycling CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, and prepaid lease payments
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the Recycling CGU has been
determined based on the value in use calculation. The calculation
for the Recycling CGU uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 11%. The cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and budgeted gross margin, which are determined based
on the Recycling CGU’s past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development. The estimated
recoverable amount exceed the carrying amount of the Reoycling
CGU. The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the above assumptions would not cause
the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount. No
impairment loss is recognised for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account their estimated
residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. If the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge in the year in which such estimate
is changed.

Fair value of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants

As described in Notes 31 and 32, the directors of the Company
use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair values of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants are determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model adjusted for specific terms and conditions
of the respective instruments. Major inputs into the model include
quoted market prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

5.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings and overdrafts and convertible bonds disclosed in
Note 28 and Note 31, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
capital, various reserves and accumulated profits/losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchases as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2014.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a. Categories of financial instruments

5.
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2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets LREE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMT A 391,476 132,688
Loans and receivables (including BER &N FIE (B
cash and cash equivalents) ReRkFLFEER) 860,668 915,988
AFS investment AHEERE - 14,053
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 402,932 33,303
Embedded derivative components — A[ IR EH# ARSTE
of convertible bonds TAHS - 13,353
Warrants RIAETE - 1,331
Amortised cost B SHR A 2,455,290 3,033,070
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group'’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bills receivables, derivative financial
assets, pledged bank deposits, margin deposits, bank
balances and cash, AFS investment, trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities, bank borrowings
and overdrafts, convertible bonds, embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and warrants. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
margin deposits, bank balances and cash, AFS
investment, trade and other payables, derivative
financial instruments, bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to market risk arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management closely monitors its foreign currency risk
exposure and considers any foreign currency forward
contracts should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for trade payables which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"”). The
derivatives were not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group was required to estimate the
fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts at
the end of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are as follows:

6.

BT A (%)
6b. SEEREERBEREE (H)

miE R ()

()

B (E)

BEAN - A ER [ L — R TTR]
Y ZEHIMNESH) - DARE
EERMRZET ([ET]) XM
B 5 RN AT RN S
RENER o FTET ARRY
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R M E L o
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BEEEAINZ AT BT
1B :

2014 2013
—ZT—F —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Monetary assets EWEE
HK$ BIT 2,562 13,496
usbD =TT 118,287 136,861
Euro ("EUR") B ([Bcl) 24,490 7,575
RMB ARHE 244 300
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
HK$ BIT 12,496 830
usb ETT 1,068,551 1,815,277
EUR BrT 1,147 28,705
Net monetary assets EWEE(BE) T8
(liabilities)
HK$ BT (9,934) 12,666
usb ETT (950,264) (1,678,416)
EUR BrT 23,343 (21,130)
RMB AR 244 300
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies
of HK$, RMB, USD and EUR when such currencies are
different from the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
because it represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. On
this basis, if the foreign currencies strengthen/weaken
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities by 5%, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
would increase/decrease by the following magnitude,
and vice versa:

6.

BT A (%)
6b. SEEREEHBEREE(H)

5 mk ()
() EEmE(E)

AEBETZRBT AR
¥ - XL RBUTA RS
BT REE W i 8 5%

REINFRSHREEARR
RN IR B (£ R 5% B BK
BRELE - IEZERRER
EIREATRHAE R AT AL IR
BRI o R - 4
BRBmERSEER 2
E¥THE/RZES% A% E
FARBZERBIE M,
PHBEIT - RZINA

2014 2013
g ES ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Increase) decrease in loss: BB (B m) R
Monetary assets and EREERER
liabilities
HK$ strengthening against BT EAREHE
RMB (415) 529
USD strengthening against =7t AREFHE
RMB (35,621) (62,865)
EUR strengthening against ~ BT AR/
RMB/USD EITHE 975 (882)
RMB strengthening against AR HETHE
usD 10 13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Group’s forward buying
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. If the
forward exchange rate of USD strengthens/weakens
5% against RMB while all other input variables of the
valuation models were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
the following magnitude:

6. TMIA(E)
6b. TEIEAREREEBFERBEK (8

5 mk ()
() EEmE(E)
RS ()

AT BURRE DT AR B A&
BN S R AT R 2 2 5B
BAEXRERETE © METT
HARERETEREERSD
RIFHE/EZES5% - ikERE
K2 B E i A E MR
P& RIS B S AR
SR 3 o0, A B R R 4R
T

2014 2013
—2-pmF =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Increase/decrease in loss: B, R
USD strengthening against  EJ0H AREHE
RMB 855 99

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not necessarily representative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Other than HK$, USD, EUR and RMB, the Group
does not have any other major exposure to foreign
currency risk.

EeREEFRAE

EEEBRS - HRFERER
BERBRENRRE - BHZK
REE DT AR B HMNE
R o

BATT X RTRAR

BN AEETEEH H M
TEINER -

—E—NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—HILFE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERTE (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. TEEAMREERFERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) iz E kR (%)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FFEE
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate AEBRRBITHER T BIR

risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of London
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s USD
denominated borrowings.

The Group considers that the variable-rate bank
balances are within short maturity period, and
the fluctuation in interest rate and the cash flow
interest rate risk arising from the bank balances are
insignificant.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, bank
borrowings and overdrafts and convertible bonds.
It is the Group’s policy to maintain a majority of
borrowings at fixed rate of interest so as to reduce the
cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate
hedging contracts. Management monitors the
Group's related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

176 & RS B 35 7 XK B
MEAHIRSREF KR
$%@E“]ﬁﬁumiﬂ$ﬂﬁﬂﬁ
TEEHREREEAET
FHEME S| LB R ZERTT
[FEAF B HIRED

REERARZBIBITERTY
%@%Wﬂ%’ﬁﬂ@ﬁ@
FMEBITEHBERIR R
= FRRE BB T EMR

AEERN D FENXREBRE
ZHFSEEMRTER
RITIEE KB R AR E
FBER - NEBHBER AR
Kﬁ DIEERTRERE
5 BERSRENXME

fg o

ANER (B30 48 5T ST AEAAT A 2K
\‘EPA /] ‘;—'@i@ﬁ'f“‘{tﬂﬁbﬁ:
7 5= [ 4R B ) =R R B 3 17 44
B Z B8 E AR EE

when the need arises. Rz o
Sensitivity analysis BREE AT
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REREHR - % B F G
liabilities which carried variable interest rates at the BRAEEEEEERAEE
end of the reporting period are as follows: J(I N
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Liabilities =N 291,783 1,086,913
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based
on the exposure to risk of interest rate changes for
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and management considered that
such exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was
minimal as the amount involved was not significant.

A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used
when reporting interest risk internally to key
management personnel because it represented
management’s assessment of the possible change in
interest rate.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year would increase/

6.

LRI A (&)
6b. SREAREREBFERBE (&)

5 mk ()
(i) FIEmE (&)
BRAE ST ()

THSEBREDMIER RS
HIRF BRITREER R R &
BERMNE - BRI R
PR REREERLT LR
1T RE R R 2 B E R I T
* o

LA 100 {2 2hH 7  A 1S 42
MAHEZEIEAE 2 HA
ZER  RHAREAEEE
Y F R AT g B B AR o

i 1) 2= 38 0,6k 2> 100 fiE E
BEMAT A H b = &R - Al
NEBFERRGBEEIEE

decrease by the following magnitude: mn o RAEEERT
2014 2013
—F-nmF =H==0
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Increase/decrease in loss EiEE M, SR 2,188 8,152

EeRiEEFRAE

—E—NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Equity, debt and commodlity price risks

At 31 December 2014, the Group was exposed to
equity, debt and commodity price risks through
its AFS investment and metal commodities future
contracts. At 31 December 2013, the Group was
also exposed to the provisional pricing arrangements
embedded in sales contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to commodity price risk of metal
commodities future contracts and the provisional
pricing arrangements embedded in sales contract of
copper scrap at the end of the reporting period. If
the commodity price risk of metal commodities future
contracts and the quoted copper future price for the
valuation of provisional pricing arrangements had
been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase by the following
magnitude:

6.

BT A (%)
6b. SEEREEAEREE (&)

5 mk ()

(ifi)

SRAE - B Ean (B 157 B
RZE—NFEF+=ZA=+—
H AEBRERAHEER
ERheBEmBESOmME
HAgHE - EBEREMERR
B R -_T—=%F+_A4
=+—8  AEBTHEHEE
ABHMENREREELTIE
HEgmEERER o

GRSZE AT

T GURE DT THER & R
SHRS BRI MRS
MEHEA N HBHERREE
ZHETE RO 7 AR (B AR R T
T MeBEmBESHN
R ER KRR E B B
HERROFHEE®R L
Tt/ T 5% » BIA & @ E
Wk Fi 12 1R 38 Ny
BEMT

2014 2013

—EF-nmE —T=%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Decrease/increase in loss BRI, 171,841 173,844

The sensitivity analysis above excluded the price risks
on AFS investment as the management considers the
price sensitivity on AFS investment is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Equity price risk on the Company’s shares

At 31 December 2014, the Group was also exposed to
equity price risk as a result of the fair value change on
the embedded derivative components of convertible
bonds and the warrants the Company had issued as
set out in Notes 31 and 32.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s shares’ equity
price risk of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and warrants. If the share price
of the Company inputted to the valuation model for
assessing the fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds and warrants had
been 10% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
would be changed by the following magnitude:

6.

BT A (%)
6b. SEEREERBEREE (H)

miE R ()
(iv)  ARFRDZREEE RS

RZE—NFF+—A=+—
H - ANEBITREAQFD
TR AR R ES 2 BRARDT
ST EFH RBBREZF 2 A
A EZH) (a0 31 K32 AT
&) MR EERER

SRR T

TR REE AT ToAR BR AT 2
&S 2 mRAXSTE T AR
D RRBEEMERZ AR
AREERRKRMEE i
PR R ES 2 8
AHTE T A0 R RIEE
AAFEmEAZHERD
ZARRARRE LR B
10% -+ AT H 2R
& BIAREEFANBRTEZ

BREESZREENT
Company's share price 10% higher Company's share price 10% lower
ADNRRELE10% ARARETH10%

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-QmF ZZ-=F —2-mF ZT-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET TET TAT
(Increase) decrease in loss BE(&m)Es (5) (7,163) - 5470

In- management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not necessarily representative of the inherent
market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value
valuation of the embedded derivative components
of convertible bonds and warrants involves multiple
variable where certain variables are interdependent.

EeRiEEFRAE

EEERE  BREINA
BREBAM SRR - B&
AHRBRESZRARITET
BB MR ERE 2 X FE
HEPMERZEBER -
BREERE  MERET
BHBORTE -

—E—NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 66% and 81% (2013: 61% and 79%) of its
total trade receivables was due from its largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The five largest
customers have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk
arising on the deposit paid to a shareholder with significant
influence over the Group for purchase of raw materials of
HK$4,294,000 (2013: HK$36,442,000) as at 31 December
2014, and deposits with several banks and commodities
future brokers with high credit ratings. The substantial
shareholder has good repayment history and credit
quality with reference to the track records under internal
assessment by the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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6.

LRI A (&)

6b.

TEEREERERBEEE)

FEERK
RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8"
AEBRR S S EEBITEMER
HEREZXVBEBEENRAEER
REE ARG B BARRKRTZT
HAREReREEZREEE -

R=ZF—NMFE+=-_A=+—8"
AEEEEESETRER  FAES
FEUR T IB AAER66% K 81% (==
—=%F :61%K%79%)DRIKE R
SENREARERAREF - R
BAEEHZERFEL AT
GRS RERFHEABRITER
mEREEEE -

R—ZE—NFE+=—A=+—8"
7 £ [ 71 A 5 SRR R A R 1A 3 AR
SEAESATENRREIZ (MR
£4,294,0008 (= —=4F:
36,442,000 7T ) KR A F#R1T
REEREETFzEmBEK
BZERMEAZEESTRR -
K2BASERBIEZBERL
B TERFEFRTHWERRT
SEREEEE -

RREEERR  AEEEHEE
Z-REEFEBRREPRZ
AT B FRIA - RER S ST U B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R MR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—HILFE

THMTH (&)
6b. TEIEAREREEFERBEK (8

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk TENE L @R
The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between ZIS‘E EMERARBIFERS
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of BEERRTEE ML TE -

bank borrowings.

As set out in Note 1, the directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The table was
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative liabilities that are settled on a net
basis, and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows
on those derivatives that required gross settlement. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
liabilities were prepared based on the contractual maturities
as the management considered that the contractual
maturities were essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.

WA RE1ETS AR R EEE
W AEBEREERREVHER
LA 2 E A AT T8 B oK 2R B 8 2 8
BEME °

TRFAEEFETESREE
H’Jﬂﬁ%/—\%@iﬂﬁ I RETRASE

AREAN A& T A HR FEDT
Eiﬁﬂg1 REBIRSME © W
MERERZE KRR SFER
R E RN R HRFTE -

BESh - NREFIIAEEITES B
BENRBES ST - BRAF
BEENITEBERBRRRAESR
HFEEE RUNBREENTES
BEARUBRBEORAE) KR H
BE-ARNEEERREGNFRY
BROEBEReRENKER
BEE HAKETLESRAE
R ESAMIER S KFH
M w2 ©

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEIEKEEBEREE (H)

policies (continued)

142

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

RBESERE (H)
R EE RFIE R

Total carrying

On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average less than 13 3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate ~ 1month ~ months  to 1year years cash flows period
nE  BREXY =fERz AERRS NEEHRZ
THHE HR-ER -Z2ZEA -§ -2RE%f RBAE REEE
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
i Thr Thn Thn Thr Thr
At 31 December 2014 ZZ-METZA=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ $fi=£BEE
Trade and other payables B REBENTE - 33736 - 302 - 34038 314,038
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RiTRERER
- fixed rate -E8 374 933,387 89,096 12,862 - 1,035345 1,033,048
- Variable rate -8 335 292,184 - - - 292,184 291,783
Convertible bonds AR ES
-~ fixed rate -E8 4,00 - 816 - - 816 816,421
1,539,307 921212 13,164 - 2473683 2,455,290
Derivatives - net settlement fiETA-BREE
Metal commodities future contracts ~ £BE@GHEEH - 266853 126349 9,115 - 402917 402,917
Derivatives - gross settlement fiETE-BELE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SNEERERAY
- inflow —iA - - - (8,057) - (8,057) (8,057)
- outflow il - - - 8,072 - 8,072 8,072
- - 15 - 15 15
Derivative financial liabilities fiEeRaR 266,853 126,349 9730 - 402,932 402,932
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. SEIEKEEBEREE (H)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mENE L E b (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) REE D RFIF R R E ()
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average  less than 13 3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate 1 month months  to 1 year years  cash flows period
mE  EENE =fAZE AR RRERRZ
ToNE  SR-BR  —2=fiA -£  -EZnf REEE BEEE

%  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
THEL TAL TEL TEL TER TER

At 31 December 2013 “§-=£+ZR=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ Ffi+4BEE
Trade and other payables B REBENTE - 314440 - 544 - 314984 31498
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RiTRERER
- fixed rate -8 1.51 438,653 60,984 375,463 - 875,100 871,767
- variable rate ~i%8 253 838,893 1,038 251,790 - 1,091,721 1,086,913
Convertible bonds ke
~ fixed rate -8 4.00 - 16,316 16,316 832,116 864,748 759,406
1,591,986 78,338 644,113 832,116 3,146,553 3,033,070
Derivatives - net settlement fIEIR-FELE
Metal commodities future contracts £ BERHEAH - 18,816 12,632 1,235 - 32,683 32,683
Provisional pricing arrangements BETEERH - - - 181 - 181 181
18,816 12,632 1,416 - 32,864 32,864
Derivatives - gross settlement fiEIA-BHEE
Foreign currency forward contracts NEESAH
- inflow =iA - - - - (16,222) (16,222) (16,222)
- outflow ~ i = - - - 16,661 16,661 16,661
- - - 439 439 439
Derivative financial liabilities fEeRak 18816 12,632 1416 439 33,303 33,303
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

6c¢.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2014, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,186,895,000 (2013:
HK$1,275,158,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
one year (2013: within two years) after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and the facility letters. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows of
HK$1,206,900,000 will be repaid within one year (2013:
HK$1,274,788,000 and HK$15,785,000 within one year
and one to two years respectively).

The amounts included above for the variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in actual
interest rates differ to those estimated at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
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6.

LRI A (&)

6b.

6c¢.

TEEREERERBEEE)

REBES R (HE)
BIREREEZRITEEGFAL
MEER DT Z [1RERK D —
EA ] EREBERN - R —MOF
+T-A=1+—8 ZERTEE
2 BRI {E 48585 1,186,895,000 7
(=% — = 4 :1,275,158,000
BIL) o BERAEE 2 BB AR
Mg EEMRERITTAER
ITEERIBREL B RKBNEER
EEHE ZERTEELR®R
EAHB—FRN(ZE—=F:
MEN)BBEE R EREE K
BT ERBHESE &
K A BERMBESRLA
1,206,900,00078 7T * W —F K
BB (ZZ—=1 : 1,274,788,000
# 7T % 15,785,000 7T+ X 5 5l
R—FAR—ZMENEE) -

CECEIESE ER S T
EN T PA R IES T R
BTAZSEAGHAES -

AFE
REREERUATEHEZA
EEEHEERSMAMZAT
&

AEBHHLMAERSRARK
NEREMARATESE - T
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B e AR 0 2
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(5 BIRFT FR  f EE BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

6. TMIA(E)
6c. DF{E (M)

BREMEELNPEFEZE

SETREERERMAEZILAYT

recurring basis (continued) & (&)
Relationship of
Fair value asat  Fair value as at unobservable
31December 31 December Significant inputs to
2014 2013 Valuation unobservable fair value
Financial assets RZB-ME  A-Z-ZE  Fairvalue  technique(s) inputs AUBE
(financial liablites) tZB=t-B fZA=t-F  hierarchy  andkeyinput(s EXFUER L)Y b4
SHEE(SHER) PR Z0VE  ATERE HERWRIZEARE BARE AHEREE
HK$'000 HK§'000.
TAn Tt
1) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong - 14,053 Level 1 Quoted bid price on the Stock Exchange N/ N/A
dlasified as AFS investment in the R INERAHREAR TR TR
consolidated statement of finandil
position
1) RERUBRARPARRTENLE
REZINER LRARS
2) Metal commodities future contracts 390,786 130272 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices N/A N/A
classified as derivative financial (402,917) (32,683) - ontheLondon Metal Exchange and the 7N NER
instruments in the consolidated Shanghai Futures Exchange
statement of financial position RISBRAMR BER AR
) REREBRRRAERELH EREEEAE
TA76BARHERD
3)  Provisional pricing arrangements - 2,149 Level 2 Computation of difference between N/A N/A
classified as derivative finandial - (181) Z=  quoted bid market price of copper iyl NER
instruments in the consolidated futures with the adjustments for the
statement of financial position purty of the copper scraps sold and
) REREBRARMARANESH contract prices.
TAZERERZS The key inputs were quoted copper
futures price on the London Metal
Exchange and the Shanghai Futures
Exchange and purity rates of copper
scrap.
FESREN R ERAGE AR
WEATBEANELZE -
FEEAIBARRHCRRANR
HERERAHRAEEER
BiRAE -
BaXitEEERAT —ZT—HFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

6. TRTH A
6c. AF{E(HK)

BREMEEUAFEGEZR

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a EELREERSAAEZAT
recurring basis (continued) 5 (&)
Relationship of
Fair value asat  Fair value as at unobservable
31December 31 December Significant inputs to
2014 2013 Valuation unobservable fair value
Financial assets RoE-ME  A-F-=£  Fairvalue technique(s) inputs ATER
(financial liablites) tZB=t-B fZA=t-F  hierarchy  andkeyinput(s EAFTER BAHER
SHEE(SRAE) PANTE ZRTE  AVERE fERARIZEARE BAEE AHENEE
HK$'000 HK§'000.
Thn T
4)  Foreign currency forward contracts 690 267 Level 2 Future cash flows are estimated based N/ N/A
classified as derivative financial (15) (@39 Z=8&  onforward exchange rates (from THE NER
instruments in the consolidated observable forward exchange rates at
statement of financial position the end of the reporting period) and
) REEBRAZRARANEER contracted forward rates.
TEZSHRERS REEIMERAL (REEHATE
EHRENERAL) RETHNES
HEREHARERI «
5 Embedded derivative component of - (13353)  Level3  Binomial Option Pricing Model. The Expected volatiity, The higher the expected
convertible bonds (note i) =8 keyinputs are the Company's share taking into account volatility, the higher the
5 WEREFRASTEIASA price, expected volatiity, dividend yield, the average historical fairvalue.

(M)
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option life and risk free rate.
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REXEERS TS
et
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BEGR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
6c¢.

Fair value (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

TR T A (&)
6c. AF{E(HK)
BEHEEEYAPENBZS

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a EELREERSAAEZAT
recurring basis (continued) {8 (#&)
Relationship of
Fair value asat  Fair value as at unobservable
31December 31 December Significant inputs to
2014 2013 Valuation unobservable fair value
Financial assets RZZ-ME  A-T-SE  Fairvalue  technique(s) inputs TAEE
(financial liablites) tZB=t-B fZA=t-F  hierarchy  andkeyinput(s EAFTER BAHER
SHEE(SRAE) PANTE ZRTE  AVERE fERARIZEARE BAEE AHENEE
HK$'000 HK§'000.
Thn T
6)  Detachable warrants to the convertible (1331 Level3  Binomial Option Pricing Model. The Expected volatility, The higher the expected
bonds classified as warrants in the Z=8  keyinputs are the Company's share taking into account volatility, the higher the

consolidated statement of finanal
position (note i)

6 REREBRARDARAIRER L
AR b ki (i)

price, expected volatilty, dividend yield,

warrant life and risk free rate.
ZEBERERS -
TEHNABEARARE EHR
8 REERE  AREZTRRER
e «

the average historical
volatilty of the
Company's share price as
at the date of valuation.
BERBN RAAT
REREERS2 T
3otk

Dividend yield, taking
into account the
Company's most recent
dividends payout ratio
and management's
experience.
REEHE it kAR
AR REERE
BERG

EeRiEEFRAE

fair value.
EREEA AFE
i

The higher the dividend
yield, the lower the fair
value.

fa-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

6c¢.

notes:

(i)

(ii)

If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
10% higher and lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the embedded derivative component of
convertible bonds would increase by HK$2,000 (2013: HK$5,497,000)
and decrease by nil (2013: HK$4,615,000) respectively.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December
2014. Dividend yield as at validation date of 31 December 2014 is nil
(31 December 2013: 0.739%), no sensitivity analysis for dividend yield
was performed in current year (31 December 2013: if the dividend
yield to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was 10% higher/lower
while all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount
of the embedded derivative component of convertible bonds would
decrease/increase by HK$45,000).

If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
10% higher and lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the Warrants (as defined in Note 31) would
increase by HK$1,000 (2013: HK$539,000) and decrease by nil (2013:
HK$452,000) respectively.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December
2014. Dividend yield as at validation date of 31 December 2014 is nil
(31 December 2013: 0.739%), no sensitivity analysis for dividend yield
was performed in current year (31 December 2013: if the dividend
yield to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was 10% higher/lower
while all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount
of the Warrants (as defined in Note 31) would decrease/increase by
HK$5,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are not
necessarily representative of the fair value as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the embedded
derivative components of convertible bonds and warrants
involves multiple variable where certain variables are
interdependent.
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6.

TRITA (&)
6c. DF{E (M)

BREMEELNPEFEZE
EEEREEREMEBEEZAT

18 (#&)
Bt 5E -
(i) R E M BRETEZNBERT
—ERETEEXNBHESRES
HFEIR10% » AR EH B A RAT

(ii)

AT A ZEREE® D 515 02,000
# JL( = T — = 4 : 5,497,000
T)ERRPERET(ZE—=4F:
4,615,000787T) ©

REBEE-_ZT—NEF+=-A=+—H
IEEE - ﬂ%ﬂi,ﬁﬁ&}@ R
B REEAH -_FT—MOF
+=ZA=+—8 ' BREWK=EXA
T(ZFE—=F+=ZA=+—8:
0.739%) + ZN4F 2 3 4 B AR B U &
KETHRESIT(ZTE—=F+=
A=+—8 : R E & BRETR
ZHEAT  —HBAEEERERXLN
A% S Bl R &R, FEE 10% » Al
BREFKRARTETAZERER
WD/ #hn45,00087T)

e 7 L b 86 BRAR 45 T B4 4% 1%5RT
—EETEEANBHESRES
HEIK10%  RBIRHEE (E%‘Eiﬁﬁ
&31)2%@@#“‘%”1%11 00078
T (=F—=% : 539,000 7T) KKk
& f%x( T — =4 : 452,0007%

TT) °

REE-_Z-—HmNE+=A=1+—8
IEEE - ﬂi%ﬂi,ﬁﬁdzié & A5 AR
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EEERR BREIMALHK
RAFE - I%ﬂ?ﬁﬂx{f%Zﬁﬁ

AXTETAHS

RBIEEZ

&%ﬁﬁﬁ¢%ﬁ%2m%ﬁ
X HRSERH - MEARET
------ BB AYE -



e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6c¢.

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6.

LRI A (&)

6c¢.

AFE ()
REAHBRRRRRNATE
it

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-3 et F=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-MF
t=A=t-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVLEFABR
NEREE
Derivative financial assets TEeREE 390,786 690 - 391,476
Financial liabilities at FVTPL & AVE AEH
HemaE
Derivative financial liabilities fTESRAR 402,917 15 - 402,932
As at 31 December 2013 RZB-=F
+=B=t-H
AFS financial assets AHESMER
Listed equity securities EmRAES 14,053 - - 14,053
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAVEFARE
NEWEE
Derivative financial assets fTEemEE 130,272 2,416 - 132,688
Financial liabilities at FVTPL & AFER AEH
NemaE
Derivative financial liabilities TESBAaRE 32,683 620 - 33,303
Derivative components of AR ES
convertible bonds FTETEHS - - 13,353 13,353
Warrants R - - 1,331 1,331

There were no transfers between the three levels during

either of the years ended 31 December 2013 or 2014.

BE-T-=F5-F-WFIT-A
S+—BIEE  SEERZ RS

% o

EeRiEEFRAE

—E—NEFR

149




150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TMIER (&)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AFE(H)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of CHEBSE=RAFENE>
financial liabilities YR
Derivative
components of
convertible bonds Warrants
ARRES ZITE
TEED AR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
At 1 January 2013 W—ZT—=F—HF—H 85,290 8,046
Gain recognised in profit or loss RIBaR R R B s (71,937) (6,715)
At 31 December 2013 R—_ZT—=F+-HA=+—H 13,353 1,331
Gain recognised in profit or loss B P R E s (13,353) (1,331)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZF—WME+=-—A=+—H - -

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values which is at Level 3 and
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Chief Financial Officer works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ =%

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

6d.

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

The Chief Financial Officer engages the external valuers
to perform the valuations of the convertible bonds and
the Warrants required for financial reporting purposes,
including Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
instruments. As a part of the valuation process, the Chief
Financial Officer reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company semi-annually, in line with the
Group's interim and annual reporting dates.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed above.

Business and economic circumstances affecting fair
value of measurements

During the current year, the Group experienced the adverse
impact of the prolonged volatility and the overall downward
movement of the global metal prices. The Group entered
into metal commodities future contracts in order to manage
its exposure to the volatility in metals’ price risks. The
decline in the commodity market prices led to a realised loss
in the fair value change of derivative financial instruments.

Financial instruments under enforceable

master netting agreements

The following table sets out financial assets and financial
liabilities that are under enforceable master netting
agreements and similar agreements, which are not offset in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

—E+—A=+—HLFE

6.

LRI A (&)

6c¢.

6d.

D E (]
DFEFERRGEERSF (H)

MR M B E B R B AN
ﬁMETEEMTTTﬁHxE% R BRI
5&{71&@ BReMIAEE=
NFERE - ERAEERFN
—%Bﬁj\ MBBRESFFRAR
AEEEREHELER  REW
RBREASETARFERE R
Hi—3 o

FREErREERBERTE
P8 PR B0 (B 77 0% e B A BUR =F
BEREX -

EBREERRYENTENE

RAFEE » REEARZREE
BRRAKS REET BN
FE - AEETVCBEMmBE
BHRNEBHESBERKDE
% o B an 5 ERE T KB ERIT
SeR T AR FEEZHEENE

18

BEBTHE - FEAEGEE
Tz&@mIA
TREHIEFIAITHE —FREE
BE R ENBEE YRR ARE
B4R e SRR N 2 & 8
EERSBARE -

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERTE (&)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BHEHITHE - BHLEHEE
master netting agreements (continued) Tz&€mMIA (HE)
The amounts recognised for the provisional pricing BROBERTTEEREEREME
arrangements classified under derivative financial assets and BETHNENEELHERNE
liabilities are excluded since these transactions are not under BWBERIEIN - W I BERZER
any master netting arrangements or similar agreements. W EBBRERS I FHEE W

ek AR LT T -

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAIKEE  EEBITHE —FEE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHREUZRFzSREE
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+=-A=+—H

Gross amount  Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial assets not set off in
liabilities set presented the consolidated
off in the in the statement of
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated financial position
of recognised ~ statementof  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description assets position position instruments received amount
&4 R&4 TRRNGREHRRE
BERREA  BBRREA hESZERLE
ERRSR  H#zEER 2hlzem BhReE
it BEAE CRIARAR BEFR SRIE gl FE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TRR TR TR TRR TR AR
Margin deposits ik 253,292 - 253,292 (28,451) - 224,841
Pleclged bank deposits CERRITER 92,556 - 92,556 - - 92,556
Derivative financial assets (&2 BEE
- Metal commodities -¢EARASAN
future contracts 390,786 - 390,786 (374,466) - 16,320
~ Foreign currency forward -~ —SMEEEIAH

contracts 690 - 690 (15) - 675
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEIHITH - FHELEEHMRE
master netting agreements (continued) Tz&€mMIA (HE)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHREUZGzSREE
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZT—MNE+=-A=+—8H

Gross amount  Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial liabilities not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated
off in the in the statement of
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated financial position
of recognised  statementof  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description liabilities position position ~instruments pledged amount
R&& R&& BRRGAUBRRR
HEMRRA  BRRRRR hEEZEEEE
BEDER  HHZEER 25247 BEARS
it BEAE  CRIGEAR BEFR SRIE il FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tién Tién Tién Tién Tién Tin
Derivative financial liabllities (742 #AE
- Metal commodities -SEARLEAN
future contracts 402,917 - 402,917 (374,466) (28,451) -
- Foreign currency forward - —SNVEREIAH)
contracts 15 - 15 (15 - -

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEIHITH - FHELEEHMRE
master netting agreements (continued) Tz&€mMIA (HE)
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHREURFzeREE
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+—-"A=+—H

(ross amount Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial assets not set off in
liabilties set presented the consolidated
offin the in the statement of
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description assets position position instruments received amount
e e TARERBBIAK
HHHRRR  HBRREA niEE ABLE
ERAeR  HH/ERD 2hl 28 Elie
it gEEE  oHEREE BEFE ERIA i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Margin deposits Rt 175,405 - 175,405 (67) - 175,338
Plecged bank deposits BAARITER 102,170 - 102,170 (439) - 101,731
Derivative financial assets ESBEE
~ Metal commoities -SEAERHERN
future contracts 130,272 - 130,272 (32,616) - 97,656

~ Foreign currency forward -~ —SMEEEIAH
contracts 267 = 267 = = 267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6d. Financial instruments under enforceable 6d. BEIHITH - FHELEEHMRE
master netting agreements (continued) Tz&€mMIA (HE)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable ZRAESE  BEBITHE —FE
master netting arrangements and similar agreements HEZHREUZGzSREE
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+—-"A=+—H

(ross amount Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial ligbilities not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated
offin the in the statement of
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description ligbilities position position instruments pledged amount
e e TARERBBIAK
HHHRRR  HBRREA niEE ABLE
ERAeR  HH/ERD 2hl 28 BEfRS
it BEEE  CHAELE BEFE ERIA i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Derivative financial liabiliies ~ $144 88 %
~ Metal commodities -BAERHERN
future contracts 32,683 - 32,683 (32,616) (67) -

- Foreign currency forward - —SNVEREIAH)
contracts 439 - 439 = (439) =

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6d. Financial instruments under enforceable

master netting agreements (continued)

The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities as presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as follows:

o Margin deposits and pledged bank deposits-
amortised cost

. Derivatives-fair value

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded on the London Metal
Exchange or the Shanghai Futures Exchange through
brokers and foreign currency contracts contracted with
banks. The related collaterals are included in margin
deposits and pledged bank deposits. If a default event
(included but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the banks
are able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable
contracts and/or the collaterals placed.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year.

Operating and reportable segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The executive directors of the Company are
identified as the CODM and they regularly review the internal
report on gross profit derived (or gross loss incurred) from
different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves
trading of other metal scrap without processing and copper
cathode. The operating and reportable segments are identified
based on major products under three categories of business
activities:

(i) metal recycling business (including sales of copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap);

(i) foundry business (including sales of aluminium-alloy ingots
and copper rod and wire); and

(iii)  wholesales business (including sales of other metal scrap
without processing and copper cathode).

7.

Wz & o AR E R (&)

AEETERESBBLERE - HRK
RERES B D U0 B RE 8 - REEA - BE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W&EkoEHER ()
(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEb R I 3 FB AR
An analysis of the Group’s segment revenues and segment results AN AREBRAZHRD BERERD
by operating and reportable segment is as below. Bl a R D B AR FTVEZ DA -
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z-—MNE+-A=+—HLEFE
Metal recycling business Foundry business Wholesales business
SEELER BEER HEEy
Other
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel - Aluminium Iron metal alloy Copperrod  without ~ Copper
serap scrap serap serap srap  ingots  andwire processing  cathode Elimination Total
i BER  EfRNI
1 B B B ReR i B&  EER  BER if ¢ ot
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TEn  TEn  TEr TR TR TR TEn  TEn
REVENUE i
External sales i 3661650 719266 138339 154,192 49259 304115 $3052 507,05 311,082 - 581910
Inter-seqment sles AEHE 0187 30667 201583 - - - 1991776 - (23sa) -
Total segment revene APEES 3763537 749933 3082 154192 51830 30415 3305 2498831 311,002 (2328414) 5877970
Segment [oss) profi AR (EE)EH (54323) 1,686 2138 (2120  (63%0) 15754 (5725 68920 (16,2000  (16,764)  (17,366)
Other income EHIA 7.9m
Other gains and losses AaRERE (170923)
Ditrbution and selling expenses  S$4RAERR B12)
Administrative expenses fBE% (130,534)
Finance costs B (153327)
Share of profit of anasociate B EAFER 284
Loss before tax kitiea (1,067,611)
Income tax expense FERAx (3,629)
Loss for the year EREA (1,071,240)
Reversalof allowance EERERAR(BR)
(allowance) for inventories wHnERE
included in segment (FERE)
(loss) profit 1149 2301 117 3 (2,005) - 846 - (1.831) - 11,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W@&RkoEER (&)

(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEblE R AR ()
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZT—=%+"_A=+—HI&E
Metalrecycling business Foundry business Wholesales business
SRALER 2E2H HEsH
Other
Other ~ Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal dloy Copperrod  without ~ Copper
srap scrap scrap rap rap ingots ~ andwire processing  cathode  Elimination Total
L] HER  EfANI
] ] B & RE £ #%  FEE  BES 4 g
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén Tér TR TR TEr  TEn  TEr TR TR TR TEn
REVENUE i
External sales e 3854404 %1499 238260 201,023 59022 366,552 24335 1005234 511673 - 122003
Inter-segment sales AEEEE 193,003 26464 279,365 - 330 2609 - 3715383 5963 (4,309,727) -
Total seqment revenue APEES 4007497 987963 517626 201,003 02412 392,651 24335 4780587 517,636 (4309721) 7,222,003
Seqment (oss)profi AB(BE) &R M) (14878 10464 49 (588 905 B1TS) TaMe (13674 07 (23810)
Other income AfA 43,665
Other gains and losses AaRERE (60,558)
Distrbution and sellng expenses  HERAERR (35,481)
Adminstratve expenses MR (133,250)
Finance costs B (172,34
Loss before tax KitigE (381,776)
Income tax expense FERRL (2574)
Loss for the year ERER (407,518
Reversalof allowance EERsRAR(ER)
(allowance) for inventories EHmAE
included n seqment (FERE)
(loss) profit 5113 11412 (819 - (4.875) - (5,083) - 475 - 6,43
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results
(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment (loss) profit represents the gross (loss) profit resulted
in each segment without allocation of other income, other gains
and losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative
expenses, finance costs, share of profit of an associate and income
tax expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the
Group are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets
and segment liabilities is presented.

Geographical information

Approximately 92% of external revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 90%) are attributable
to customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of
the Group’s major operating entities. The remaining revenue is
immaterial for separate disclosure of the Group’s geographical
information. Majority of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Information about a major customer

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's
revenue in during the year ended 31 December 2014. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, included in revenue arising from
metal recycling business of HK$5,314,209,000 was revenue of
HK$818,333,000 which arose from sales to the Group’s largest
customer and no other single customer contributed 10% or more
to the Group’s revenue.
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A o

hEE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

8. COST OF SALES 8. SHEMAK
Included in cost of sales is the following reversal of allowance for SHENNBIBATREFTERME
inventories:
2014 2013
—E—F —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
Allowance of inventories to A B FERERH
net realisable value recognised FERE 23,887 35,793
Reversal of prior year’s BEBEFEFERE
inventories allowance (35,793) (42,036)
Reversal of allowance for inventories BEFERE (11,906) (6,243)

Management assesses whether the carrying value of inventories
exceed their net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
with reference to the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant
markets and the quoted prices of metal on applicable commodity
exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

EEENSHEHRTEFEREIES
CHAeFEAERFE - EREE2ER
EmEMRBETENESBEE LA
MEmXZMNEBREGTFETE
HFE °

EERMEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

9.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014

OTHER INCOME Hbr A
2014 2013
—ZE—-F —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income AN ON 7,671 6,207
Gross rental income from HEYFER WAL
investment properties 1,530 2,115
Less: direct operating expenses W HEEEERY (11) (5)
Net rental income from KEDFEHRS WA FE
investment properties 1,519 2,110
Government grants (note) BRFHEBh (M) 15,181 33,910
Transportation and scale income g LT 2,116 83
Dividend income from listed AFS LA EREREWA
investment 301 428
Others Efth 1,189 927
27,977 43,665

note:  The Group received unconditional government grants from a local municipal
government as an encouragement for the development and advancement of

business. No other contingencies attach to the government grants that have

been recognised.

st A TBRNABBASEEBEREEST
AT AEE R BUT B - BERBF
BN A M INE M AELE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. HittlmREE
2014 2013
—ZT-NF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of: RN EF W (BE)
- derivative financial instruments (note)  —$T4 < T & (M)
- realised — B85 (762,372) (315,311)
- unrealised —REH (11,456) 99,385
(773,828) (215,926)
- derivative components of convertible — AR REFITE T AR S
bonds (Note 31) (FtEE31) 13,353 71,937
- warrants (Note 32) —RRERE (MisE32) 1,331 6,715
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains M 3, (518 Wien F 38 (34,005) 99,881
Impairment loss on trade B 5 R EMEWHRIEREEE
and other receivables (1,807) (2,911)
Recovery of doubtful debts 1 o] 552 B - 12
Gain on fair value change BRAFEFABRZKREZ
of investment at FVTPL NSRRIl 6 - 34
Gain on disposal of an investment SR & Y 2w
property (Note 19 (iii)) (PR 19 (ii)) 29,216 =
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment Wezs (E518) 335 (90)
Reclassified to profit or loss REERHEERESEH
on disposal of AFS investment NEEER (499) -
Handling charges on disposal HEAHBEREZRIBE
of AFS investment (54) —
Net compensation paid A HHIEEEE (4,965) (1,224)
Others Hih - (18,986)
(770,923) (60,558)

note:  The amounts arose from aluminium, copper, lead, zinc, steel rebar and nickel

future contracts, provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales contracts

and foreign currency forward contracts.

ek : RESEBEHELBE W & & HHR
BHARAK  HEANMEMERE EERH
RINEEBREH -

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

11.

12.

RIS SR BT ()
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE
FINANCE COSTS 1. BARER AR
2014 2013
—ZT-NF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET
Interest on: ATEIEHFE
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —RAF AR BHEE
within five years ZERITIEE 63,680 88,847
— bank overdrafts —RITIEX - 4
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2 B A SR
convertible bonds (Note 31) (MizE31) 89,647 83,491
153,327 172,342
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FREE
2014 2013
—Z-mEF “T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
Loss for the year has been arrived FNEE Bk ¢
at after charging:
Directors' emoluments E=He 3,913 4,579
Other staff costs Hith 8 TH A 179,213 209,560
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIBFEEIRR - TeEES
excluding those of directors ZERNBHFT IR 3,158 3,952
Share-based payments, excluding DR RERE T - TERES
those of directors Z DA R ETR YRR 3,390 9,900
Total staff costs STHALHE 189,674 227,991
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense REAZHFEERAE 5,895,336 7,245,813
Depreciation of investment properties BAMENE 1,631 1,866
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% « iR K& (G E 36,122 34,308
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SEINEEE 3 10,593 8,829
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHAE 48,346 45,003
Auditor's remuneration ZEEE £ 2,430 2,310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RAE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13. EE - FE2TBAERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS &
Directors 5=
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of AREEBRFANLZNARRRESHIEE
the Company for the year are as follows: B
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme  Share-based
Fees  allowances contributions payments Total
HeRk BHRET DR &
He 28 SEfR BRNOR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Fhr ThR FhR TiEn
Year ended 31 December 2014: HE-T-ME+ZA
ST-HIEFE:
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang") RRERE(THEE] - 1,200 11 - 1,211
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van Qoijen 7t £
(note i) (i) - 1,080 - - 1,080
Mr. Gu Liyong BFBERE - 947 48 82 1,077
Non-Executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Li Xikui (note i) FHERA (M) 144 - - 31 175
Dr. Loke Yu BT 150 - - 32 182
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHRRL 150 - - 32 182
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (note i) Michael Charles Lion 54 (Fif i) - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Dajian (note i) FERBIE () 6 - - - 6
450 3,227 59 177 3,913

EaREBERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13. EE - FE2TBAERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) M (1)
Directors (continued) EE(H)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances  contributions payments Total
Hek el IARRTA &
ik =i srElfE EREAR CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAL Fitn Titn Tt THL
Year ended 31 December 2013: HE-T-=%1ZA
=t+-BIEE:
Executive directors: WIES
Mr. Fang Ankong ("Mr. Fang") HRERE(HEE]) 24 1,195 8 190 1417
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %% 24 1,056 = 54 1,134
Mr. Gu Liyong BFERE 24 927 9 351 1,311
Non-Executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Li Xikui FHEEE 150 = - 89 239
Dr. Loke Yu FEgEL 150 - - 89 239
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHRTT 150 - - 89 239
Mr. Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 74 - - - - -
522 3,178 17 862 4579

Mr. Fang is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Employees
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, three (2013:
three) were directors, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013:

EE - IRTRABRES
B (/&)

]
RAKBEAREHHALES =4
—R-F:ZR)REF AMSE
HREXHBE - B THRA(ZF—=

two) individuals were as follows: F WA AL
2014 2013
—ZE-lEFE —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Salaries and other allowances e R HE A ER 2,170 2,170
Share-based payments LARRAD R BRI 2 IS5k 366 971
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R REFIFH 2L 28 23
2,564 3,164
Analysed into the following bands: e EHE AT T
Number of Number of
individual individual
AT AE AT AH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % T2 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
notes: B 3E
(i) Mr. Li Xikui resigned and Mr. Zhu Dajian was appointed as non-executive (i) RZZB—NE+ZA+tH FHELLE
director on 17 December 2014. RIERBEABRCEESTRIERITES -
(ii) Mr. Michael Charles Lion and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen resigned on 16 (ii) Michael Charles Lion 5t 4 & Stephanus Maria

February 2015 and 12 March 2015 respectively.

(iii) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors
waived any emoluments during both years.

(iii)

van Ooijen &S FIR=ZF—RAF A+~
HER=Z—HAF=A+=-HEE -

RREFERN - AEEYEREMESLT
BREFAINME - SRS MAKRE
B SR AN A 6% B 5 1 B2 D SR BB 1 - 70
MEFER - MEESEREERHE -

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE UK M EE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FiSBimx
2014 2013
bl ES —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax: BNEATIE :
PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT") A B FTISEL 2,435 7,354
(TS
Hong Kong B 471 6,697
Other jurisdictions H i AlEER 138 (24)
3,044 14,027
Under(over)provision in prior years: RBEFEREET R GBE) ¢
PRC EIT AR EFTIS R 1 2,073
Hong Kong B 507 (11)
518 2,062
Deferred tax (Note 33) EIEFLIE (KizE33) 67 9,653
3,629 25,742

168 Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

FriSHiBax (%)
FRBIEM XA REAEE R 2T
RABBABRHRMAT -

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss before tax BEERIE1E (1,067,611) (381,776)
Tax at applicable tax rates (note iv) RBAMETE 2 FE (MiEiv) (244,864) (81,219)
Tax effect of expenses not DRI 2 BT 2
deductible for tax purpose 41,312 33,326
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIM AR B % 72 2
for tax purpose (10,121) (14,052)
Tax effect of deductible temporary ARBETR Y AT R R = R A
differences not recognised Misz 2 1,362 537
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEBBENT BT E 215,332 86,289
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses (R 2 AR HER T IE 18
previously not recognised RIS 2 - (1,481)
Deferred tax provided on dividends FEIR B A RIS
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries TEHB 2 BRI IE 90 280
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREEDR 518 2,062
Tax charge for the year FAMETFHRZ 3,629 25,742

notes:

(i) The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at the rate of 25%.

(ii) All Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of

16.5%.

(iii) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdiction.

(iv) As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate reconciliations

using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction have been

aggregated and presented.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

75 55 [ ¢y o BRI BB /1 B4R 25 % MBS
PEREMER o

BB BB R RIHER 16.5% KT KM
FBTEH -

R EL A RAE [ 2 A RO B IR TR AR BE A HE
EEVRITHRH -

HRARBR ARG RIAERLSE @ 2%

BiRs Al AR M T B Rt He B HERE &
eI

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZE—ZT—F+-_A=1+—HItFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2014 2013
—ZE-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividend recognised as ERREANDIRRS
distribution during the year:
nil (2013: 2012 final dividend paid — E(ZE—=4F:
HK2.12 cents per share) Bk = ——FRERE
— &% 2.1270) - 22,143

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2014, nor has any
dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of the
reporting period in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: no final dividend was proposed).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16.

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company are based on the following data:

BREE
RRAREE ARG ESREARBEER
TR AT 8iga 4 -

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to ARt EERERREEEERN
owners of the Company for the RARHEE AELFEAERE
purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share (1,057,980) (382,920)

Weighted average number of BT EFREARREEEIRN
ordinary shares for the TmAR I 98 R

purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

In current and prior years, the potential ordinary shares
attributable to the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds,
warrants and certain share options have anti-dilutive effect as the
assumed conversion and exercise would result in a decrease in loss
per share.

1,047,387,288 1,044,166,684

RAFEIBEFE  ARBRAITE
AR ES - RAREE R E TRRER
HEEEBRAEREBEYE ARR
RBRITER SR B REBRERND -

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% BEKRRZE
Office
Plant furniture Construction
and and Motor Leasehold in
machinery equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
Buildings HER N BENE
BF BE B 7B € fRIR @
HK$" 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tt T T T T Tk T
cost A&
At 1 January 2013 R=F-=%-f-H 101,090 192,044 19,325 9,026 56,246 57,256 434,987
Exchange realignment B A% 3,164 4,963 541 M 1474 2,560 12914
Additions HE = 6,642 2,619 187 353 50,068 59,869
Transfers &2 - (132) 408 - 219 (495) -
Disposal e - (2,809) (62) (303) - - (3,174)
At31December 2013 MZF-=£+ZA=1-H 104,254 200,708 22,831 9,122 58,292 109,389 504,596
Exchange realignment ~ ER:% (352) (569) (93) (88) (165) 459 (808)
Additions HE = 9,044 1,041 3,012 1,919 198,527 214143
Transfers gz - 677 123 - - (800) -
Disposal i - (2,057) (41) (768) - - (2,866)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-REFZA=1—A 103,902 208,403 23861 11,218 60,046 307,575 715,065
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2013 R=F-=%-f-H 32,858 49,3% 9,453 2,928 41,889 - 136,524
Exchange realignment B A% 1,101 1511 321 92 1,285 - 4310
Charge for the year ERTH 4,700 21,589 3,140 1,345 3,534 - 34,308
Transfer &2 - (106) 106 - - - -
Disposal e - (1,908) (54) (114) - - (2,076)
At31December 2013 MZF-=£+ZA=1-H 38,659 70,482 12,966 4,251 46,708 - 173,066
Exchange realignment ~ ER:% (111) (156) (46) (16) (139) - (468)
Charge for the year ERg 4,688 22,849 3,169 1,650 3,766 - 36,122
Disposal e = (1,503) (30) (387) - - (1,920)
At31December 2014 M=Z-WET=A=1-A 43,236 91,672 16,059 5498 50,335 - 206,800
CARRYING VALUES BEf
At31 December 2014 MZF-METZA=+-H 60,666 116,731 7,802 5,780 9,711 307,575 508,265
At31December 2013 MZF-=F+ZA=1-H 65,595 130,26 9,865 4,871 11,584 109,389 331,530

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. M% - BERZE (E)
(continued)
notes: Bt et -
(i) As at 31 December 2014, certain plant and buildings with an aggregate (i) RZZT—ME+=_A=+—H0"  FHE{E
carrying amount of HK$68,258,000 (2013: HK$43,056,000) were pledged as 4 %8 /368,258,000 ;w( = T — = F :
security for bank borrowings granted to the Group. 43,056,000 7% 7T ) & T E RigFHERE

AETAEERITEROER -

(ii) As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all buildings were situated in the PRC (ii) RZE—NER=FT—=F+=A=+—
under medium-term leases. H: FARFAMNRFE - AR EBELR
5o
(iii) The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are (iii) W BRE KRB (ERIRERIN St EHE
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their FIREER - BETTRFHITENT ¢

residual value, as follows:

Buildings 20 years or the relevant lease term, #F 20F A RETEA
whichever is shorter (ABFGH A%

Plant and machinery 9%-20% i R s 9% Z20%

Office furniture and equipment  18%-30% MARERRE 18% £ 30%

Motor vehicles 18%-30% E 18% Z30%

Leasehold improvements 30%-50%, the relevant lease term or the HEMEEE 30% = 50% s B
estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter TRk G A F

(AR E AE)

ESAMEBRGRAT =T NEFR VE;




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FE[NHEE

2014 2013
—ZT-NF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The prepaid lease payments RS
comprise leasehold land BERE L
— in Hong Kong held under — (IR A
medium-term leases RERFRARES 140,425 144,746
—in the PRC held under — R AR [ A
medium-term leases RERFR AR 291,656 298,965
432,081 443,711
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A2 AE BRI
Current asset mENEE 10,620 10,642
Non-current asset ERBEE 421,461 433,069
432,081 443,711
notes: B e -

174

(ii)

(iii)

The leasehold land in Hong Kong is under a medium-term lease and for specific
usage.

As at 31 December 2014, prepaid lease payments with carrying amount of
HK$304,746,000 (2013: HK$238,967,000) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not acquire any
leasehold land. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired
certain leasehold land in the PRC held under medium term lease amounting to
HK$89,537,000.
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(ii)

(iii)

REBNEE TR HROREERE
R -

R-ZEBE—MOME+-_A=+—B ' FE@

8 %304,746,0007 L( = T — = & ¢
238,967,000 % 7T) WA H S EIRERK T
REEPITEENER o

REE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE -
AEBWEBECMAEL M - HE-T
—=F+A=+—BHILFE  AEERE
PHEORNTEEES THELH €S8R
89,537,000 T,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REME

HK$'000
FHET
COST AR A
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 RZ=ZT—=F5—H—HAK
—FT—=f+-_A=+—H 32,052
Disposal & (5,975)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MF+=—A=+—H 26,077
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2013 R-_EZ—=%—HF—H 1,244
Provided for the year FANBE 1,866
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZF—=F+=-A=+—H 3,110
Provided for the year FANEAE 1,631
Disposal HE (1,015)
At 31 December 2014 R—_ZF—WNFE+=-A=+—H 3,726
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H 22,351
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZF—=F+=-A=+—H 28,942

notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The above investment properties, which are situated in Hong Kong and held
under medium-term leases, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
remaining useful lives.

As at 31 December 2014, investment properties with carrying amount of
HK$22,351,000 (2013: HK$23,748,000) were pledged as security for bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

On 19 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of an investment property at
a consideration of HK$34,560,000 with a gain on disposal of HK$29,216,000
after deducting the transaction cost of HK$384,000. The disposal was
completed during the year and the consideration was settled in full upon
completion.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2014
was HK$40,300,000 (2013: HK$71,600,000). The fair value has been arrived
at based on a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the fair value was determined based on
direct comparison approach which is by reference to recent market prices for
similar properties in similar locations and conditions.

fiat -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EeRiEEFRAE

R ES R AR IR AR B RO Y IR
TMEAFHNEREENE o

R-ZT—WFE+=-_A=+—H EKEEAS
22,351,000 70 ( =2 — = 4 : 23,748,000
BT MR E M ERRIEAR T AREERT
EEMER -

R-Z—MEXNA+TNAR AEEEFIEH
=HRI S B E a0 AR {E34,560,0007%
THEREYE « HIBR 384,000 BTTR K
A& - HEWEA29,216,0008 7T  ZHE
ERFEATK  BRANREBEERTRETHLE

E
/8 °

REERENMER-_Z—NF+_A=+—
H & AF(EA40,300,0008 T (=T — =14 :
71,600,000 7T) - ZAFEDRIEESH
BRI EERAR (RAEEERRE 2B IA
BISEEEER) FTEEETER -

RZB—=FR=-FT—NF+=-A=1+—

B RFETESZHOME R G ELL
YEIHTE - RAERLBAERE °

—E—NEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

notes: (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

The key input used in the valuation of the investment properties is transaction

prices for similar properties after accounting for floor areas and floor level.

19. REMZE (&)

Bt - ()

(iv) (8

BEHMEAFER - NENESRRERE
REERIAE

RAYEGENEZH AZUR S REEE
HMEZEBREAUNENRSE -

Fair value at Fair value at Valuation
Description 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 techniques Unobservable input
R-2-—NF RZT—=%
+t=A=t+-H +=-A=+—-H
Fiip U ZAFE ZATE fbER % TARRH AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Investment properties 40,300 71,600 Direct comparison Transaction prices for similar

Commercial - Hong Kong

AXEENE -BA

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair

value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 are as follows:

approach
HRELEE

properties after adjusting

for floor areas and floor level.
HEEmEREEERER

BUDENRZHE

(v) AEBR T =FR-_ZFT—WNFE+=A
=+ HOREVEFBERAFESREN

U
2014 2013
Level 3 Level 3
—Z-mEF =%
F=® E=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Commercial property units R BBHI B XY EEN

located in Hong Kong 40,300 71,600

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both years.

176 Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20.

At 31 December 2013, the available-for-sale investment
represented an investment of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and was stated at fair value which was determined based on the
bid price quoted in an active market. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Company disposed of all of its available-for-
sale investment.

AEEERE
R-E—=#+=-A=+—8 A
HEREERENER EHHRAE
% YBEFRTHMREAMETE
AFER - RBE-F-—NF+ A
S+—HLEE  ARTHERFAET
HHERE -

21. INVENTORIES 21. 8
2014 2013
—2-nmEF —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Raw materials R 574,724 1,032,564
Finished goods BURK R 533,065 1,537,709
1,107,789 2,570,273

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B R EfEWRFIE
2014 2013
—ZT-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAIT
Trade receivables: B S EWRIA
0-30 days 0Z30H 62,366 129,659
31-60 days 31£60H - 11,486
61-90 days 61%90H 5,572 24,300
91-180 days 91% 180 H 17,413 58,580
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 56,546 57,702
141,897 281,727
Other receivables: H Ath U RIA -

Deposits and prepayments e RIERKRIE 29,140 37,300

Deposits paid for purchase BERMZEMNiES
of raw materials (note iii) (Pt dii) 221,534 214,734
VAT recoverable AR EIEER 28,485 206,762
Others Hih 10,260 3,954
289,419 462,750
431,316 744,477

notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Chiho-Tiand

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limit. Credit limits to customers

are reviewed regularly.

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days.
A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers with good credit
quality upon the approval of management.

The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, was prepared based on the invoice

date which approximate to the date of revenue recognition.
Included an amount of HK$4,294,000 (2013: HK$36,442,000) paid to Sims

Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”), a shareholder with
significant influence over the Company.

e Group Limited  Annual Report 2014

(i)

(iii)

REMHEPH - AEERFHEERFH
FEEERRATRFPHEERE  YHHET
B MREE PETIRE ©

AEE-—RETESEF30E0ANEE
B mRSEEEIER  AEEAREE
EHRRIFNEZEPRHERNEES -

RIFEHR - AEEE 5 EKHIAEINR R IR
BERNRROMIZER B H (RRSHER
BEIRE) 251 -

BREINEARABERNTE ZRRSims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
([Sims]) 84,294,000 L (=% — =4 :
36,442,000 %7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

= =h =
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESREHMEWKFIE(E)
(continued)
notes: (continued) MicE - (&)
(iv) Included in the trade receivable balance are debtors with an aggregate (iv) B 5 RUGRIB £ # B IERRE 4818 73,959,000
carrying amount of HK$73,959,000 (2013: HK$116,282,000) which were BIL(ZZT— =4 : 116,282,000/8 7T ) &I f&
past due at the end of the reporting period but for which the Group has not WERR - RIS EIARE A - ASEI R
provided impairment loss. BULVERE R R R -
The Group does not hold any collateral against the above amounts. However, ARE B S DRI 2 A - A
management believes that the carrying amounts are recoverable given that i BRERR  EREHNREREDTHE
adequate impairment allowance has been recognised as follows: R - BEZEFRE AWM
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBENBE
2014 2013
—E—-QmF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 7,817 7,332
Recognition of impairment loss on trade B 5 R B At EUGRIERL B 5 18
and other receivables TR 1,807 2,911
Recovery of bad debts U 5155 R - (12)
Amounts written off as uncollectible HUEH 4% 7 AT U 1 O SRR (113) (2,414)
Balance at end of the year FIR G 9,511 7,817
(v) Trade receivables that were denominated in currencies other than the (v) NEMEEEREIGEEBUINIEBEHER
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: B 5 R EAEYGRIEIT
2014 2013
—Z—mEF —E-=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
usD B 6,187 1,305
HK$ BT - 12,219
EUR BT 28 17

ESAMEBRGRAT =T NEFR 179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

Bt M AR Y AE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

23.

24,

BILLS RECEIVABLES

An analysis of the Group's bills receivables by age at the end of the
reporting period, based on their invoice dates which approximate

23. EREE

RBEFR - AEBNREEEREKD
frizz = A8 (BRI ETER B HEE) 2

to the date of revenue recognition, is as follows: E L/ N
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-30 days 0&30H 127 6,614
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 24. ABE N TRIER
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of investment in an associate: B R AR E R
Unlisted (Note) Ik (FIE) 2,325 =
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAG YRS 18 8 1| e L th 2 TET U A
other comprehensive income 284 -
2,609 -

Note: Included in cost of investment is goodwill of HK$1,548,000. HeE

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 24, REEENTIER (B)
Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period AEERBREHRNE L QR FBD
are as follows: T
Proportion Proportion
Principal of ownership of voting
Form Place of place of Class of interest held rights held
Name of entity of entity incorporation  operation shares held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
B RERS ifdies  TEEERE  FRROEH  AREREEERH ARBFERERLA TEER
2014 2013 014 2013

5P “Eck ZE-RE o St

Poly Metals Company Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 0% - 0% - Trading of metal scrap
Limited (*Poly Metals') R i & EER BeRLH
BALERRAA (58I
Summarised financial information in respect of Poly Metals is EHERVHEERBESHSMT -
set out below. The summarised financial information below BT At B B R A RIS E BhAR 18 s
represents amounts shown in Poly Metals’ financial statements B R E R R E N SRR RS
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. 58 o
Poly Metals is accounted for using the equity method in these M i AR R R R B E BB
consolidated financial statements. BYALE o
2014 2013
—E-IF =4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
Current assets MENEE 10,690 -
Non-current assets SERBEE 270 -
Current liabilities mEEE (5.656) -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - =

ESAMEBRGRAT =T NEFR 181
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182

24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 24, REEENTIER (B)

2014 2013

—E-OF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Revenue e 129,901 -

Profit for the year F AN 1,419 =
Other comprehensive FAHMEERA

income for the year - =
Total comprehensive FAZHEBAEZE

income for the year 1,419 -

Dividends received from FAWEE ERHIRE

Poly Metals during the year

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Poly Metals recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

SRR B 7 B R R AR S B TS R R P
RN ERERREEZ SR T

2014 2013

—E—mE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FH&T

Net assets of Poly Metals BRI EEFE 5,304 -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership PiNCE S pdies T Zad sl

interest in Poly Metals 20% -

Share of net assets of Poly Metals BB EEFE 1,061 -

Goodwill EES 1,548 -
Carrying amount of the Group's REBNER 2 R 2 REE

interest in Poly Metals 2,609 -

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. PTEEmTIA
2014 2013
—T—mE —F=F
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TR TR
Derivative financial assets TTESRMEE
Metal commodities future contracts cERmBEEH (i) 390,786 130,272
Provisional pricing arrangements Fa R E (B 2 HE (ii) - 2,149
Foreign currency forward contracts HNEE SR HR A 4 (iii) 690 267
391,476 132,688
Derivative financial liabilities fTESmEeRs
Metal commodities future contracts cERRPEEH (i) 402,917 32,683
Provisional pricing arrangements FREF e BB (i) - 181
Foreign currency forward contracts AN SR HR A % (iii) 15 439
402,932 33,303
notes: MeE
(i) Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) 10) SRBEREEA Y CEEEE)
The Group enters into aluminium, copper, lead, zinc, steel rebar and nickel ANEBBITIEE 8 i MR
future contracts in order to manage its exposure to the price risk of aluminium, WAH  UEIBERREMLSBIEENER
copper and other metal inventories. These contracts are actively traded in an Al o RIBEEIG - ZEA NN ERTIE -
active market and are measured at fair values based on unadjusted quoted RAERBER KRR ARBEIAATE S
price at the end of the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly 2 HEBRXEERERERRED -

in profit or loss.

ESAMEBRGRAT =T NEFR 183
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25.
(continued)

notes: (continued)

PTEERMIA (&)

HiaE - (48)
(i) Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued) (i) SEEMBEANCFRLEE)(E)

RBEHRRFRESBHE SO0 EZER

of the reporting period are set out below: s

Major terms of the metal commodities future contracts outstanding at the end

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014

31 December 2014

=F-mFE+=A=+-H

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

BRE® BESHEEN HEB F#A

Aluminium future contracts:

EHEAH

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 420 From 15 January 2015
RMB13,000 to RMB 13,525 per tonne SHA to 13 March 2015

BN A R#13,0007T B=Z—H&—A+HH
2 AR13,525 TEREE E_FT-HAF=RA1+=H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,982 From 2 January 2015
USD1,854 to USD2,075 per tonne 25MF to 31 March 2015

BN TEME1,854% T E2,075% 7T B-_Z—RF—A-RHZE
MEREE —ZT—RF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,602 From 2 January 2015
USD1,870 to USD2,075 per tonne 250 to 30 March 2015

BN TEME1,870 £ITE2,075% 7T B-_Z—HF—A-RA=E
M ERSHE —T-RFE=RA=+H

Copper future contracts:

SEHEAL -

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 3,595 From 15 January 2015
RMB44,760 to RMB47,770 per tonne SHA to 15 April 2015

BN T AR K44,760E AREA7,7707T BE-T—HE&—A+HBZE
MEREE —Z-RFMA+EHEA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 3,966 From 2 January 2015
USD6,235 to USD6,843 per tonne 250 to 31 March 2015

=R F-EE6,2355K T E6,843% 7T B-_Z—HF—A-RAE
MERES —ZT—RF=RA=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 3,366 From 2 January 2015
USD6,276 to USD6,843 per tonne 25088 to 30 March 2015

BN T EME6,276% L 56,843% 7T
M ERHE

B-T—RF&—A=RAZE
—E-HF=A=+A
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued)

31 December 2014 (continued)

25. TTEE®mTI A (8)
MisE « (48)
(i) SEBERBEAHCFEAE)(E)

—E-mE+=A=+—AH (&)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AREE BEEHEEN BN FHA

Zinc future contracts:

HHEEA -

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 80 21 January 2015
USD2,203 to USD2,220 per tonne 2508 —ZT—RF—A=-+—H

BN FEME2,203%€ T2 2,220% T
MEREBE

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 80 21 January 2015
USD2,203 to USD2,220 per tonne 2508 —T—RF—HA=+—8H

RN FEME2,203% T2 2,220 T
MEBHE

Steel rebar future contracts:

HFHEEHK -

Buy at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 69,267 15 May 2015
RMB2,480 to RMB2,641 per tonne 10M8 —T-AFHATAHA

BN T EEARE2,480TE ARE2,6417T
MEREBE

Nickel future contracts:

LR

Buy at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 487 From 14 January 2015
USD15,195 to USD 16,398 per tonne GIE to 18 March 2015

BN FEME15,195K T E 16,3985 T BE-E-A5—At+tHmBZE
BEREBE —T-RF=A+/\H

Sell at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 487 From 14 January 2015
USD15,195 to USD 16,398 per tonne GIE to 18 March 2015

BN FEME15,195% T E 16,3985 T B-Z-RF—A+HAZE
MERIHE —T-RF=A+/\H

Lead future contracts:

HRIEEHK

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,553 From 14 January 2015
USD1,838 to USD2,056 per tonne 25088 to 31 March 2015

RN FNE1,838% T E 2,056 T BE-T-RF—A+HBEZE
BEREBE —T-RF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,410 From 14 January 2015
USD1,864 to USD2,070 per tonne 2508 to 24 March 2015

BN T8 1,8645 22,070 T
MERHE

B-FT-AF-ATMEE
—E—AF=A=+mWmA

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued)

31 December 2013

25. TTEE®mTI A (8)
MisE « (48)
(i) SEBERBEAHCFEAE)(E)

—®-—=%+=A=+-H

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AREE BEEFEN BN EHAE

Aluminium future contracts:

HEEEAA

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 40 15 May 2014
RMB13,945 per tonne SIE —FT-MOFRATHEA

BN A R13,9457T
MEREE

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,242 From 2 January 2014
USD1,762 to USD1,895 per tonne 25MF to 31 March 2014

BNTFEHE1,762E T2 1,895% T =Stk Sy g = Y
MEREE —T-MFE=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 700 From 2 January 2014
USD1,778 to USD 1,895 per tonne 25M to 31 March 2014

BN T EHE1,778E L% 1,895% T B-Z-—WE—RA=RZE
MERHE —T-ME=A=+—H

Copper future contracts:

HEEERA

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 6,589 From 15 January 2014
RMB50,000 to RMB52,600 per tonne 548 to 15 April 2014

N T E1EARK50,0007TE A RKS52,6007T BE-F-HFE—A+ARE
MEREE —Z-MFMA+EHA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,142 From 2 January 2014
USD6,921 to USD7,389 per tonne 25M to 27 March 2014

BN TEE6,921%T%7,389% T B-Z-WFE-—A-HAE
MEREBE —T-ME=A=++H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,128 From 2 January 2014
USD6,921 to USD7,415 per tonne 25MF to 27 March 2014

BN T EME6,921%TE7,415% 7T

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

0]

Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued)

31 December 2013 (continued)

25. TTEE®mTI A (8)
MisE « (48)
(i) SEBERBEAHCFEAE)(E)

—B-=F+=-A=+—-H(#&)

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AREE BEEHEEN BN FHA

Zinc future contracts:

FRIEEHK

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,120 From 2 January 2014
USD1,867 to USD2,096 per tonne 2508 to 31 March 2014

RN FEME1,8673k T2 2,096% T BE-F-mFE-—A-A%
MEREE —E-MFE=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,128 From 2 January 2014
USD1,867 to USD2,105 per tonne 2508 to 31 March 2014

RN T EME1,867TE2,105% T = mteSink: St = Y
MEBHE —T-MFE=A=+—H

Steel rebar future contracts:

HFHEEHK -

Buy at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 1,700 15 May 2014
RMB3,570 to RMB3,700 per tonne 10M8 —FT-mOFRATAHEA

BN T EEARE3570TE ARE3,7007T
MEREBE

Nickel future contracts:

LR

Buy at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 190 From 2 January 2014
USD 13,425 to USD14,705 per tonne (i1 to 27 March 2014

BN FEME13,425% T E 14,7055 T B-Z-WNE—A-HZE
BEREBE —T-mME=A=++H

Sell at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 112 From 2 January 2014
USD13,518 to USD 14,850 per tonne GIE to 20 March 2014

RN FEME13,518% T E 14,850 T H)
BIgHE

B-Z—WE—R=HZE
—E-MFE=A=+H

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii)

Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered into copper
scrap sales contracts that contain provisional pricing arrangements with certain
customers. The Group recognised sales revenue, upon delivery of goods
once the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to
the customers, based on the quoted copper prices on the Shanghai Futures
Exchange or the London Metal Exchange as at date of delivery with a fixed
discount on the purity of copper scrap (“Provisional Selling Price”). The Group
would receive the payments from the customers ranging from 70% to 90%
of the Provisional Selling Price in accordance with its normal trade terms
(“Provisional Payments”). All outstanding provisional pricing arrangements
contracts as at 31 December 2013 were settled during the year ended 31
December 2014.

In general, the provisional pricing arrangements allow the Group to choose
a date (“Price-fixing Date”) within a period of two to twelve months after
delivery to, or upon receipt of sales invoice by, the customers, whichever is
applicable, (“Pricing-fixing Period”) to fix the final selling price of the copper
scrap sold with reference to the copper future prices as quoted on the London
Metal Exchange and the Shanghai Futures Exchange with similar terms as the
provisional pricing arrangement on the Pricing-fixing Date, as adjusted for
the agreed purity of the copper scrap sold (“Final Selling Price”). If the Group
does not choose the Price-fixing Date within the Price-fixing Period, then the
last date in the Pricing-fixing Period is deemed to be the Price-fixing Date for
the purpose of determining the Final Selling Price. The difference between
the Final Selling Price and the Provisional Payments, once determined, will be

settled within a specified period.

For accounting purposes, the provisional price arrangements are separated
from the host contract for sales of copper scrap and are accounted for as
derivative instruments, the fair value change of which is recognised in profit or

loss.

At 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any copper scrap sales
contracts that contain provisional pricing arrangements.

Major terms of the provisional pricing arrangements contracts outstanding at

31 December 2013 were as follows:

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014

25. TTEERmI A (8)

BifeE « (4H)

(i)

IR EEZ I OFREHE)

BE-Z =F+-A=+—HLFE &
KEEETEP A BIEREEER R
MHERL  AEBEREAENENR R R
ERERERPARNENE  WREF L
BRERZZHMAMBEBRZ AN E B
e (E ([ ERRs &8 ) RIBERALE T AR
ETREBEERRHERA - REEFES
G - AR B RE PRI FRNT TR
EEHT70%E90% ([EREFIK]) - BE=R
—=F+-A=t+—BLFERBERTEAE
BEERHSAOHERBE—T—NF+=
A=+—RLEFENGH -

—RiME - REEEREEAREERR
AEFRNEMIMEIFEERREREL =
AR CREmERmE) ([EEBE]) N —
ERH(EERRDE2ENEEHHIZRE
R EERHELUGRZRBEBR SR
bR AR 5 A A 8 R Y B (B 1% B E P R
A RRERE ([SRERE]) - WIRMERER
M EFERETT R o AR E WL EEIR
EEMEANEERS  RIEBERE &R
AR AEERKEENEERY - &K
EEERRNROEZE—KEE - BREE
RERRNGHE -

AN E - R E A RERE I
HENTRNIFARITETR » HRFE

RZZ-—ME+-A=+—H AEETE

ER BRI EEL R EREEAL -

R-F-—=F+-_A=+—HAFRERE
BRI HNEZERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEE/T A ()
(continued)
notes: (continued) ik : (48)
(i) Provisional pricing arrangements (net settlement) (continued) (i) R EELHE(CFREE)(E)

31 December 2013

Notional amount
ZHLH

Provisional Selling Prices

iR S E

—®—=%+=-A=+-H

Last date in the Price-fixing Periods

EEMMSKE—A

2 contracts to sell 1,144
tonnes of copper scrap in total

BRAHE B, 144 EE IR E 210 & 4

1 contract to sell 766 tonnes
of copper scrap in total

AR E EE 766 R A K

Sell at prices ranging from
RMB49,882 to RMB50,885 per tonne

BN T EHEARREA49,882 7T E ARHES0,8857T
HERIHE

Sell at prices ranging from
USD6,367 to USD6,752 per tonne

BN T ENE6,3673£ 0 56,7525 70
HERIHE

(iii) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement) (iii)

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to

minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were

measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of the

reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or loss.

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2014

Notional amount
EZHLH

Forward contract rates
BHSHERE

30 September 2014

—Z2-WFEAA=FH

From 2 February 2014
to 22 February 2014
=it SieE: Sy S Y
—Z-HmE-A=+=H

EHINES K (RREE)
AR RT SR HINE & K SARIESNE RS ©

ZECHNBERRERBREERIZAFE
FtE - ARERERNBSIRPER -

PR HIAR AR F A R HISME & 40 = Z R

T

—®-mE+-A=+-8

Maturity date
Z#A

2 contracts to buy
USD2,091,848 in total

4 4£2,091,848%%THE E M2 &4

2 contracts to sell
USD6,888,000 in total

124 36,888,000 T iHE K210 & 4)

USD1: RMB6.3064
to RMB6.3194
12T R ARKG6.3064TE ARK6.31947C

USD1: RMB6.2969
to RMB6.3315
1ETHARY6.2969TF
AR%6.33157T

g

From 29 May 2015
to 3 September 2015
BT RFRA-1+NHEZE
—2-AEFAA=A

From 30 April 2015
to 11 May 2015
B-Z-HFMA=1+RZE
—Z2-hFAA+—H

BRUUEEBRLE —FT-EFFH
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e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

notes: (continued)

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHEE®MI A (&)
(continued)
BaE : ()
(iif) Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement) (continued) (iii) IRHASNE S X (RAEEE) (B)
31 December 2013 —B—=%+=HA=+—H
Notional amount Forward contract rates Maturity date
EREH RBAHRRE Z#A
2 contracts to buy USD1: RMB6.3064 From 29 May 2015
UsD2,091,848 in total to RMB6.3194 to 3 September 2015
ZE 32,091,848 X LB E M2 &1 135 AR#6.30647T B-Z-—HFAA-t+NBEZE
ZEAR¥6.31947T —T-RFNA=H
3 contracts to sell USD1: RMB6.2376 From 30 July 2014
UsD6,207,000 in total to RMB6.2549 to 13 August 2014
124 36,207,000 T HHE HI3H & 4 1L H ARY6.23767C BTt A=+H
= ANR#6.25497C E-T-HNENA+=R
26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN 26. EEARITER RES R

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

These represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Bank deposits of HK$182,559,000
(2013: HK$141,841,000) were pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings, of which HK$92,556,000 (2013: HK$102,170,000)
were used as collaterals for foreign currency forward contracts,

and are therefore classified as current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank deposits
carried fixed interest rates as follows:

THGBRES

B FRITER
ZEGFRIERBITER A ARAREE RS
RIERTTIE EVEL FEIRAYTT X © 182,559,000
BT (T — =4 : 141,841,000/ 7T) B
RITFREBRERBARITEENE
R » Hr192,556,000/8 L (=T — =4 :
102,170,000 %7t ) B AEINE R BRI & 4)
R - D B RREEE -

R|BEHRR - SEMRITETIZATE
E .

FEHE
2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=

Interest rate per annum
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e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(continued)

Margin deposits

The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions
to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these financial
institutions for trading metal commodities future contracts. The
margin deposits are non-interest bearing.

Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. At the end of the
reporting period, the bank balances carried interest rates as
follows:

26.

CHEBBITER RES R
THEBEREE (&)

REZ

BHBEFINEBEENER - RER
rEEREBEERPEEERNZSTER
BRI ZRBELEP - ZERIFET

Ei

RITERRBRE
ZEFREEASMRIBAL/=EA

FATHEHRITER - RIWEHK
RITARERA AT

2014
— ik

2013
—T—=F

R

Interest rate per annum

Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances
and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$447,057,000 (2013: HK$425,132,000) were denominated in
RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances and

0.01% to 1.15%
0.01% £ 1.15%

0.01% to 1.15%
0.01% £1.15%

EFREFEMERBRITER  RES
B3GR 17 4% £k IR © M8 58 & 447,057,000
7B (= & — = £ 1 425,132,000/5
TL) * B2ESAARBEHELZINEEH o

NERSEERESE I ERE

cash that are denominated in currencies other than the functional HEEFHRITER RESHRITAR
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: RIEBE£WMT :

2014 2013
—ZE—-F —E-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
RMB AR 244 300
HK$ BIT 631 1,276
usb ETT 108,067 124,810
EUR BT 24,462 7,558

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B REMBNIRIE
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables: B e FRIA ¢
Sims Sims 71,077 78,721
Third parties F=h 106,924 130,820
178,001 209,541
Other payables: H e RIA
Other payables and accruals (note ii) H e IR R FERT & A (BRE i) 160,839 112,068
Provision for pending REREEFAAEE
legal litigation (Note 40) (Mg7E40) 51,464 51,638
Interest payable FERTFILE 6,253 5,409
Receipts in advance from customers FBUREF I8 15,652 28,349
234,208 197,464
412,209 407,005
notes: Bt e
(i) Trade payables that are denominated in currencies other than the functional (i) NEMEEERBEEBUIINEETENE
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: SENRENT -
2014 2013
—B-MmF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
EUR BT 3,050 28,705
usD ES - 209
(ii) Included in other payables and accruals are import declaration, freight charges, (i) Hip e R R ET B A BEENRAE &

accrued salaries and audit fee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=F —

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27.

28.

Bt M AR Y AE ()

ME+—A=+—HILFE

An analysis of trade payables by age at the end of the reporting
period, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B2 REMEMNFRIE (E)
AEERBERRE SERBRER
AE2FIMRRANMT -

2014 2013
—F-mE =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAx FHT
Trade payables: B HRENFIE ¢
0-30 days 0ZE30H 113,241 177,776
31-60 days 31E60 A 56,525 26,376
61-90 days 61290 H 253 =
91-180 days 91Z 180 H 92 4,391
Over 180 days BB 180 B 7,890 998
178,001 209,541
BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS 28. RITBEREX
2014 2013
—E-MOF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fixed-rate borrowings: ELEE !
Secured bank loans BHEBRITER 797,526 706,562
Unsecured bank loans EERRITER 234,801 164,889
Unsecured bank overdrafts EERRITEX 721 316
Variable-rate borrowings: ZEEE
Secured bank loans BHEBRITER 264,146 234,703
Unsecured bank loans EERRITER 27,637 852,210
1,324,831 1,958,680
Carrying amount repayable (note (i)): FERTRREE (P EE ()
Within one year —FRN 1,324,831 1,943,089
More than one year, but BBE—F BTZR=F
not more than two years - 15,591
1,324,831 1,958,680
Less: e
Amounts due within one year RREBETE5H
shown under current liabilities THREERBIRENR
without repayment on demand clause BRIER—FAE BN (137,936) (683,522)
Amounts due within one year RREBEET2INTE
shown under current liabilities IRRIRZE SR TR
with repayment on demand clause —FRE|ER S5 (1,186,895) (1,259,567)
Amounts due over one year RRBEETZ2INFEE
shown under current liabilities IR YRR Z KR 5K A
with repayment on demand clause —FENSRE - (15,591)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

FRBEET2INNEH

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR

193




194
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RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS
(continued)

notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rates of the
borrowings are as follows:

28. SRITEEREX (&)

ff -

(i)

RS BEHRERGAMBOEEERA D

RBEHR - EENERFERMT
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F

Effective interest rate per annum: BRREFE
Fixed-rate borrowings ESEE
Variable-rate borrowings BEEE

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

1.50% to 6.44%
1.50% £6.44%
2.02% to 3.66%
2.02%%£3.66%

1.50% to 6.16%
1.50%%6.16%
3.14% t0 5.20%
3.14%%5.20%

(iii)

B HASEEEY LR U ERHERAR
SERFENT

2014 2013

—2-MmF —B—=F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FER TAET

HK$ BT 830 830
usb v 1,062,259 1,813,979

For the year ended 31 December 2013, a subsidiary exceeded the loan-to-
equity ratio specified in a bank loan agreement in relation to certain bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause. The relevant subsidiary had obtained a
waiver from the relevant bank that it would not demand immediate repayment

of the bank loan as a result of the breach of the financial covenant.
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(iv)

HE-Z—=F+_A=+—HIEFE —
FEI BTV A B O B FRAR A L 3R B IR SR AT B 3K 1
H AR IE ZoRE R G B T IRITEKATET
BAEEL R o ZBRAMIE A R B ES A BRTT
MR RIS T S B ISR RE LT Z kA&
BIRITER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2014, 3,978,000 and 852,000 (2013:
1,448,000 and 64,500) share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the
Scheme (as defined in Note 37) were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$2.43 and HK$3.38 (2013: HK$2.43 and HK$3.38) per share respectively,
resulting in the issue of 3,978,000 and 852,000 (2013: 1,448,000 and 64,500)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IRA
Number
notes of shares Amount
BT R & B %]
HK$
BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R=ZZ—=f—H—H"
at 1 January 2013, 31 December —E=FRIZMEF
2013 and 2014 +-A=+—H
BREE0.01 BT LB 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETIAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZE—=F—H—H
at 1 January 2013 SARE(E0.01 B Th) S B 1,043,506,206 10,435,062
Exercise of share options 1R RE AR (i) 1,512,500 15,125
Shares repurchased and cancelled B 1n BB (Bl K 5t 8 (ii) (406,000) (4,060)
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F+=-A=+—H 1,044,612,706 10,446,127
Exercise of share options TR E (i) 4,830,000 48,300
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MmFE+=-A=1+—H 1,049,442,706 10,494,427

B aE

REBE-_Z—NFE+-_A=+—RAILEFE -
BRARBEENFERFE(ER LM
37)18 T #93,978,0001% K&852,00013 ( =
T — =4 : 1,448,000 & 64,50017 ) & Ik
D RIRER243B T R338HET(=F
—=% 2438 R3.388BT) HREEE
116 - BRAARETEREE.01E T
3,978,000 A% % 852,000 % (=T — =4 :
1,448,000 &% K 64,500 % ) L 3mEA%

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company repurchased 406,000
of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,324,000 pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors
at its annual general meeting. The highest and lowest prices paid for the
repurchased shares were HK$3.28 and HK$3.20, respectively.

29. BRA(48)
MiaE : (48)

(i) REBEE—ZE—=F+t-A=1+—RHILEE -
ANRRBEREBRRAFAG LRAESHE
HE—REERBEXAMERERS KRG
406,000f% * & KB 1,324,000 7T B
1A% 15 ) Bk e SR B AR B A% 3 Bl 4 3.28 BB T I

3.20/7T °
Details of the repurchases are as follows: RELEFIFIT
Total number Highest Lowest
of ordinary price paid price paid Aggregate
Month of the repurchases shares repurchased per share per share consideration
BEZER ENER 2SR
BE A G ay BEE BRIEE ARE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHT
Year ended 31 December 2013: BE—ZT—=F
+TZA=+—HILFE :

June 2013 —T—=FXA 406,000

All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The nominal value of
the cancelled shares was credited to the capital redemption reserve and the
aggregate consideration was paid out of the reserves of the Company.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities during both years.

(iii) All the above-mentioned new shares issued ranked pari passu in all respects
with other shares in issue.

(iv) On 21 March 2015, the Company entered into the first subscription agreement
with an independent third party (the “Subscriber”) to allot and issue 203,900,000
ordinary shares, rank pari passu, at the first subscription price of HK$9.01 per
first subscription share. Upon the completion, the net proceeds from the first
subscription of new shares are estimated to be approximately HK$1,835,640,000.
Details of this are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2015.

(v) On 21 March 2015, the Company also entered into the second subscription
agreement (as amended and restated by a supplemental agreement dated
27 March 2015) with the Subscriber conditionally allot and issue additional
253,000,000 ordinary shares for an aggregate amount of HK$2,279,530,000
at the initial second subscription price of HK$9.01 per second subscription
share. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March
2015.
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3.28 3.20 1,324

ERFERM NI o EHERMD A
HERGEFABLEOMREE  RARESR
REIEE R -

REEFERN - HEAQR M EREE
8 HERERARR R ER EHES

(i) FACAEBTHRGREBTHEMRD
EFAPESSARSES -

(iv) RZZE—AF=A=-+—H KAAHE—
ZBUE=F(RBEF DI LE—HRE
W WIRE-—HRBETRSE —HRE
fi% 1 9.01 % JT B & K& % 17203,900,000 %
TRARAERE M) REKE - &
— B RBEEFRG TS RBFREGE AN
1,835,640,000 % 7T ¥ B &N AR 7 H H
AT -REFE=A-t+tANRE -

(v) R-_ZE-—RFE=A=—+—B  AQFFE
REFITLE—NREDRE(KBEHAE=
E-—AF=A=-t+tBEMERBHRMEET
REZ) RIRVNRE-#BEESTRS
“HRERDIONBITE R RE
1778 51253,000,000 % L@k - L& @A
2,279,530,000 8 7T © A EHER AL F B H
AB_E—RFE=ZA-_t++tHENALE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

30. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Y

30. FEIEPRHER

Share of net liabilities

of subsidiaries

FrAL B 2 &)
FEE(BE)

2014 2013

—2-nmEF —F=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January n—HA—H (67,671) (41,463)

Share of loss for the year FRFTEEE (13,260) (24,598)

Share of foreign currency PTG SNESTE 3 (8
translation reserve 237 (1,610)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H (80,694) (67,671)
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31. AIERES

Debt Derivative

component component

BB D PTEE D

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FET

At 1 January 2013 R—ZT—=F—HF—H 708,547 85,290

Interest charge FE & A 83,491 -

Interest paid B (32,632) =

Changes in fair value NEEED) - (71,937)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 HKRZ=_Z—=%+-A=+—H

ZEREE 759,406 13,353

Interest charge FMEEA 89,647 -

Interest paid B FE (32,632) =

Changes in fair value N EZE - (13,353)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 R=-ZT—M&E+-A=+—H

ZBRMEE 816,421 -

EeRiEEFRAE

—E—NEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 1 March 2012 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued convertible bonds
to HWH Holding Limited (“HWH"), Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) and
Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) (collectively the
“Subscribers”) with an aggregate principal sum of HK$815,800,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) with detachable three-year warrants (the “Warrants”)
at total consideration of HK$815,800,000 (the “Subscription”). Details of the
Warrants are set out in Note 32.

The major terms of the Convertible Bonds are as below:

(@) The Convertible Bonds carry 4% coupon interest per annum payable
in arrears semi-annually. Unless previously converted, the Convertible
Bonds will be fully redeemed by the Company at its principal amount
upon maturity on 1 March 2015 (the “Maturity Date”). No early
redemption of the Convertible Bonds is allowed unless the Company
commits an event of default under the terms and conditions of the

Convertible Bonds.

(b) The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of
the Issue Date, if any of the Subscribers is not able to exercise any
conversion rights on or before the Maturity Date solely because of the

minimum public float restriction under the Listing Rules.

(o) The holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right to convert the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period
from the second anniversary of Issue Date up to 10 business days prior

to Maturity Date, subject to the minimum public float requirement.

The Convertible Bonds comprise debt component and derivative component
(including conversion, extension and early redemption options), which are
measured at fair value of HK$659,611,000 and HK$142,771,000, respectively,
on initial recognition. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company will be able to maintain the minimum public float of Company’s
shares required under the Listing Rules and will not trigger the condition of
the extension of the Convertible Bonds. Also, the event of default is unlikely to
occur and will not trigger the early redemption of Convertible Bonds, therefore
the fair values of the extension and early redemption options were considered

insignificant on initial recognition and as at 31 December 2014.

The fair value of the debt component on initial recognition was calculated
using the present value of contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate of 11.756%.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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31. ARRES ()

BRE

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZT—Z—F=A—B(ZITREH]) &
ATFEHWH Holdings Limtied ((HWH ) »
Delco Participation B.V.([Delcol) % Sims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
(ISims]) (8 REH ) BT =F A
HoRES(RREE ) ERSLER
815,800,000 & 7T 2 AT # % &5 % ([ AT #A A%
% 1) - #81(8%815,800,000% 7T ([ R =
) - RBREFEOFIBEBMTE32

AR E A B E B IERFESN AT

(@) AMRESNE 4% FERE - FF
FXM—IR BRIEERILE TR
ARRABEN_F—HAF=A—H3
HEE((2HE D AR EER 25
AR A - BRIEA QB ERATA
BEFH R RGNS - BRI AR
TR F BB AT ES o

(b) fif 5 E A REE 7 B R LR Bl M &
EARFRER M NEREH A
SR AT AR M - RIZIH A
REEHITAROFERLBEF -

(© AR EFEABERETA S
FRFEFHAMIEEEXAZ
BRI R AT S KB 5 Re
B (A TR EEHE) KA Rk E
FWASRERKAR B FREE
0.01 BT - HEAETFRER
BRI IREHIRE °

ARRESFBIEEEHD RITEHS -« (
ERHR - THRIERERE) DERAFE
511 45659,611,000/ 7T} 142,771,000/ 7T
ML EREE - ARAIEFERA - AR
HEREMER: ETARARE A D ARG I &IEA
BRBREUR TS BRI RREHF TS
Boo AN - BRFHT AR BERBEEURT
SRR R EE A MR ES - At T8
REBEENAFEENLIERRERR -
—MOFE+ZA=+—ABERAER/ -

z

xS @

7

B

Rl

>

PRI (R 90 2 T TYE R R
FI% 11.756% R & MR A AR S )
RN -

RE B - TRRES 2 BB TR
SHACA IR BB FOATI B -
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The fair value of the derivative component was determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as follows:

31. AlRRES (&)
st ()

(v)

MTET AR R FETR_AHEFEEE
NEERZEAMBMAZ EZEHENT

At At

At 31 December 31 December

Issue Date 2013 2014

RZF—=%F R-T—IF

REITEHH +=—A=+—H +=A=+—8

Stock price (B HK$4.33 HK$2.87 HK$2.80
4.33%7T 2.87% 7T 2.808 T

Exercise price 1IfE(E HK$6.00 HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.007 7T 6.00% 7T 6.0078 7T

Expected volatility (note a) fastRE (fsta) 53.189% 53.189% 53.189%
Dividend yield RSz 0.855% 0.739% 0.000%
Option life HREFH 35.5 months 13.5 months 1.5 months
35.518 A 13.51@ A 1.5 A8

Risk free rate (note b) R A E (FiREb) 0.277% 0.201% 0.028%

notes:

(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied
volatility of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation.

(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong
Government Bond's and treasury bill’s yield.

(o) In subsequent periods, the derivative component is measured at fair

value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

No conversion of the Convertible Bonds took place since the Issue Date.

On 3 and 4 March 2015, the existing holders of the Convertible Bonds agreed
to extend the maturity date, subject to the certain undertakings given by the
Company, for a further two years to 1 March 2017. Convertible Bonds held
by HWH with principal amount of HK$67,600,000 were extended to 1 March
2017, subject to the approval from the independent shareholders of Company
before 31 July 2015. Convertible Bonds of HK$312,600,000 held by Delco
would be repaid in seven quarterly instalments commencing on 1 September
2015 subject to the approval from the independent shareholders of the
Company before 31 July 2015. The Company will repurchase the Convertible
Bonds held by Sims with principal amount of HK$315,600,000 (the “Sims
Convertible Bonds”) on or before 30 June 2015 if the Company unable to
procure independent third parties to purchase the Sims Convertible Bonds. The
remaining Convertible Bonds of HK$120,000,000 held by Greenwoods China
Alpha Master Fund (“Greenwood") which Greenwoods shall have the right to
demand for full repayment on any of these dates: 1 September 2015, 1 March
2016 or 1 September 2016. Details of these are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 March 2015, 10 March 2015 and 18 March 2015.

(vi)

(vii)

BRUEEEFRAA

BfRE

(@) FFHR IR TR 2 RA R R IR A
Bz SRR EMmEE

(b) BERBRAED2EBZBRFES R
BESFZESEMEE -

(© NEEHE - STETABIERF
Bt 8 ATEZZPHRBHEARE

2,
B 31T A B AR A S

R-ZZE—RE=A=AKRMNA - AJBREEHF
REFREABEGAHERESOE A BT
HMEE-—T—+tFE=A—A ' H#BETA
ARMEHEE TE - HWHET R A A S HE
#%67,600,000 T 1) 7] 4 1% 15 5 M€ IE B &=
—Z—+F=A—H HER-ZT—AHFt
B=1+—BRIESAARBILIRRLE -
Delco AT A H A] #2 % f& %5 312,600,000 7
THE-T—RFNA—BREFESLH
BRE(AR-_ZT—HAFEtA=+—HAES
RARBILRERBA) o AR RREEIRE
B E=FEE Sims AR ES - QIARA
R _ZE—AF A=+ B ZAER Sims
Fi¥% 7 254 %8 4 315,600,000 78 7T £ 7] 42 A%
B ([Sims AR R 5 1) - A T AR A
#: 120,000,000 7t 85 Greenwoods China
Alpha Master Fund ([ Greenwoods|) #5745 -
ifl Greenwoods AR Tl {EfZ%5 B EZ
KEHEE: T —AFAA—B =%
—RNE=ZA—BX =T AFHLA—A &
EFHBEHNARABPR-_ZT—HF=FA
B ZZ—hA&=A+tBE=Z—RF=A
TNBHRE °

—T-mEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

32. WARRANTS

The Warrants are exercisable to subscribe for an aggregate
amount of HK$75,830,646 for fully paid shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at an initial subscription price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) on and after the first business
day immediately following the second anniversary of the Issue
Date up to the Maturity Date. HWH and Delco also agreed to
assign the Warrants to Sims that they were entitled as a result of
the Subscription.

The Maturity Date shall be extended to the fifth anniversary of the
Issue Date of the Warrants if any of the Warrant holders is not able
to exercise any subscription rights on or before the Maturity Date
solely because of the minimum public float restriction under the
Listing Rules (the “Extension”).

The Warrants are classified as a derivative and recognised at fair
value on initial recognition and subsequent measurement dates.
Changes in the fair value of the Warrants are recognised in profit
and loss. The fair value of Warrants as at 31 December 2013 and
2014 were HK$1,331,000 and nil, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the gain from change
in fair value of HK$1,331,000 (2013: HK$6,715,000) was
recognised in profit or loss. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company will be able to maintain the minimum
public float of the Company’s shares under the Listing Rules and
will not trigger the condition of the extension of the Warrants,
therefore, the fair value of the Warrants did not take into account
the Extension.
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32.

IR ETE

RIRFEF A T - REREEITEHAE
“RFMNE-—EEEARZEBEEEE
BIEYAREESR6 BT (7] FREE
FHEE) R AEFE 75,830,646 8 JLANA A
ESREE0.01 AT RRG o HWH KR
DelcolRl & M) Sims#2 & (K ;R =18 M A 7
ZERRBAEE -

i B A RBEERA AMER MR
MR AR IRER M AN EIHI A
K2 AT ERRERE - BIFH BT
RERBEIBRITEHENEES ([T
H1) e

RREFBR DB A —EITET A BARY]
WHHERLEATERRATEER - R
BIEB AN TFEZEHRIEZANER - R
BEZR T =FE T —NF+=
AR=+—B®2FESRI&1,331,000
BILRE o

BHEe_Z—N&F+_A=+—H1L*F
- A EEE) IR 1,331,00078 7T (=
T — =% :6,715,000/87C) R85 A HE
R ARREERE  ARRBE M4
#FHEMRBIFMBEERRRRMDHRES
BERE YT SEERREE T
B At - RREZO D FEL ARG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R MR M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—HILFE
32. WARRANTS (continued) 32.

The fair value of the Warrants was determined using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as

n/uﬂi* 15 ( EE
RRER 2 AT ETERAZIBEXREE
BRNEE Rz EAEAZ £ Z80UR

follows: R
At At
At 31 December 31 December
Issue Date 2013 2014
RZE—=%F R-Z-—0F
R#&EITAY +=-—A=+—8B +=B=+—H
Stock price IR E HK$4.33 HK$2.87 HK$2.80
4.33%87T 2.87%87T 2.807& T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$6.00 HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.00/87C 6.00/87T 6.0078 T
Expected volatility (note a) TERHETE (FisEa) 53.189% 53.189% 53.189%
Dividend yield [dstrened 0.855% 0.739% 0.000%
Warrant life RAREEEH 36.0 months 14.0 months 2 months
36.01@ A 14.01@ A 218 A
Risk free rate (note b) = B A1 2 (B 5 b) 0.281% 0.208% 0.032%
notes: B 3E
(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied volatility (a) BFHRB Y2 BARBRMHNETERZ

of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation.

(b) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong

Government Bond'’s and treasury bill’s yield.

No exercise of the Warrants took place since the Issue Date. On 1
March 2015, the Warrants are expired.

SRR BT EEE °

(b) ERBRMNETNE2BEFBBFESZLEE
HEBEMETE -

B 31T B B I AT (] SR AR AT -
E/\—éﬁ ﬂfﬁzﬁ_a u/L\HX$E%
e

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EERIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement BRSSO RANEY] & TIEE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MIBEENRBBE AR - A TR
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B2 E MHRERIBAR DT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2014 2013
—ZE-lEFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 37,505 35,257
Deferred tax assets RIETIH & (8,189) (5,997)
29,316 29,260
The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and ANEBEERNELEHREB(EE)AELE
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as RAEERAFEEENESMOT :
follows:
Changein
fair value of
Accelerated Alowance  Unrealised derivative  Distributable
taK Tat Inventories for doubtful profit on financial profits of
depreciation [osses provision debts inventories  instruments  subsidiaries Total
i FER DEGRIE  MEATH
WEfE ERE Fakk AEER FERY  ATERD  WARMA 5
HK$000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin T Thn Thn Tin T Thn Thn
At 1 January 2013 NE-=£-F-A 3,034 230) (10,190) (1,029) (1.402) 2248 29,406 19,744
(Credit) charge to proftor ERGAIRER
loss for the year 6,985 (7,576) 1 (335) 95 2107 %0 9,653
Bichange realignment EfE 4 - (207) (37) - 103 - (131)
At31 December 2013 RZE-=Et2A=1-R 1003 (9.899) (3.170) (1.401) (#37) 4,458 29,686 29,260
(Credit) charge to proftor En())AkER
loss for the year 794 (812) 715 (428) (64) (229 90 67
Exchange relignment EXER (12) - 14 3 - (16) - ()]
At 31 December 2014 RZE-METZA=1-R 10,805 (10,711) (244 (1,826) (501) 4214 29776 29316
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$513,510,000 (2013:
HK$508,096,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unrecognised deferred
tax asset on inventories provision of HK$3,531,000 (2013:
HK$5,690,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All the unrecognised deferred tax assets may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,552,691,000 (2013: HK$659,638,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$64,912,000 (2013:
HK$59,992,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$1,487,779,000
(2013: HK$599,646,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely except for those amounting to HK$1,300,285,000
(2013: HK$490,986,000) arising from the PRC which may be
carried forward for five years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

33.

34.

IRIERLIE (8)
BEFRCEMBHE B=ZTTN\F
—A— AR BB A 75T RS R W
Tk REBEMIENF - RETHRE
R AR i B H B A R 2FEEFIEE 2
% 2= %5513,510,0008 T ( — T — =
4 : 508,096,000 7T) M {E HELER H
BiE > RANEERIA ST =5
Oz MERERERIENENA
HAS R o

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H " BARX
2 )7 B S AT TEORIME - 7N £ B 37 A
75 #453,531,00008 T (—F— =4 :
5,690,000 7T ) lERIELETIIBEE © AT
B IEE R A R ARRI 4SS o

RZZE—WNF+-_A=+—H ' K&H
WA AREAIIEEIE1,552,691,000%
TT(ZZ—=% : 659,638,000 7T) LA
HAH AR A T o FEARRAES 18 TR MY IR AT
THRIBAEZ 64,912,000 T (—T—=
59,992,000/ 7T ) © H A K 2R F
AR TERIE - BRABR T REBAMNT
TEE 18 1,487,779,0008 T ( — T —=
% 1 599,646,00087T) W AR HIEL
TRIAEE - /A BB & 18 18 R Hi A Al
#EEE - BRTEA BIE &£ /9 AR B F R GED
#EEERITE A8 1,300,285,000 /8 7L (= Z
— =% : 490,986,000 7T ) 4h °

BEERH

REBAR - AEBE MRITEIFLAT
BE  UERETAER 2 —KIRITE
B

2014 2013

—ZE—-F —E-=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) #1% - B/E K& a&E (H£17) 68,258 43,056
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) TEREE (FiEE18) 304,746 238,967
Investment properties (Note 19) wEMZE (MFE19) 22,351 23,748
Bank deposits (Note 26) R1T7E R (FizE26) 182,559 141,841
577,914 447,612

EERHEEFRAT —T-NFEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35. EAREIE

36.

2014 2013
bl ES —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted MAEEDE - BB LR E
for but not provided RIENBENREFTA
in the consolidated financial BRNERE MBS ®RKT
statements in respect of BB EARRX
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and prepaid
lease payments 257,155 82,211
Capital expenditure authorised RUE—REHBARE
but not contracted for REBRETH
in respect of acquisition o= WG
of a subsidiary 81,126 -
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 36. EIREFEE

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2014

AEBEREEFEARESFTEEISE
BREAREREERIBESF S - &
BBz EERBR BB URTEAE
HleECEARBAMBEEDRAFSR
RIEBBESFTENMRL - BEREEES
72 BIZBIR IR TE AT B A EL R A T &I (R o
AEBEHBRESFTEZE-BERRE
T EIE L PR R - LR QUMK
A] A VEFNIRL B AR PR A (K

R BEIREZ BE R 2 EHDBBFEFE
EZ BIRERRINEAGTE o PEIME
REAREEEANFHHNETAD LR
ZRRRB AT B R - R ERAREM
BE® o ARBEHERARRBMTE 2MHE—&
ERRBETBUEL AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Company could
grant options to directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme was to
recognise the contribution that Participants made or might
have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed to give
Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in
the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or
retain Participants whose contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

37. URDAERNRZRS

(i)

BRUEEEFRAA

BRNRAREERETS
REARRZBERRAN_-_ZF—F
FRNAZT=ZHBEBNEERGE
& ARARRMERAFEEH
BREFBTERARBEESH
sHEl D) - RIBERAFESHG
g ARAARAAKEES (2R
HITES  FATESERBIUFE
HITES) MRS - AEBEEMK
BRARMEMZAAA  BER -5
HE - AER - fER - K-
EP XBBH GEXBR
o BEAKRBHER([2 48
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By ERRRABEEMAEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing
1.214% of shares of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), but excluding
any shares which could fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the other schemes and shares that could fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are
exercisable at the initial offer price to the public (i.e.
HK$2.43 per share). Each of the holders of the share options
under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/
her options in the following manner:

Service period that

share options can be vested

after the date of Listing

£ H H % 7 55 8 BB AR RE Y FR A% HA R

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

() BXRARBEAEBRETS(E)
AIEHNBREMS &R RO H
B 4A12,140,0000% % 3 © # &
REBEARRRBRMDARBR EH
([EW ) BARRRBEBEITRASR
RDE 1.214% @ ETBIEEITE
RIEE R AR EATRTE KA
AT EIE H kA8 TR A B AR
Al EEAS T BT EMMRD - AR
B 17 8 _E 17 B8 A9 B KB AL AR 4
i 7] B8 F BT TEI AR D o

RIBEE X AREER R EE L8
BRERGTRARALHYEE
EEB(EFERERHD243F L) 17
o ERAAABERTETSE
fRiEHF B A B LTS A RT
i EL AR -

Maximum percentage of
share options exercisable
A{TREERENE 2L LR

Attaining 1 year
RH—F
Attaining 2 years
FrE M
Attaining 3 years
BFE=F
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URDAERSRZRS (&)

(continued)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TREEMEFEFARARESE
options granted in 2010 under the Pre-IPO Share Option MEERBNREE X ARESEH
Scheme held by the directors of the Company and BERES ZR - E—SER R
employees and the movements during both years: NGIE - Y58 E=
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~ of options Lapsed/ ~ options
Category of Exercise outstanding ~ Exercised  forfeited outstanding  Exercsed forfeited  outstanding
Eligible price  Exercsable asat  duing  during asat  during during asat
Participants Date of grant pershare  period Vesting date 14208 theyear  theyear 31122013 theyear  theyear 3112200
Hog-zE H-g-z% H-%-B%
-f-E EntzA=t-A R t2A=t-8
BATRN 5/ HEGER 5/ BEGEE
SERSEZEN il SRR  RH RAE EhEZE  EAAR R BREER  EAGR R BREEE
(notea) (noteb) (noteb) (note)
(ita) i) (Kb (Wit
Directors 1212010 HKS243 1372012127203 137.2012 1477500 (1275000 (1,350,000) - - - -
(5 53 3% C3-IEEATERE 3
tAtR S A=A
137.2013-12.7.2014 1372013 1970,000 - - 1970000 (1,970,000) - -
CRCELRTIRE BE
“E-MELATIR tA+zR
3447500 (1275000 (1,350,000 1970000 (1,970,000) - -
Employees 1212010 HKS243 1372021272083 137.2012 1560500 (1,1385000  (422,000) - - - -
and otherparticpants =334 138 FCEtArRE 5f
EEREHAER TRtz Z5-ZELATIR A=A

137.0013-12.7.0014 137.013 2790000 (182,000} - 2508000 (2008000 (600,000) =
= e
BB

4350500 (13205000 (42,0000 2608000 (2,008000) (600,000} =

1798000 (1.448000) (1,722,000 4578000 (3978000 (600,000) =

Number of options exercisabl at the end ofthe year

AT RNERES 3,038,000 4578,000 -
Weighted average ererise price K243 HKRZA3 HKRLA3 HKRLA3 HKRLABHKLA3
METHRE 13k 1BET 1BET 18ET 18ET 18T

ESRMEBRGRAT —T—NEFR 207
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

notes:

(a)

(b)

()

37. URDAERNR 2R (&)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
Bt
The date of grant was the date when Participants accepted the offer (a) REBHALEEEMRIEEAA
of options under the Pre-IPO Scheme. FRE SR BRI 2 B B -
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share (b) FARBITEBRERS - RIT6E
prices at the dates of exercise ranged from HK$2.84 to HK$4.47 AEZREN T 2.84BLE4.47 %
(2013: HK$2.86 to HK$3.68). T(ZF—=%:2.86BLE3.68/%
JL) °
600,000 share options granted to employees, lapsed due to maturity (© P =T — VY& W R 1T (50 1Y B AR 4
of unexercised options in 2014. F|H - % T2 8 19 600,000 17 ik
BRR ©
The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial model. (d) BREAFTEIZR-_BEAEX G
The inputs into the model were as follows: & R P AR T
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
F—#t FE_H#t =4t
Grant date share price i B AR E HK$2.39 HK$2.39 HK$2.39
2.39%7T 2.39%7T 2.39%7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$2.43 HK$2.43 HK$2.43
2.43% 7T 24377 2.43%7T
Expected volatility TEEHR IR 49.798% 54.803% 51.954%
Expected option period TEHARE AR M HAR. 1.492 years 2.495 years 3.495 years
1.492%F 2.495% 3.4954F
Risk-free rate HR BRI 0.514% 0.776% 1.109%
Expected dividend yield FEHRL B RS R 3.557% 3.557% 3.557%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical
volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Al of these options were fully vested in 2013, no share-based payment
expense is recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014 in
relation to share options granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO
Scheme. For the year ended 31 December 2013, share-based payment
expense amounting to HK$646,000 was recognised in relation to
share options granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. UBRMAEBRIRZRS (&)
(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (ii)

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all

BRAHBRERBRETE
BEAN - RIBARR 2 EBRRN =

shareholders of the Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options
to directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and
employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the
Group who the board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Scheme Participants”). The Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to reward Eligible Scheme
Participants who have contributed to the Group and to
encourage Eligible Scheme Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the shares for the
benefit of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from 23 June 2010.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of shares of the Company
as of the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting, without approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Scheme
Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the
date of grant.

BRUEEEFRAA

T-EFANAZT-BBBNE
ERZZ - AR BERAERDF
BERBRIESE ([ZFT81) -

RigZas - ARFARESES
2ENERAF/E /AT LSAEE
EHERMNAEBESR (BFRT
B FATEFEMBILEHRT
Ex)RER AKEIMKE
REINERBAA - B 753
BoAEn HER KB T
F-EBRBH aEXBBHE.
BEARBRBHER( & EBE
g2mE ) REBIRE - %8
E-HEBRMERFE SEBS
B8 2RBESAREELD
BERAREBABRE2EE
RARBRBEROBEAN S MR
AARRBRBROOBEMRL
ZAtEBE—E—EFRA-T=
B TFRBN -

EfTERIEZET 848 TR AT
EEREMIERTN RS KM
HEAXTFEBREREKX
2HERHANARABRMN A 10%
(BARRRARERE) - BITE
B Z et 8 R AR B E A H B
R AE 5T B BT 4% B & R 1T E B9 BT
BB I g B 1T M AR 10 AT
Al e & 115 HB B T B TR D
#130% o PRI+ =& A Biff &
ERHBEH BTEREZTE
Ko 7R A &) fA] E i B AR R AT &) )
BREEARE2HERLNE
I (REETEREARITEAE
Be#E) mEfT Mg FEITHRR R
MEETEBANELBHE %
TRRBH 1% ©

—E—NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of their respective associates is required
to be approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the options). Where granting of options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
director or their respective associates which will result in
the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the twelve-month period up to and including the date of
such grant exceed of 0.1% of the total number of shares
in issue and have an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, based on the official closing price of the shares at
the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options will
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors
and but in any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(@)  the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be
a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(b)  the average of the official closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(¢)  the nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified
by the board of directors to each grantee and such period
shall expire not later than 4 years from the date of grant of
options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URDAERSRZRS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and BRIEZTEREOERERER
their subsequent movements are as follows: BEFBEWOT

Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/ ~~ of options Lapsed/ options
outstanding Granted ~ Erercsed  forfeited  outstanding  Reclassified  Exerdsed forfeited outstanding
Category of Eigible Exercisable asat during during during asat during during during asat
Scheme Participants  Date of grant period Vesting date 1401 theyear theyear  theyear 31122013 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.12.2014
#-§-zf #-§-zf H-§-BF
-A-8 t2R=t-A t2R=1-A
HATTEN En ARG ER o HRORE
REETESRARN  BHER fi: o L [l 6 Rl Erff  AN/RR BRERE  SAENAR Enfk  KM/RE BRESA
note ) (noteb) (note )
(ita) (Hitb) (Hito)
Diretors 35011 35201235013 352012 397500 - - TS0 - - - - -
£ 55 i S S
A=A Z3-SERACR 1A=H
452013352014 45203 397500 = = - 397500 = - 9700 =
S a3
“3-MERAZR TAmR
45201435015 452014 530,000 - - - 530000 (60000) - - 40000
Z3-TERARRZ i3
ZI-1ERAR 1ARA
Dirctars 1832012 2832013273201 2832013 262500 - - (195000 67500 (22500 - - 45,000
£ i TECESACTRE Rk
=R=tNA i ST =l
2832014273201 2832014 261500 = - (1950000 67500 (22500 = = 45,000
CEmESACTRE BB
EESRCTER ZRZTA
2832015273201 2832015 350,000 - - (60000 %000 (30000 - - 60,000
TERECAITNRE ERE
BEATER ZACtAR
Dirctors U501 2832013-213.2016 283013 5,550,000 = - (3550000 = = = = =
2 5-f TECESADTNRE RE
il iy ] IESAZTRR ZAZTAR
(note ) 2832014273201 2832014 5,350,000 - - (3550000 - - - - -
(Fikd) TE-REACTIBE CERE
v =
2832015-213.2016 2832015 7,400,000 = (7400,000) = = = = =
I-RESACTBE CE-EE
IESAZTER ZAZTAR
EAXEEERAT —2-NEFE Al




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URDAERSRZRS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/  of options Lapsed/ options

Exercise outstanding Granted ~ Erercsed  forfeited  outstanding  Reclassified  Exerdsed forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during during asat during during during asat
Stheme Partiipants ~ Dateofgrant ~ pershare period Vesting date 108 theyear theyear  theyear 31122013 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.12.2014
H-§-zf #-%-zf H-§-BF
-B-A t2B=1-H t2A=1-A
HATTREN En ARG Eho HRORE
RERTESRARN  BHER SRARE  fiRR £ERE fLHE ERRH ERfif  KN/RE BREBR  GRENRE FREE  KW/RR ERERR
note ) (noteb) (note)
(Hita) (Hitb) (Hito)
Directors 23013 HKS375 2232014213007 23014 - 195000 = - 195000 = - (195000 =
£ 25 mEn CERESACfCRE RIS
ZR=tzR e o o
0320150132007 2232015 - 195000 - - 195000 - - (195000 -

E-RESACroRE 5B
Z5-tEZAor-R =A=t=R
232016-113.2017 23016 - 260000 - - 260000 = - (260000 -
I-EEAtIRE 5
e o =fztch

Directors B5013 HKE35 2232014132007 2232014 - 5550000 - - 5550000 - - (5,550000) -
£ 5= 35T CE-MECACtoRE CERE
il ot S e

[notee) 232015-13.2017 23015 - 5550000 - - 5550000 - - (5,550,000) -
(ke S -
i e S o |

0320162132017 2232016 - 7400000 - - 1400000 - - (7.400,000) -
EEACIRE B
S e

20,700,000 19,150,000 - (195475000 20302500 (135,000) - (195475000 620,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/  of options Lapsed/ options
Exercise outstanding Granted ~ Erercsed  forfeited  outstanding  Reclassified  Exerdsed forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eigible price  Exercisable asat during during during asat during during during asat
Scheme Participants  Dateof grant pershare  period Vesting date 1401 theyear theyear  theyear 31122013 theyear  theyear  theyear  31.12.2014
H-§-zf imt St Ho3-RF
-B-A t2B=1-H t2A=1-A
HATTREN En ARG Eho HRORE
RERTESRARN  BHER SRARE  fiRR £ERE fLHE ERRH EMR RN/RE BRERE  ERENAR FREE  KW/RR ERERR
note ) (noteb) (note)
(Hita) (Hitb) (Hito)
Employees and 229010 HK$338 2390122292013 59201 1,086,000 - (6400 (1,021,500 - - - - -
oferparipants  ~3-%%  3%AT  5-EARCTIRE . 3-7F
EEREfSEE  AACTCR B-SEARCtCE ARCHER
1390132292014 592013 1,448,000 - - (20000 1428000 - (20000 (576,000) =
ZECEAACTIRE 3
I-MERACTIR MAEER
Employees and 352011 HKS6.388 352012352013 352012 3477000 - - B4 - - - - -
oerparipents %% 63Er 3-TFRAZAZ i 2
ERREpsEE A=A “3-ERA=A IR=A
452013352014 45083 3477000 - - (9000 3381000 = - 3381000 =
Z5--ERAMAZ 2
“E-MERAZR 1ARA
45201435015 452014 4,636,000 - - (18000) 4508000 60,000 - (3880000 47180000
Z5-ERAMAE e Sl
“E-1RAR 1ARA
Employees and 83010 HKS4186  2832013:2732016 2832013 3343500 - - (1800000 3163500 2500 - (31,0000 2805000
oferparicpans  ZF-2F  4lEr  Z3-ZECAITNEE DR
ERREMAEE AR IESACHE ZACtAR
2832014273201 2832014 3343500 - - (1800000 3163500 250 - (31,0000 2805000
TEREACTARE CRRE
BEATER ZACtAR
2832015273201 2832015 4458000 - - (do0oo) 4218000 30,000 - (5080000 3740000
CERECAITNRE CERf
BEATER ZACtAR
25,269,000 - (64500 (3425000 19862000 135000 (852,000 (5,615,000 13,530,000
45969000 19150000 (64500) (24890000 40,164,500 - (852,000 (25,162,500) 14,150,000
Number of options erercisable ¢ the end of the year
REEfRAERES 4,960,500 8,437,500 10350,000
Weighted average exercie price BKSAT6  HKS375 B3B8 HKSST K43 - M3 HKSAD HKs4d!
IETHARE (kT 3ET IMET AT ABER - IBET ANET A91ER
BaXitEEERAT —ZT—HFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
notes:
(a) 19,150,000 share options granted to directors were cancelled by

forfeiture in 2013 as the Profit Target 2012 (explained and defined
below) was not met. In addition, 397,500 and 5,342,500 share
options granted to directors and employees, respectively, were
forfeited due to resignation of certain employees and maturity of

unexercised options in 2013.

(b) In 2014, an independent non-executive director resigned from the
Company but was retained as a consultant to the Group to provide
consultancy services similar to those rendered by employees.

(c) 19,150,000 share options granted to directors were cancelled by
forfeiture in 2014 as the Profit Target 2013 (explained and defined
below) was not met. In addition, 397,500 and 5,615,000 share
options granted to directors and employees, respectively, were
forfeited due to resignation of certain employees and maturity of

unexercised options in 2014.

(d) This represents the date when the grant of share options under
the Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr.
Fang and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors of the Company resolved to make the offer of grant of share
options to the relevant directors of the Company, which was 28 March
2012.

(e) This represents the date when the grant of share options under
the Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr.
Fang and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors of the Company resolved to make the offer of grant of share
options to the relevant directors of the Company, which was 22 March
2013.

Service period that share options
can be vested after date of grant

REHAPRIEBERENRENE

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i) BXAMBREABRESTS(E)
B 5

B

(a) X T E % 119,150,000 {7 B A #E 7
—ECFEERRR RERZ
T-—FuMBER(TXHEERR
FE)RERK ° WO DRIRTFERER
& 8 #9397,500 5 5,342,500 {7 &
BERR-_ZF—=FH0ES R
R M ARITIE RS A B BT R K

(b) NZF—ME . —ZBIFRTE
ERARAFEEETATRERE
M 1R B E b (R B AT IR A0 R
TR 5 S AR A o

(© % F & F /19,150,000 17 i X #E R
—E-MEFHEEAK - REARZ
T=FHMEBE(TIXHERR
TE)RIERK o AN - DRIRTFEEFR
& § #9397,500 15 } 5,615,000 {3 i
BERN =T —MFEIH5H 8 S 58
R i AR AT O S AR B B R UK o

(d) IR BEZTEIMEBES (AN
4 2 Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
i) RIEBARER AR AB YRR
HEZ B o Al - BBEZE - &K
HEBERRNESZSREMRLE
FAADAERESRHEBRED
B BI=2—=—F=A=+N\B-

(e) IERRBEZTEIMEBES (AN
%t 4 K Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
J i) B B ARIE AR N R B AR
oz B - Al BIBEZE - &K
HEABERARNESRTSREMRHE
BRAARBFHEERBBEREN
HEf - BI=Z2—=F=FA-+-H-

Maximum percentage
of share options exercisable
A{TEERENT DL LR

Attaining 1 year
B —F
Attaining 2 years
B MF
Attaining 3 years
BE=F
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30% of the total number of options granted
R B RE AR 2T 30%
30% of the total number of options granted
BB R EE) 30%
40% of the total number of options granted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

In addition to satisfying the above service period
requirement, 650,000 and 18,500,000 share options
granted to the executive directors on 22 March 2013 and 23
May 2013 respectively would only be vested if the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was equal
to or exceed 130% of the Group's profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 (“Profit Target 2013").
650,000 and 18,500,000 share options granted to executive
directors on 28 March 2012 and 24 May 2012, respectively,
would only be vested if the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was equal to or exceed 130% of
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2010
(“Profit Target 2012").

The fair value of the options was calculated using the
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

(ii)

BXAAMBRERBRESSE (E)
Brim e Ll RASEAM 2k Z5h
MAEEHE-_E—=F1+=A
=t+—HIEFEZRFERRE
BAEEHE _Z—ZF+_ A
=+ —RHIEMEBREFERFIA 130%
([ZZ2—=F%MEZ]) - AR
—E—=F=ZA=-+=-HE=ZF
—=ERA-t=B2RIRTE
= 2.650,00013 %.18,500,00017 &
RiEreRE - NASEHZEZ
T—_—F+=-H=+—HILFE
2 MERNBBAEEREE =
T-TEE+_A=+—HIEE
S HE130% ([ =F—=—F &5 8
Z) AR —=F=A=+N
BE—ZTE——&FRA-+MWMBES
AT B FT#HITESAI 650,000
%.18,500,0007 ERAES € R B ©

WREATER-EAERH
M SRR ARENT

Share options granted on 22.9.2010
REZB-—Z2FAASTZHRHENBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

F14t FEa4t £33t

Grant date share price B B EIRR(E HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.38787T 3.38787T 3.38787T

Exercise price 11118 HK$3.38 HK$3.38 HK$3.38
3.3887T 3.38%87T 3.38%87T

Expected volatility TEEDRIE 47.816% 55.886% 53.523%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR e AR 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 & 2.5034F 3.503 4

Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.430% 0.625% 0.847%
Expected dividend yield 8 HARS B Uk 25 R 2.515% 2.515% 2.515%

EeRiEEFRAE

—=2-mEFHR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BRARARERERET S (5)

Share options granted on 3.5.2011
R-B——SRA=ARHNERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
14t E24t £33t
Grant date share price £ B HIAR(E HK$6.20 HK$6.20 HK$6.20
6.20787T 6.207%87T 6.20787T
Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$6.388 HK$6.388 HK$6.388
6.388/87C 6.38878 7T 6.388/87C
Expected volatility %R 42.747% 53.510% 51.323%
Expected option period T8 HARE AR i B R 1.503 years 2.503 years 3.503 years
1.503 F 2.503F 3.503F
Risk-free rate R b i 0.406% 0.778% 1.195%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 1.448% 1.448% 1.448%
Share options granted on 28.3.2012

R-B-——_F=A-+/\BRHNERE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
F14t FEa4t £33t
Grant date share price B B EIRR(E HK$4.10 HK$4.10 HK$4.10
410787 4.10%7T 410787
Exercise price 11118 HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.186 87T 4.18687C 4.186 87T
Expected volatility TEEDRIE 44.334% 46.651% 51.539%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR e AR 2.500 years 3.000 years 3.500 years
2.500F 3.0004F 3.5004F
Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.276% 0.338% 0.373%
Expected dividend yield 8 HARS B Uk 25 R 0.902% 0.902% 0.902%
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BRARARERERET S (5)

Share options granted on 24.5.2012
REB-—FHEA-THARENERE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
14t E24t £33t
Grant date share price £ B HIAR(E HK$4.06 HK$4.06 HK$4.06
4.06 87T 4.06 87T 4.06 87T
Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$4.186 HK$4.186 HK$4.186
4.186 87T 4.186787C 4.186 87T
Expected volatility %R 40.696% 44.958% 47.450%
Expected option period T8 HARE AR i B R 2.344 years 2.844 years 3.344 years
2.344F 2.844F 3.344F
Risk-free rate R b i 0.263% 0.279% 0.307%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 0.911% 0.911% 0.911%
Share options granted on 22.3.2013
REB-—Z=ZF=ZA-+-HREHNBRE
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
F14t FEa4t £33t
Grant date share price B B EIRR(E HK$3.728 HK$3.728 HK$3.728
3.72878 7T 3.728% 7T 3.72878 7T
Exercise price 11118 HK$3.75 HK$3.75 HK$3.75
3.75%87T 3.75%87T 3.75%87T
Expected volatility TEEDRIE 38.439% 43.385% 45.104%
Expected option period TE BRRE AR e AR 2.500 years 3.000 years 3.501 years
2.500F 3.0004F 3.501 4
Risk-free rate 12 a1 B ) = 0.194% 0.213% 0.300%
Expected dividend yield 8 HARS B Uk 25 R 0.569% 0.569% 0.569%
BEAMEBERAT —ZT—NFEFIR
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

37. URGBERNR RS (&)

(i)

BXRRMRERERETS (5

Share options granted on 23.5.2013
R-B-—=5RA-+=HRHNBRE

Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

ZE 1t F24k £33t

Grant date share price £ B HIAR(E HK$3.529 HK$3.529 HK$3.529
3.529787C 3.529787C 3.529787C

Exercise price 1I{8(8 HK$3.75 HK$3.75 HK$3.75
3.7587T 3.75%87T 3.7587T

Expected volatility TaERIE 38.370% 38.431% 43.517%
Expected option period T8 HARE AR i B R 2.330 years 2.830 years 3.332 years
2.3304F 2.830F 3.332%F

Risk-free rate R b i 0.212% 0.250% 0.300%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B e 0.601% 0.601% 0.601%

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the
historical volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The aggregate fair value of the share options granted on
22 March 2013 and 23 May 2013 is HK$16,293,000 which
is related to the share options granted to directors with a
performance condition in terms of Profit Target 2013. The
Group did not recognise share-based payment expenses
during the year ended 31 December 2013 as none of the
options was ultimately vested.

In respect of the share options granted without a
performance condition, taking into account of (i) the
applicable vesting period and (ii) the number of options
expected to ultimately vest, the Group recognised share-
based payment expense of HK$3,567,000 for the year
(2013: HK$10,116,000).
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BARESBETAEL R E™
NEIRE SR IEEE

AEBREAFERREERR
RILEBENREMGETME - B
EEERE T ZEERN R
ZmABRTR -

RZE—=F=ZA-_+=-HK
R—_E—Z=ZF"AA=-+=H
REMNBERENATEREA
16,293,000 T * B TEEH
A= —=F%F B Z2F MM
RERGNERESR - REBE
—E—=F4+_A=+—HLHF
B ANEBIWERERUARDAZE
RN RAS - BABEBRE
TEES SR G -

B AT % 2 R AR P 4 SR IR K
%+ EERA (i) i FA 25 8 HA K (i) TE A7
SRFEBNERESE - FAK
& B FE R AR D B B /0 5K 5
% 3,567,000 (=T — = F :
10,116,000 7T ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i) Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties, certain of which are also deemed to be
connected persons pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing

()

2

38. BEXSZNBRELIKE

5‘5
RER  AEBEMEREAT
%5

HPEETREESRELD
BAEVSAE TR BEEAL .

Rules:

Name of party Nature of transaction 2014 2013

HERER REME —E-IF —T—=%

notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fisx TERT TET
Connected transactions and
related party transactions

HESS REEL XS

Sims (a) & (b) Purchase of scrap metals 524,714 853,148
EEECE
Interest expense on convertible bonds 34,681 32,300
AARESHERX
Compensation received 451 474
BHEE
Compensation paid 3 315
BRHE

De Leeuw Metalen B.V. (b) Purchase of scrap metals - 8,950
BEESRE

Delco (0 Interest expense on convertible bonds 34,351 31,992
AARESFIERZ

HWH () Interest expense on convertible bonds 7,428 7,423
AR AR B R

Related party transaction

Poly Metals (d) Purchase of scrap metals 25,222 -
BEESRE

EAFHEEERAT —T-NF5H [PAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED

PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(i) Transactions (continued) (i)

notes:

(a) These represent transactions between the Group and a substantial

shareholder with significant influence over the Company.

(b) De Leeuw Metalen B.V. is controlled by a close family member of Mr.

Herman Maurits de Leeuw, a shareholder with significant influence

over the Company.

(o) As set out in Notes 31 and 32, in March 2012, the Company issued the
Convertible Bonds and the Warrants to Sims, Delco and HWH, all of

which are shareholders with significant influences over the Company.

(d) In April 2014, the Group invested in an associate with significant

influence over Poly Metals. This represents transactions between the

Group and Poly Metals since April 2014.

(ii) Balances

38. BEXSZNAESIKE (&)

(@) EARBEAAAAEEATEZ
TERRZHENRS °

(b) De Leeuw Metalen B.V. [ ¥t A" 2
AIABEAEE N 2 KREHerman
Maurits de Leeuw %64 2 —ZHTHR
PRBK B 122

(0 W31 R32FTE - R=T——F
=A  ARR—AHAARAEFE
FENZFERRESims * Delco &

HWH 317 AT AR 5 55 R R AR 7% o

(d) N-ZT—MEMA - REERAER
HEMEEATEZBMEANR - %
RHpEE—_F-—MNFNARLEER
SRR RS °

The Group had the following balances with connec?ed 0 i:%i&%ﬁﬂ%éﬁ%@ﬁ/\i&
per.sons and related parties at the end of the reporting BRE S A A T4 -
period:
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
R-Z—QmE RIT—=%F
+=ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
Name of parties Nature of balance HK$'000 HK$'000
BEL A8 e FHET FHT
Balances with connected
and related parties
HAETE N + R BT A R
Sims Deposit paid for purchase of raw materials 4,294 36,442
BERMENE fRE
Trade payables 71,077 78,721
E S REMNFIA
Warrants 75,831 75,831
R AERE
Convertible Bonds 315,600 315,600
AR ES
Delco Convertible Bonds 312,600 312,600
AR ES
HWH Convertible Bonds 67,600 67,600
AR ES
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RE UK M EE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ—Z—NF+=-_F=+—HILFE
38. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED 38. BAEXR EHIRE(E)
PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(ii) Balances (continued) (i) &5k (&)
All the above amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The A RBEBHRERR KR
average credit period for the trade purchases is 60 days and B BSRENTHEEHRE
the amounts were aged less than 60 days. H - MZIBRRER 608 -
(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (i) TEEEAESHMH
The directors of the Company and the five highest paid ARREERAERSTHMES
employees are identified as key management members of HREREBRFTEEEALS @ &
the Group, details of their compensation during the year are ENFRRE IR AMES
set out in Note 13.
39. OPERATING LEASES 39. KEHE
The Group as lessee FEBEREBEA
2014 2013
—E—-OF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Minimum lease payments paid FARBRGEHES
under operating leases HEES
during the year:
Premises LS 16,328 16,106
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEBAR - AEBERBE AT HEELE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable f B AR T 51 B P 21 2R 9 R SR S AR A
operating leases which fall due as follows: ASEWT
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year EF—FNR 12,649 12,201
In the second to fifth E_ZERF(RIEEEMT)
years inclusive 6,147 3,068
18,796 15,269

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its offices and production premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years with fixed
rentals.

REHSEARERETHAEREE
BEENES - BOKHEERFHN

qi_

EeRiEEFRAE

ERFRECEE °

—E—NEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

39.

40.

OPERATING LEASES (continued) 39. REHE (B)
The Group as lessor AEEEREHEA
Rental income of leasing investment properties during the HE-_ZT-—MHWE+=-_A=+—HL
year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$1,530,000 (2013: FE - -KEPEHENHES KA
HK$2,115,000). 431,530,000 T( = & — = £
2,115,00077T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with REREIR - REBEBPATEA TR
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REEHRSAT :
2014 2013
—E-MOF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Within one year —FX 403 725
PENDING LEGAL LITIGATION 40. FIREFFR

The Group is a defendant in legal claims filed by the lessor
of certain properties in Shanghai, the PRC for unpaid rent,
management fees, early termination fee and reinstatement
costs totalling approximately RMB40.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$51.5 million). The Group filed a counter-
claim against the lessor of overall expected direct economic loss
of approximately RMB108 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$136.9 million) as a result of alleged misrepresentation by the
lessor.

The People’s Court in Baoshan District, Shanghai, the PRC
(“Baoshan District Court”) delivered an initial judgment in
December 2013 but both the Group and the lessor had applied
for an appeal against this judgment. On 12 January 2015, the
Baoshan District Court delivered the revised judgment in relation
to these legal claims. The Group has applied for an appeal against
the judgment given on 12 January 2015.

The court case is still in progress, the directors of the Company,
after obtaining legal advice and considering the provision already
made by the Group, are of the opinion that the eventual resolution
of the above litigations will not have any material adverse impact
to the Group's future results and financial position.
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AIHEE - BEE REKUIEBREE
B 425149 AR #540,600,0007T (4951
51,500,000/ 7T ) & H A 2 5 7A M A A1
4o AEBEBELHEAZEBAERM
MEMMNEEEREELCEBRANOAR
# 108,000,000 7T ( £ % 7 136,900,000
B HEAARERER -

RZF—=F+=F B LFELE
ARERE ([ 8 1L E AR 1) B 925 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

42.

41. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 41. FBWEYE s BERKECH
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT %me
As at 31 December 2014, the balance mainly represents the R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—8 ' &&=x
deposits paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition of BiAEERKEREXEERRH
plant and machinery for new production site in Taizhou, the PRC. SN EES MM E MRS -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  42. AR R E
COMPANY
The summarised financial position of the Company at the end of R E BRI AR B AT -
the reporting period is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5k FET FAT
Investment in a subsidiary, RHBRARZZE -
unlisted JE LT - -
Available-for-sale investment AT SR A - 14,053
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NGRS 1,652,441 2,012,782
Other receivables H b FEURIA 487 563
Bank balance IRITHERR 133 450
Total assets BEME 1,653,061 2,027,848
Other current liabilities Hibme & & 6,106 11,131
Convertible bonds AR ES 816,421 759,406
Embedded derivative components of ARRESFBRANITE
convertible bonds TAHS - 13,353
Warrants RIHEE - 1,331
Total liabilities B BB 822,527 785,221
Net assets BESFE 830,534 1,242,627
Share capital (Note 29) FEZR (B £ 29) 10,494 10,446
Reserves (] (i) 820,040 1,232,181
Total equity e B R 830,534 1,242,627
BEXhEBEERAT T NEFR
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RE MR RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ARQARBIEARIREK (58)
COMPANY (continued)

(i) Movement in reserves (i) fR“EZS
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Captal revaluation Accumulated
premium fesere Tesene Tesere Teserve profts Tota
RiEE AREEGR EkEGH ErGR REBHEE 2t g
HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
TR TER TERL T TEn S TEL
(note )
(Hita)
At 1 January 2013 W=%5-z5-5-A 888,986 00 29,981 216,208 - 62,99 1,198,395
Profit for the year Emi = - - - - 44,182 44,182
Fairvalueloss on avalable-  WEHERE

for-sale investment ATEER - - - - (1417) - (1417)
Total comprehensive EMRANA

income for the year a8 - - - - (1.417) 44,182 4,165
Cash dividend paid (Note 15) ~ 2EB4RE (K 15) - - - - - (218) (2183)
Share options exercised ]

(Note 29 {note i) (Biak 20 (Risti)) 480 - (1,105) - - - 3m
Lapse of share options T - - (7.809) - - 7,809 -
Recogniton of equity- INBEEER

setfled share-based RiaER 13

nayments (Note 37) UiRE])] - - 10,762 - - - 10,762
Shares repurchased and RbERR:S

cancelled (Note 29 (k29 (M)

(noteii) (1,320 4 - - - @) (1,320)

At31 December 2013 N5k
i | 892,493 4 31,835 216,208 (1417) 92,838 1,232,181
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ARQARBIEARIREK (58)
COMPANY (continued)

(i) Movement in reserves (continued) (i) f#EEE(E)
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Capital revaluation Accumulated
premium fesere fesene Tesere feserve orafits Tota
R ETEERE EfkEqs ErER REERER 2t g5
HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER Thn TEn Tin Tin TAT TEn
(note )
(Hita)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (429623) 129623)
Fairvalue gain on avallable-  FEHERE
for-sale ivestment AT@ENE - - - - 918 - 918

Redassiied toprofitorloss ~ fiEWELERE
ondisposal of avalable- ~ BENAEZER
for-sale investment - - - - 49 - 499

Total comprehensive EMRERR

expense for the year g - - - - 1417 (429,623) (428,206)
Share options exercised ]

(Note 29 fnote i) (2o (Rskn) 16,568 - (4,070) - - - 12498
Lapse of share options E T - - (10,949) - - 10949 -

Recogniton of eqity- BRESER
setfled share-Dased RiaER (13

payments (Note 37) (K1) - - 3567 - - - 3,567
At31 December 2014 RIR-ME
tZA=1-R 909,061 4 20383 216,208 - (325,836) 820,040
note: MeE
(a) Capital reserve of the Company represents the net effect of (i) the (a) ARBBEANFBEER T —ZTE () BN
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans of HK$223,708,000 and (ii) the RE 223,708,000 7 7T K (i) N A RIAE AR
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 749,999,900 shares o 45 1) L A% BE 24T R iR B 48 51 749,999,900
of HK$0.01 each in the Company out of the capital reserve to its AR A8 EREE0.01 8 THRHD
shareholders, credited as fully paid at par, in 2010. 2B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

43a. General information of subsidiaries

43. AR BB A RS

43a. fIB QRN —RER

Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation AL/ ERTRMR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
KRARER M EEwd/E%  HINY B /EmRA AEEFERERARERRTE  IERE
2014 2013
ZE-|E S 3
Chiho-Tiande International () HongKong British Virgin Islands Us§2 100% 100% Investrent holding
Limited (*CT International" &k ZERTES Ve RERR
EARHERERAT
(TE=ER])
Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EARHREBRAT &k &k 1000047 REMR
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands ~ The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
i) i 18 15187 the Group
KEANRERE
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
Eaki (%) BRAR &k 5 100,000787C the Group and
wholesales of metal
scrap without
processing
FEENRERER
ANIESRHE
Hefast Holding Corporation Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
&t &t 100,000 470 RERK
Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Copper Industry Company Limited ) &k 10000370 REMR

BoRH(ER) RERRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. KA B A BIFE (8)
COMPANY (continued)
43a. General information of subsidiaries 43a. B AR —RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary Notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
WRATER i EEHE/EZ  AUnY & /ERRA ASEFREERARERAZE  IEXR
2014 2013
Z%-pf 3%
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 10% 0% Trading of metal scrap
Recycling Co, Limited B Bk 35,000,000 7 SEE4E
("CTHK Metals")
BAFH(BR)BESR
ERAA(ERERLE)
Chiho-Tiande (HK) i) HongKong Hong Kong HK$10,000 36.4% 36.4% Provide logistics Services
Logistics Co. Limited B Bk 10,0007 R

("CTHK Logistics")
BAKS(FE)IRERLAR

[BaZAmi))
Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong British Virgin Islands U1 100% 100% Investment holding
(BVI) Limited & ARRAHES B RERR
Chiho-Tiande Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Investment Limited &k 5 100007 3

B RRERRAA

Chiho-Tiande Resources Limited Hong Kong British Virgin Islands U1 100% 100% Inactive
&k ABRAHS B E2K
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals (i)~ The PRC The PRC 5$20,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Reqycling Co., Limited Gl i (2013: US$12,000,000) of metal scrap
EaXih (2R) Bk 20,000,000%7C NIRSERSE
SBERAT (ZF-=F  12000000%7)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
43a. General information of subsidiaries

43. AR BB AFHE (FE)

43a. B QAN —RER (F)

(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
WRAFEH i EEHE/EZ  AUsY Bk /ERRA ASEFREERARERAZE  IEXR
2014 2013
LA
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande fii)  ThePRC The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Foundry Company Limited il E 750000057 of metal scrap,
ANEARIEEARAT production and sales
of metal products
MIREHERSE
EERHECRER
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (i) ThePRC The PRC 5$52,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Company Limited HE E 52,682,000%TC of metal scrap,
ANEERHEBERAR production and sales
of metal products
NIREERSE
EERGECEER
Shanghai Chino-Tiande The PRC The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51% Processing and sales
Resource Recycling il i ARE52,000,0007 of metal scrap
Co., Limited (“CT Shanghai") NIREEESR
LBEERIELER
BRAR ([EaxuLEl)
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) (i) ThePRC The PRC S§40,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Resources Recycling il i 40,000 000% 70 of metal scrap
Co. Limited NIREHERSE
EoRb(ER)BEER
BRARA
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ—ZT—NF+ A =1+—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. RN FIHMB QRIS (8)
COMPANY (continued)
43a.General information of subsidiaries 43a. B AR —RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Place/ incorporation/ share capital/
country of establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation HhEL/ ERTRAR voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
KEAAEE i SEwY/EZ  ALNE Bk /2 RRA AEMFHRERARRRAZE  IERER
2014 2013
ZE-pF 5cf
Chiho-Tiande (Yantai) fii)  ThePRC The PRC US$7,000,000 100% - Processing and sales
Environmental Technology il E 7,000,007 of metal scrap
Co,, Limited NIREERER
BAK(ER)RRMH
BRA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 R-E—NER_T—=4+_A
December 2014 and 2013. =+ — B ENRB R R BT ERERE
=
notes: Fi3E
(i) The Company holds CT International directly and all other subsidiaries (i) AAREEREBAER REEREMEE
indirectly. B AR o
(ii) Although the Group has 36.4% attributable interest in CTHK Logistics, (ii) BERNEERBS B BYMMES 36.4% B
the Group held 52% equity interest in CTHK Logistics through a 70% WS AEBMBBEER 70% RHEAHE R A
owned subsidiary, CTHK Metals. The directors concluded that the BAESCBMEREAGBBMR52% MK
Group has the power to direct the relevant activities of CTHK Logistics. e -BRELEHR  AEEEENEEES
BEMRIERER
(iii) These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the (iii) ZEBERRERBERK MG EERE -
PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—ZT—F+ A =1+—HItFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
43b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

43. RAREMMB LA RFE (8)

43b. BEERFERESNHZE

Chp NS

TRINTEBERFEREEH
AEEF2EMBABFE

Proportion
of ownership
Place of interests and (Loss) profit
incorporation voting right held allocated to Accumulated
Name of and principal by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
BALTAE L FERERFEE AREFER
WEAR R TRERBE WHREREERRERLA REsH (58) &7 ZitFERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-[E  —2-=f ZE-@F C-T-=F ZCZB-PmF _T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TEx TETL
CTHK Metals Hong Kong 30% 30% (4,634) 560 5,752 10,386
BEREELE B
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (86,446) (78,057)
with non-controlling interests (note)
EEFHERERR AR EARE LR (M)
(80,694) (67,671)
note:  Since these subsidiaries did not have significant assets and liabilities, Mzt : BARZEMNBARYESESALERAE 2

the major balance of accumulated non-controlling interests arose from
the share of losses in CT Shanghai.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests as set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43.

COMPANY (continued)
43b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

RRTIMB RS (8)

43b. BEERFERESNHZE

that have material non-controlling interests Mt S Bl FF1E ()
(continued)
CTHK Metals EEEESR
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Current assets mEEE 180,198 278,285
Non-current assets FRBEE 7,170 6,029
Current liabilities RBAE (168,196) (249,695)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A7 RIS AEIE#EzR 13,420 24,233
Non-controlling interests FlEalie 5 5,752 10,386
Revenue gz 557,047 981,799
Expenses A% (572,494) (979,932)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) = F (15,447) 1,867
(Loss) profit attributable to owners AAnHER A (B8) 25
of the Company (10,813) 1,307
(Loss) profit attributable to TR BRI (B51R) & H
non-controlling interests (4,634) 560
Total comprehensive (expense) income AAREREAEGEZE(FX)
attributable to owners of the Company eyt (10,813) 1,307
Total comprehensive (expense) income R E 2E (X))
attributable to non-controlling interests a1 (4,634) 560
Total comprehensive (expense) income ENEH(FAX) KadsE
for the year (15,447) 1,867
Net cash inflow (outflow) from EEERETA R ) F8
operating activities 85,977 (134,312)
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETHH SN EE (3,069) (2,249)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from RMEFBRS (RH) RAFE
financing activities (91,713) 145,454
Net cash (outflow) inflow He (ORi) RAFE (8,805) 8,893
BEAMEBERAT —ZT—NFEFIR
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5-Year Financial Summary

EFEHBERE

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t—HLEE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-TF —T——% T ZFT-=F ZE-NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT TAT THT THET
RESULTS %iE
Revenue Wz 5,931,589 9,815,522 8,202,702 7,222,003 5,877,970
Profit (loss) before tax %A@ A (B518) 482,034 204,459 72,034 (381,776)  (1,067,611)
Income tax expense PSR (129,478) (88,208) (32,683) (25,742) (3,629)
Profit (loss) for the year FE At F 795
attributable to: (B8) :
Owners of the Company ARAEEA 352,798 152,087 88,591 (382,920)  (1,057,980)
Non-controlling interest IR R (242) (35,836) (49,240) (24,598) (13,260)
352,556 116,251 39,351 (407,518)  (1,071,240)
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-TF —T——4% T ZFT-=F ZE-NOF
HK$ ™ 000 HK$ ™ 000 HK$ " 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHIT FHT THERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BELE 3,581,367 5,314,522 5,201,979 4,917,292 3,641,025
Total liabilities BEHLE (1,934,686) (3,250,502) (3,128,437) (3,210,603) (2,997,669)
Net assets FEE 1,646,681 2,064,020 2,073,542 1,706,689 643,356

In this report, amounts denominated in US$ for 2014 have been
converted into HK$ at the rate of approximately US$1 = HK$7.75 (2013:

US$1 = HK$7.8) for illustration purpose only.

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. Should
there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions,

the English version shall prevail.
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